Dial-In Information

Phone Number: 1-346-248-7799
Meeting ID: 115-583-126
Password: 040720

LA VISTA CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA
April 7, 2020
6:00 P.M.
Harold “Andy” Anderson Council Chamber
La Vista City Hall
8116 Park View Blvd

° Call to Order
° Pledge of Allegiance
° Announcement of Location of Posted Open Meetings Act

All matters listed under item A, Consent Agenda, are considered to be routine by the city council and will be enacted by one
motion in the form listed below. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will
be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately.

A. CONSENT AGENDA

1. Approval of the Agenda as Presented

2. Approval of the Minutes of the March 3, 2020 City Council Meeting

3. Request for Payment — The Colonial Press, Inc. — Professional Services — La Vista
Community Guide — $9,133.14

4. Request for Payment — DLR Group — Professional Services — City Center Parking
Structure 2 — $55,654.20

5. Request for Payment — HDR Engineering Inc. — Professional Services — Project
Management for Public Improvements and Other Works — $681.42

6. Request for Payment — HGM Associates, Inc. — Professional Services — East La Vista
Sewer and Pavement Rehabilitation — Phase | Investigation — $34,160.53

7. Request for Payment — Midwest Right of Way Services, Inc. — Professional Services —
120" & Giles Total Acquisition — $285.00

8. Request for Payment — Midwest Right of Way Services, Inc. — Professional Services —
84" Street North of Brentwood Drive - $262.50

9. Request for Payment — Omaha Public Power District — Construction Services — La Vista
City Centre Reroute Line 26 — $2,098,340.00

10. Request for Payment — Signlt — Professional Services — 60" Anniversary Banners —
$7,850.00

11. Request for Payment — Thompson, Dreessen, & Dorner, Inc. — Professional Services —
Civil Engineering Services — $2,377.50

12. Request for Payment — TitleCore National, LLC — Professional Services - $200.00

13. Request for Payment — Valuation Services — Professional Services — South 84" Street -
$3,500.00

14. Request for Payment — Wellington — Professional Services — 60" Anniversary
Celebration — $10,375.00

15. Resolution — Appointment of Safety Steering Committee Members

16. Approval of Claims

° Reports from City Administrator and Department Heads

B. Resolution — FY 2018/2019 Audited Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)

C. Ordinance — Amend Section 113.10 of the La Vista Municipal Code

D. Resolution — Mutual Aid Agreement

E. Resolution — Authorize Purchase — Computer Equipment
F. Discussion — Salute to Summer Festival

o Comments from the Floor

° Comments from Mayor and Council

° Adjournment

The public is welcome and encouraged to attend all meetings. If special accommodations are required, please contact the City Clerk prior to
the meeting at 402-331-4343. A copy of the Open Meeting Act is posted in the Council Chamber and available in the public copies of the
Council packet. Citizens may address the Mayor and Council under "Comments from the Floor." Comments should be limited to three
minutes. We ask for your cooperation in order to provide for an organized meeting.
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LA VISTA CITY COUNCIL
MEETING
MARCH 17, 2020

A meeting of the City Council of the City of La Vista, Nebraska was convened in open
and public session at 6.00 p.m. on March 17, 2020. Present via teleconference were
Councilmembers: Frederick, Ronan, Sheehan, Thomas, Crawford, Quick, Hale, and
Sell. Present in the Council Chambers were Mayor Douglas Kindig, City Attorney
McKeon, Assistant City Administrator Ramirez, Police Chief Lausten, and City Clerk
Buethe.

A notice of the meeting was given in advance thereof by publication in the Times on
March 4, 2020 Notice was simultaneously given to the Mayor and all members of the
City Council and a copy of the acknowledgment of the receipt of notice attached to the
minutes. Availability of the agenda was communicated to the Mayor and City Council
in the advance notice of the meeting. All proceedings shown were taken while the
convened meeting was open to the attendance of the public in person and via
teleconference. Governor Pete Ricketts issued Executive Order No. 20-03 — Corona
Virus — public meeting requirement limited waiver. Such order aliowed for the
governing body to meet by telephone conferencing. Notice of the phone number was
given to the public through the City of La Vista website and through social media and
was posted at the entrance to the meeting facility. Further, all subjects included in said
proceedings were contained in the agenda for said meeting which is kept continuously
current and available for public inspection at City Hall during normal business hours.

Mayor Kindig called the meeting to order, led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance,
and made the announcements.

A. CONSENT AGENDA
1. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED
2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED
3. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE MARCH 3, 2020 CITY COUNCIL
MEETING
4. MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT — JANUARY 2020
5. REQUEST FOR PAYMENT — OLSSON — PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - CITY
CENTRE PHASE 1 PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE — $6,714.25
6. REQUEST FOR PAYMENT — RDG PLANNING & DESIGN — PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES — PLACEMAKING & LA SERVICES — $5,991.92
7. APPROVE MANAGER APPLICATION — CLASS C LIQUOR LICENSE —
0ZZY’S ROADHOUSE — HALIE HULSEY
8. APPROVAL OF CLAIMS

AED ZONE, services 120.00
AGA, services 140.00
AMAZON CAPITAL, services 1,069.74
APWA-AMER PUBLIC WORKS ASSN, services 875.00
BADGER BODY, maint. 49.00
BAUER BUILT INC, maint 344.00
BERGANKDV LLC, services 2,466.00
BERRY DUNN, services 4,500.00
BETH GEORGE, refund 288
BISHOP BUSINESS EQUIPMENT, services 237.91
BIZCO, INC, services 1,688.15
BKD LLP, services 7,500.00
BLACK HILLS ENERGY, utilities 1,007.67
BOBCAT OF OMAHA, services 3,271.80
BRITE IDEAS DECORATING, services 291.99
BUETHE, P., travel 151.00
CARL, R., travel 76.00
CARROT-TOP INDUSTRIES, services 698.99
CCH INC, services 2,057.00
CENTER POINT, INC, books 4434
CENTURY LINK, phones 584.27
CENTURY LINK BUSN SVCS, phones 305.77
CINTAS CORP, services 576.24

CITY OF OMAHA, services 184,912.48
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CITY OF PAPILLION, services

CODE 2 CANINE, services

CORNHUSKER INTL TRUCKS, maint.

COX COMMUNICATIONS, services
CRIMINAL ADDICTION INC, services
CULLIGAN OF OMAHA, services

CUMMINS CENTRAL POWER, services
DELL MARKETING LP, services

DHHS REG/LIC-POOL PERMIT, services
DIGITAL EXPRESS, services

DOUGLAS COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFC, services
ENCYCLOPEDIA BRITANNICA INC, services
FBG SERVICE CORP, bld&grnds
FERGUSON ENTERPRISES INC, bld&grnds
FOCUS PRINTING, services

GALE, books

GRAHAM CONSTRUCTION, INC, services
HAWKEYE TRUCK EQUIPMENT, maint.
HAYES MECHANICAL LLC, bid& grnds
HDR ENGINEERING INC, services
HEARTLAND PNEUMATIC, maint.
HEARTLAND TIRES & TREADS, maint.
HOME DEPOT, bld&grnds

HOTSY EQUIPMENT CO, bld&grnds

HUE LIFE LLC, services

HUNDEN STRATEGIC PARTNERS,services
INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES, books
JOHNSON CONTROLS, bld&grnds

JONES AUTOMOTIVE INC, maint.

LARSEN SUPPLY CO, bid&grnds

LAUSTEN JR ROBERT, services

LIBRARY IDEAS LLC, books

LOGAN CONTRACTORS SUPPLY, bld&grnds
LOWE'S, bld&grnds

MARCO INC, services

MARK A KLINKER,services
MENARDS-RALSTON, bld&grnds

METRO COMM COLLEGE, services

MUD, utilities

MIDWEST TAPE, books

MISEREZ, C., travel

MSC INDUSTRIAL, supplies

NE DEPT OF LABOR, services

NE ENVIRONMENTAL PRODUCTS, services
NE STATE FIRE MARSHAL, services

NMC EXCHANGE LLC, maint.

NOBBIES INC, supplies

NU DRYWALL INC, bld&grnds

OCLC INC, services

ODEYS INC, supplies

OFFICE DEPOT INC, supplies

OLD NEWS, media

OMAHA POLICE DEPARTMENT, services
OPPD, utilities

OMNI ENGINEERING, maint.

ONE CALL CONCEPTS INC, services
O'REILLY AUTO PARTS, maint.

PAPILLION LA VISTA COMM SCHOOL, services
PAPILLION SANITATION, services
PAY-LESS OFFICE, supplies

12,549.79
400.00
2,564.82
282.86
300.00
18.00
296.00
319.56
240.00
413.36
80.00
875.00
11,930.00
78.86
7,942.49
162.68
435,278.72
402.34
513.70
973.07
252.85
137.40
18.97
2,084.32
4,900.00
4,900.00
2,118 00
571.50
39.62

941 94
930.00
6.00
100.56
137.70
127.28
200.00
299.35
16,852.08
59.76

1,004.64
390.18
175.53
426.00

351077

30.00
537.84
131.67
850.00
161.21

74.50
496.18

17.00

50.84

49,174.70
446.85
123.01
618.85
250.00

2,242.68

100.05
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PLAINS EQUIPMENT GROUP, maint. 508.15
POWER DMS INC, services 219.66
PROTECH ELECTRIC SERVICES INC, services 1,775.00
RDG PLANNING & DESIGN, services 3,154.19
RED WING, apparel 150.00
REDSHAW PAINT SUPPLY, maint. 27.20
REGAL AWARDS INC, services 11.00
REPCO MARKETING INC, services 40.05
SARPY COUNTY COURTHOUSE, services 4,207.68
SARPY COUNTY FISCAL ADMIN, services 12,103.75
SCHEMMER ASSOCIATES INC, services 2,115.00
SCHOLASTIC LIBRARY PUBLISHING, books 145.60
SOLBERG, C., travel 2253
SOUTHERN UNIFORM, apparel 411.62
STONE PLANNING LLC, services 2,500.00
SUN VALLEY LANDSCAPING, services 2,315.11
THE HARRY A KOCH CO, services 6,725.75
THE NEW YORK TIMES, services 650.00
THOMPSON DREESSEN & DORNER, INC, services 2,058.15
TITAN MACHINERY, maint. 47342
TORNADO WASH LLC, maint. 625.00
TRANE U.S. INC, bld&grnds 155.20
TRANS UNION RISK, services 50.00
TRUCK CENTER COMPANIES, mamnt. 643.56
TURFWERKS, services 28,256.00
U.S. CELLULAR, phones 1,602 36
U.S POSTAL, services 2,088.87
UTILITY EQUIPMENT CO, services 246.12
VAL VERDE ANIMAL HOSPITAL INC, services 248.01
VERIZON CONNECT, phones 731.25
WELLINGTON EXPERIENCE, INC, services 372.50
WESTLAKE HARDWARE, bld&grnds 305 48
WINTER EQUIPMENT CO, services 108.59
ZIMCO, supplies 130.00

Councilmember Hale made a motion to approve the consent agenda. Seconded by
Councilmember Thomas. Councilmember Hale reviewed the bills and stated everything
was in order. Councilmembers voting aye' Frederick, Ronan, Sheehan, Thomas,
Crawford, Quick, Hale, and Sell Nays: None. Abstain: None Absent: None Motion
carried.

PRESENTATION — LA VISTA KENO

Mayor Kindig announced that the La Vista Keno presentation had been postponed

UPDATE — SARPY/CASS HEALTH DEPARTMENT — CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19}

Sarah Schram, Director of the Sarpy/Cass Health Department, gave a presentation on
Coronavirus (COVID-19).

REPORTS FROM CITY ADMINISTRATOR AND DEPARTMENT HEADS

Police Chief Lausten reported on the City's response to COVID-19.

Papillion Fire Chief Bowes reported on steps that the Fire Department has taken in
response to COVID-19.

B. ORDINANCE — DECLARATION OF SURPLUS PROPERTY —~ PART OF TAX
LOT 12 14-14-12 AND PART OF OUTLOT A LA VISTA CITY CENTRE

Councilmember Hale introduced Ordinance No. 1390 entitled: AN ORDINANCE TO
REPEAL AND REPLACE ORDINANCE NO. 1383 MAKING FINDINGS AND
DETERMINATIONS AND DECLARING A PORTION OF TAX LOT 12 14-14-12 AND
A PORTION OF OUTLOT A, LA VISTA CITY CENTRE, (BEING REPLATTED AS
PART OF LOT 3, LA VISTA CITY CENTRE REPLAT FOUR) AS SURPLUS
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PROPERTY; AND PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES,
AUTHORIZATION OF FURTHER ACTIONS, SEVERABILITY, AND AN EFRECTIVE
DATE.

Councilmember Sheehan moved that the statutory rule requiring reading bn three
different days be suspended. Councilmember Sell seconded the motion to suspend the
rules and roll call vote on the motion. Councilmembers voting aye: Frederick, Ronan,
Sheehan, Thomas, Crawford, Quick, Hale, and Sell. Nays: None. Abstain: None.
Absent: None. Motion carried. The motion to suspend the rules was adopted, and the
statutory rule was declared suspended for consideration of said ordinance

Said ordinance was then read by title, and thereafter Councilmember Sell moved for
final passage of the ordinance which motion was seconded by Councilmember Quick.
The Mayor then stated the question, “Shall Ordinance No. 1390 be passed and
adopted?” Upon roll call vote the following Councilmembers voted aye: Frederick,
Ronan, Sheehan, Thomas, Crawford, Quick, Hale, and Sell. Nays: None. Abstain:
None. Absent: None. The passage and adoption of said ordinance having been
concurred on by a majority of all members of the Council, the Mayor declared the
ordinance adopted and the Mayor, in the presence of the Council, signed and
approved the ordinance and the City Clerk attested the passage/approval of the same
and affixed her signature thereto.

C. ORDINANCE — DIRECTING CONVEYANCE — PART OF TAX LOT 12 14-14-12
AND PART OF OUTLOT A LA VISTA CITY CENTRE

Councilmember Frederick introduced Ordinance No. 1391 entitled: AN ORDINANCE
TO REPEAL AND REPLACE ORDINANCE NO 1384 DIRECTING CONVEYANCE OF
REAL ESTATE, A PORTION OF TAX LOT 12 14-14-12 AND A PORTION OF QUTLOT
A, LA VISTA CITY CENTRE, (BEING REPLATTED AS PART OF LOT 3, LA VISTA
CITY CENTRE REPLAT FOUR) AND THE MANNER AND TERMS THEREOF; AND
PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES, AUTHORIZATION OF
FURTHER ACTIONS, SEVERABILITY, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Councilmember Quick moved that the statutory rule requiring reading on three different
days be suspended. Councilmember Sell seconded the motion to suspend the rules
and roll call vote on the motion. Councilmembers voting aye: Frederick, Ronan,
Sheehan, Thomas, Crawford, Quick, Hale, and Sell. Nays: None. Abstain' None.
Absent: None. Motion carried. The motion to suspend the rules was adopted, and the
statutory rule was declared suspended for consideration of said ordinance.

Said ordinance was then read by title, and thereafter Councilmember Sell moved for
final passage of the ordinance which motion was seconded by Councilmember
Thomas. The Mayor then stated the question, “Shall Ordinance No. 1391 be passed
and adopted?” Upon roll call vote the following Councilmembers voted aye: Frederick,
Ronan, Sheehan, Thomas, Crawford, Quick, Hale, and Sell. Nays: None. Abstain;
None. Absent: None. The passage and adoption of said ordinance having been
concurred on by a majority of all members of the Council, the Mayor declared the
ordinance adopted and the Mayor, in the presence of the Council, signed and
approved the ordinance and the City Clerk attested the passage/approval of the same
and affixed her signature thereto.

D. RESOLUTION — PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT — SUPPLEMENT
NO. 1 — APPLEWOOD CREEK TRAIL

Councilmember Thomas introduced and moved for the adoption of Resolution No. 20-
037 entitled: A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF LA VISTA, NEBRASKA AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF SUPPLEMENT NO.
1 TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH ALFRED BENESCH &
COMPANY FOR THE PROVISION OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES FOR THE
APPLEWOOD CREEK TRAIL PROJECT.

WHEREAS, City of La Vista is developing a transportation project for which it intends
to obtain Federal funds; and

WHEREAS, City of La Vista as a sub-recipient of Federal-Aid funding is charged with
the responsibility of expending said funds in accordance with Federal,
State and local laws, rules, regulations policies and guidelines
applicable to the funding of the Federal-aid project, and

4
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WHEREAS, City of La Vista and Alfred Benesch & Company, wish to enter into a
Professional Services Agreement to provide environmental services for
the Federal-aid project;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of La Vista that
Douglas Kindig, Mayor of the City of La Vista City Council, is hereby
authorized to sign the attached environmental services agreement
between City of La Vista, Nebraska and Alfred Benesch & Company.

Seconded by Councilmember Frederick. Councilmembers voting aye: Frederick,
Ronan, Sheehan, Thomas, Crawford, Quick, Hale, and Sell Nays: None. Abstain:
None. Absent: None. Motion carried.

E. RESOLUTION ~ PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT - 96TH STREET
AND 108TH STREET PAVEMENT REHABILITATION

Councilimember Sell introduced and moved for the adoption of Resolution No. 20-038
entitled” A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
LA VISTA, NEBRASKA AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH ALFRED BENESCH AND COMPANY, OMAHA,
NEBRASKA FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED
$116,995.00.

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have determined that engineering services
are necessary; and

WHEREAS, the FY19/20 Biennial Budget provides funding for the proposed
services;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of La Vista,
Nebraska, that a professional services agreement, in a form satisfactory
to the City Administrator and City Attorney, be authorized with Alfred
Benesch and Company, Omaha, Nebraska for the provision of
engineering services in an amount not to exceed $116,895.00.

Seconded by Councilmember Frederick. Councilmembers voting aye: Frederick,
Ronan, Sheehan, Thomas, Crawford, Quick, Hale, and Sell Nays None. Abstain
None. Absent' None. Motion carried.

F. RESOLUTION — INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT - MAINTENANCE &
ACCESS ROAD — SID 237

Councilmember Frederick introduced and moved for the adoption of Resolution No. 20-
039 entitled: A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
LA VISTA, NEBRASKA APPROVING AN INTERLOCAL COOPERATION
AGREEMENT WITH SANITARY & IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 237 OF SARPY
COUNTY FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A MAINTENANCE AND ACCESS ROAD
AND OTHER WORK IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $25,000

WHEREAS, the provisions of Nebraska State Statutes Sections 13-801, et. seq.,
provide authority for the City of La Vista to join with other governmental
agencies on a basis of mutual advantage and in a manner that will
accord best with geographic, economic, population and other factors by
signing an Interlocal Cooperation Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have determined that the construction of a
maintenance and access road and other work in the vicinity of a culvert
under the BNSF railroad tracks and open drainageway, Outlot E,
Cimarron Woods and Outlot E, Val Vista are necessary; and

WHEREAS, the FY19/20 Biennial Budget provides funding for this project;

WHEREAS, such an agreement is in the best interests of the citizens of the City of La
Vista.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of La Vista, Nebraska,
hereby authorize the Mayor to execute an Interlocal Cooperation

5
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Agreement with Sanitary & Improvement District No. 237 of Sarpy County
for the construction of a maintenance and access road and other work in
an amount not to exceed $25,000.

Seconded by Councilmember Quick. Councilmembers voting aye: Frederick, Ronan,
Sheehan, Thomas, Quick, Hale, and Sell. Nays: None. Abstain' Crawford. Absent:
None. Motion carried.

G. RESOLUTION — APPROVE PURCHASE - POLICE MOBILE (CAR) RADIOS

Councilmember Frederick introduced and moved for the adoption of Resolution No. 20-
040 entitled: A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
LA VISTA, NEBRASKA AWARDING A CONTRACT TO MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS,
CHICAGO, IL, FOR THE PURCHASE OF THREE (3) MOTOROLA APX 6500
PORTABLE RADIOS AND ACCESSORIES IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED
$15,500.

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of La Vista has determined that the purchase
of new Motorola mobile radios and accessories is necessary; and

WHEREAS, the FY20 General Fund budget does include funds for the purchase of
three (3) Motorola portable radios and accessories; and

WHEREAS, Motorola Solutions is a sole source vendor and will extend that price to
the City of La Vista; and

WHEREAS, Motorola Solutions is a highly qualified specialty public safety
communications provider, and

WHEREAS, Subsection (c) of Section 31.23 of the La Vista Municipal Code requires
that the City Administrator secure Council approval prior to authonzing
any purchase over $5,000.00;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council of La Vista,
Nebraska, do hereby accept the requisition and authorize the purchase
of three (3) Motorola APX 6500 portable radios and accessories from
Motorola Solutions, Chicago, IL, in an amount not to exceed $15,500.

Seconded by Councilmember Thomas. Councilmembers voting aye: Frederick, Ronan,
Sheehan, Thomas, Crawford, Quick, Hale, and Sell. Nays: None. Abstain: None.
Absent: None. Motion carried.

H. POSITION DESCRIPTION

Councilmember Thomas made a motion to receive and file the updated description for
the position of Communication Intern (Student). Seconded by Councilmember
Sheehan. Councilmembers voting aye: Frederick, Ronan, Sheehan, Thomas,
Crawford, Quick, Hale, and Sell. Nays: None Abstain: None. Absent: None. Motion
carried.

COMMENTS FROM THE FLOOR

There were no comments from the floor.
COMMENTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL
There were no comments from the Mayor and Council.
At 6:49 p.m. Councilmember Crawford made a motion to adjourn the meeting.
Seconded by Councilmember Sell. Councilmembers voting aye: Frederick, Ronan,

Sheehan, Thomas, Crawford, Quick, Hale, and Sell Nays' None Abstain: None.
Absent: None. Motion carried.
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PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 7TH DAY OF APRIL 2020
CITY OF LA VISTA
‘. Douglas Kindig, Mayor
: ATTEST:
'
i
E
} Pamela A. Buethe, CMC
; City Clerk
;
;
{
[
|
%
|
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The Colonial Press, Inc.
10607 Harrison Street

INVOICE

COLONIAL LaVista, NE 68128
PRESS Phone: (402) 593-0580
Fax: (402) 593-0480
Email: gstoops@thecolonialpress.net
City of LaVista United States Postal Service
o 8116 Park View Blivd o 13th & Pacific
©  LaVista, NE 68128 ¥ Omaha, NE 68108
Q. T
- —
o o]
Customer Code P.O. Number Ship Date invoice Date Invoice # Salesperson Terms
41849 3/6/20 3/6/20 81349 Katie Hajek Net 30 Days
Job
81349
8,362 8,362 ] City of LaVista Community Guide - 52 pg Self Cover 1,092.220000 | M 9,133.14
1 | ALT: Type changes with new proofs 0.000000 0.00
ﬁ’ ! ﬂh\r)’ d«\—r( mMa w/ h)/ d‘[)
0%. §] 1/305.02%
Cos wola 2020
Subtotal 9,133.14
Government 0.00
Total Due $ 9,133.14




Invoice

Project

Pat Dowse

Director Public Works

City of La Vista

8116 Park View Boulevard
La Vista, NE 68128-2198

10-17105-40

PO 20-008373
Billing Period: February 1. 2020 to February 29, 2020

Fee

Billing Phase

Schematic Design
Design Development
Construction Documents

Bid Negotiation

Total Fee

Reimbursable Expenses

Printing & Copy

Travel Expenses-Mileage

March 10, 2020
Project No:
Invoice No:

La Vista City Cntr Parking Structure 2

Fee

109,400.00
164,100.00
218,800.00

54,700.00
547,000.00

Total Reimbursables

Billing Limits

Expenses
Limit
Remaining

Billings to Date

Fee
Expense
Totals

Current
54,700.00
954.20
55,654.20

Percent
Complete

85.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

Total Fee

Current
954.20

Prior
38,290.00
13.09
38,303.09

A4

EpR Group

listen.DESIGN.deliver

6457 Frances Street, Suite 200

Omaha, NE 68106

402-393-4100 Fax 402-393-8747

10-17105-40

0174470

Previous Fee

Current Fee

Earned Billing Billing
92,990.00 38,290.00 54,700.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
92,990.00 38,290.00 54,700.00
54,700.00
946.61
7.59
954.20 954.20
Prior To-Date
13.09 967.29
10,000.00
9,032.71
Total this Invoice $55,654.20 <—

Total
92,990.00
967.29
93,957.29

We appreciate your confidence in us and thank you in advance for your payment.
Being environmentally friendly, we encourage payments via Wire Transfer.
Routing number: 121000248 Account Number: 4945435436

o 10 Pflﬁ/
o 3/16/200

Covsunt Memda 4/ 71)200.5 =

Matthew Gulsvig, AIA, LEED AP

Payment due and interest charged per contract terms. Remit to address at the top of this invoice.



Project 10-17105-40

La Vista City Cntr Parking Structure 2

Invoice 0174470

Billing Backup

Tuesday, March 10, 2020

DLR Group Invoice 0174470 Dated 3/10/2020 10:55:09 AM
Project 10-17105-40 La Vista City Cntr Parking Structure 2
Reimbursable Expenses
Printing & Copy
AP 0443423 2/11/2020 ARC Document Solutions, LLC. 946.61
Trave! Expenses-Mileage
EX 0123478 2/5/2020 Gulsvig, Matthew / Design Meeting 7.59
Total Reimbursables 954.20 954.20
Total this Project $954.20
Total this Report $954.20

Payment due and interest charged per contract terms. Remit to address at the top of this invoice.

Page 2
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Reference Invoice Number with Payment

HDR Engineering Inc. HDR Invoice No. 1200252995
Omaha, NE 68106-2973 Invoice Date 11-MAR-2020
Phone: (402) 399-1000 Invoice Amount Due  $681.42
Payment Terms 30 NET
Remit To PO Box 74008202
City of La Vista . Chicago, IL. 60674-8202
Rita Ramirez ACH/EFT Payments Bank of America ML US
8116 Park View Bivd ABA# 081000032
La Vista, NE 68128 Account# 355004076604

Project Management for Services for Public Improvements and Other Works.

Purchase Order:  20-008348

Professional Services
From: 02-FEB-2020 To: 29-FEB-2020

s Professional Sérvices Summarization ~ .- 17 L vy T CHours ©- 0 -“Billing Rate - - 7 Amount -
Civil Engineer 1.00 124.23
Communications Coordinator 1.50 140.94
Graphic Designer 0.50 49.68
Project Manager 1.50 365.40
4.50 $680.25
Total Professional Services $680.25
.Expenise_ Summarization.. - .. L Quantity ~ 7 -BillingRate i -7 “Amount
Printing/Reprographics 1.17
Total Expenses $1.17
[ Amount Due This Invoice (USD) 3681.43|
Fee Amount $670,695.00)
Fee Invoiced to Date $497,886.4
Fee Remaining $172,808.5

HDR Internal Reference Only

Client Number 41331
Cost Center 10134
Project Number 10053040

B Cme Consomi-Aprda ¥/7/2022
rvsrr/ =
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11-MAR-2020

HDR Invoice No.
Invoice Date

Invoice

Professional Services and Expense Detall

Project‘Des'ériptioﬁ:

LaVista;Pfdject Mgmt Sves

Project Number: 10053040
Task Number: 1.0 Task Description: Project Management
Professional Services . S " Hours Billing Rate __ Amount
Civil Engineer Christiansen, Adam P. 1.00 124.23 124.23
Project Manager Koenig, Christopher J 1.50 243.60 365.40
2.50 $489.63
Total Professional Services $489.63
‘Expense CQty BillingRate " -~ - " -Amount
Printing/Reprographics ARC Document Solutions 1.17
LLC
Total Expense $1.17
Total Task $490.80
' Professional Services and Expense Detail - R R
Project Number: 10053040 Project Description: LaVista-Project Mgmt Svcs
Task Number: 3.0 Task Description: Public Outreach
Professional Services ~ - - - e - - ‘Hours ;' Billing Rate -~ Amount
Communications Coordinator Veldhouse, Kristen Lynn 1.50 93.96 140.94
Graphic Designer Rodriguez, Christina Anne 0.50 99.36 49.68
Rolfes
2.00 $190.62
Total Professional Services $190.62

Total Task

$190.62
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ASSOCIATES INC.

5022 S 114th Street INVOICE
Suite 200
Omaha, NE 68137 Invoice Number:  702619-5
(712) 323-0530 Date:  March 13, 2020
Client Code: 7220

City of LaVista P.O. Number:  20-008340

Attn: Mr. Patrick Dowse, P.E.

9900 Portal Road

LaVista, NE 68128

Progress billing for engineering services for the East LaVista Sewer and Pavement Rehabilitation - Phase I Investigation, per agreement
dated June 4, 2019.

Phase I - Investigation:

1) HGM: Project Management; Coordination of subcontractors; Develop alternatives; Meetings with City of LaVista
2) TREKK: Study and Report; Meetings with City

3) Emspace + lovgren: Project Management

Amendment 1:
1) HGM: Project Management; Report and OPC; and Meeting with City
2) TREKK: Create geodatabase; Link CCTV phetos; Report and OPC; and Meeting with City Through: February 29, 2020

Hours Rate Current Period Billed To Date
001: Phase I Investigation (LS $53,340)
90% Complete $5,334.00 $48,006.00
002: Trekk ($90,420) (Hrly)
TREKK Design Group, LLC $2,895.07
TREKK Design Group, LLC $13,110.90
TREKK Design Group, LLC $2,944.00
TREKX Design Group, LLC $4,123.56
$23,073.53 $87,317.98
003: Thiele Geotech ($18,675) (Hrly)
$18,675.00
004: Emspace & Lovgren (39,775) (Hrly)
Emspace + Lovgren $170.00
Emspace + Lovgren $660.00
$830.00 $3,120.92
005: Amendment 1 HGM (LS $923)
100% Complete $923.00 $923.00
006: Amendment 1 TREKK ($4,000) (Hrly)
TREKK Design Group, LLC $400.00
TREKK Design Group, LLC $3,600.00

$4,000.00 $4,000.00

@VLWJ/ATMM“lhIZd/Zg_D

Page: 1 of 2



Project 702619 E. Lavista - Sewer & Pavement Rehab Phase I Investigation Invoice 702619-5

Total Amount Billed $162,042.90
Less Previous Invoices $127.882.37
Invoice Total $34.160.53 <
Outstanding Invoices
Invoice 0-30 31-60 61-90 Over 90 Balance

Ol 10 a ]

oo 3716360

Page: 2 of 2



MIDWEST -

Right of Way Services, Inc. www.ridwestrovr.com

March 3, 2020

John Kottman, City Engineer
City of La Vista

8116 Park View Boulevard
La Vista, Nebraska 68128

Invoice No.: 5467
Midwest Right of Way Services #539
Services in connection with the
City of LaVista - 120th & Giles - Total Acquisition

Total Contract $ -
Amount Previously Invoiced S 4,786.42
For the period of January 25,2020 through February 21, 2020
Project Manager 3.00 hoursat $95 perhour $ 285.00
Acquisition Agent - hoursat $85 perhour $ -
Miles - miles $0.575 permile $ -
Total Amount Due for this Invoice: S 285.00
Total Remaining on Contract (after this invoice) $ -
Past Due Invoices:
Total Amount for Past Due Invoices: $ -

TOTAL AMOUNT CURRENTLY DUE: § 285.00 </

Ol 1o e

For questions regarding this invoice, please call JohnBorgmeyer at 402-955-2900. Pm D g / | 51702 (/& o
g

oL
Covsut Acyouda 47/ 2520@ bs 3| 0599 .03

13425 “A” Street » Omaha, Nebraska 68144 « Phone 402-955-2900 « 866-955-2901 « Fax 402-955-2903
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Right of Way Services, Inc. ymymidiwestroiv.com
March 3, 2020

/G Tl O T 00 STK] 7oo</Z
Pat Dowse = 7 20> e
City of La Vista, Nebraska LI/ 7 027287 et / /D <.,
Public Works
8116 Park View Blvd.

La Vista, Nebraska 68128

Invoice No.: 5486 .
Midwest Right of Way Services #593
Services in connection with the
City of La Vista - Voluntary Acquisition - 84th Street North of Brentwood Drive

Total Contract Amount 3 3,650.00
Amount Previously Invoiced b -

For the period of  January 25,2020 through February 21,2020

Project Manager 2.50 hoursat $105 perhour $ 262.50
Acquisition Agent - hoursat $95 perhour $ -
Administrative Fee -  hoursat $55 perhour $ -

Mileage - miles $0.575 permile $ -

Total Amount Due for this Invoice: s 262.50 |
Total Remaining on Contract (after this invoice) $  3,387.50
Past Due Invoices:
$ -
Total Amount for Past Due Invoices: $ -

TOTAL AMOUNT CURRENTLY DUE: _§ 262.50

(orseu-Aopnda <H 7/ 2%

For questions regarding this invoice, pleast-eall John Borgmeyer at 402-955-2900.

13425 “A” Street » Omaha, Nebraska 68144 « Phone 402-955-2900 « 866-955-2901 « Fax 402-955-2903




MIDWEST

Right of Way Services, Inc. www.rmidwestrow.com

November 21, 2019

Pat Dowse

City of La Vista, Nebraska
Public Works

8116 Park View Blvd.

La Vista, NE 68128

RE: Proposal for Right of Way Services
City of La Vista, Nebraska
Voluntary Acquisition — 84% Street North of Brentwood Drive

Dear Mr. Dowse:

Midwest Right of Way Services, Inc. is pleased to provide this proposal for right of way services
for the above-referenced project in the City of La Vista, Nebraska.

CONSULTANT AND KEY PERSONNEL

Consultant- Midwest Right of Way Services
13425 “A” Street
Omaha, Nebraska 68144
(402) 955-2900

Key Personnel- Jack Borgmeyer, President
John E. Borgmeyer, Chief Operations Officer

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING

This project involves the voluntary acquisition of one (1) parcel of 1and, located on 84 Street north
of Brentwood Drive in La Vista, Nebraska.

PROJECT MANAGEMENT

This task will involve coordination of all project elements so that work is initiated as it should be,
appropriate progress is made, and schedules are met. Coordination and scheduling of the acquisition
will be the responsibility of the project manager.

13425“A” Street + Omaha, Nebraska 68144 « Phone 4029552900 + 8669552001 - Fax 402-955-2903




Mr. Pat Dowse
November 21, 2019
Page 2

TITLE SEARCHES

Title searches will be ordered for the property to be acquired in order to determine fee ownership and
any liens and encumbrances which will affect the title. The City of La Vista will provide Midwest
Right of Way with the title report for the preparation of paperwork, and to include in the completed
files. ‘

APPRAISALS

This task involves preparation of one (1) appraisal reports for the property being purchased. This
report will provide a value for the acquisition. The City of La Vista will provide Midwest Right of
Way with the completed appraisal reports.

ACQUISITION

Midwest Right of Way Services’ acquisition agents will make every effort to understand the
project’s objective before meeting with the property owners. We will prepare all documents, present
and explain the offer, answer all acquisition-related questions, and secure signatures from all
interested parties. Our acquisition agents will obtain tenant information from property owners and
proceed to obtain signed a leasehold contract, if applicable. We will negotiate in good faith and keep
records of all calls made.

If condemnation is required, Midwest Right of Way Services will deliver the parcel file to Sarpy
County and be available for consultation or condemnation testimony.

ECONOMIC EQUITY AND INCLUSION PROGRAM
Midwest Right of Way Services, Inc. is a participant in the City of Omaha Economic Equity and
Inclusion Program.

SMALL EMERGING BUSINESS TIER IT
Midwest Right of Way Services, Inc. is certified by the City of Omaha as a Small Emerging Business
Tier 11

VETERAN-OWNED BUSINESS
Midwest Right of Way Services is a veteran-owned business.

13425“A” Street « Omaha, Nebraska 68144 - Phane 4029552000 « 866-955-2901 « Fax 402-955-2903




Mr. Pat Dowse
November 21, 2019
Page 3

TEAM MEMBERS

Jack Borgmeyer, SR/WA, R/W-RAC, is President of Midwest Right of Way Services, Inc. He is
qualified to complete all aspects of the right of way process. He has over 35 years of experience
relating to real estate and right of way. His experience includes right of way title searches, land and
easement acquisition, relocation, condemnation testimony, and project management.

John Borgmeyer, RWA-GN, Right of Way Agent, is the Chief Operations Officer for Midwest Right
of Way Services, Inc. He has performed acquisition negotiations for state, local and federally funded
projects in Nebraska, Jowa and Kansas, and relocation assistance for local and federally funded
projects in Nebraska. His experience includes roadway, airport, drainage and sewer projects.

Stacey A. Kroeger, SR/WA, R/W-RAC, Right of Way Agent, has worked for Midwest Right of Way
Services since February, 2001. She has performed acquisition negotiations and relocation assistance
since May, 2005. Her experience includes right of way title searches, acquisition negotiations, and
relocation assistance for state, local, and federally funded projects.

Maria Rodriguez, Right of Way Agent, has worked for Midwest Right of Way Services since
October, 2013. She performed several years of acquisition negotiations and relocation assistance in
Phoenix, Arizona. Her experience includes right of way title searches, acquisition negotiations, and
relocation assistance for state, local, and federally funded projects. Maria speaks and writes the
Spanish language fluently.

Denny Bliss, Right of Way Agent, has worked for Midwest Right of Way Services since July, 2011.
He has performed acquisition negotiations for state, local and federally funded projects. His
experience includes preparation and review of legal descriptions, review of land title reports, as well
as the ability to read, interpret, and draw engineering plans. He has experience with airport,
roadway, drainage, sewer, and utility projects. He is also an experienced CADD technician.

Jim Abbott, Right of Way Agent, has worked for Midwest Right of Way Services since January of
this year. He has performed acquisition negotiations for sewer and roadway projects in Omabha,
Lincoln, Sarpy County and Douglas County in Nebraska and roadway projects in Iowa. His
experience includes twenty years of real estate management of commercial and investment properties
in the Midwest working for a management company throughout Nebraska, lowa, and South Dakota.

Dave Minino, Right of Way Agent, has worked for Midwest Right of Way Services since May, 2012.

He has performed acquisition negotiations for state, local and federally funded projects. His
experience includes right of way title searches and airport, roadway, drainage, sewer, and utility
projects.

Molly Frederickson, Administrative Assistant, is the newest member of our team beginning in
January 2019. She provides administrative support and document preparation for Midwest Right of
Way’s acquisition and relocation agents. She has experience as a document specialist for a local law
firm, and has experience as an escrow assistant for a real estate title company.

13425“A” Street + Omaha, Nebraska 68144 « Phone 402-955-2900 - 866-955-2901 + Fax 4029552903




Mr. Pat Dowse
November 21, 2019
Page 4

PAYMENT FOR SERVICES

Midwest Right of Way Services proposes the right of way services detailed above for the following
hourly fees:

Hourly Salary Rates

Project Manager $105.00

Right of Way Agent/Relocation Agent $ 95.00

Document Preparation and Administrative Services $ 55.00

Mileage at Standard IRS Rate , $ 0.58 per mile

The maximum fees for each task will be as follows:
Task Maximum Fee

Project Management 1 owners @ 5 hours $ 525.00
Acquisition Negotiations 1 owners @ $2,850.00 each $2,850.00
Document Prep. & Admin. Fees 5 hours @ $55.00 Each $ 275.00
Total Maximum Fee $3,650.00

Mileage will be billed in addition to the above fees, at the standard IRS rate of the year in which the
miles were incurred. Ifadditional work or meetings are requested beyond the scope indicated in this
proposal, we will contact you to discuss revising the contract amount before the additional work is
started.

If the above described items are satisfactory to you, please sign and date the original and duplicate
original of this letter in the space provided. Keep one executed copy of this letter for your files and
return the duplicate copy to us for our files. Receipt of this letter contract will be considered our
formal notice to proceed with the work.

Sincerely,

MIDWEST RIGHT OF WAY SERVICES, INC.

John E. Borgmeyer
Chief Operations Officer

ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL AND AUTHORIZATION TO PROCEED

/?/Cf W &)/MA Date: 0?/ 717/02&0{0

Authorized Rep. — City of La Vista, Nebraska

13425“A” Street + Omaha, Nebraska 68144 « Phone 402-955-2900 - 8669552901 - Fax 402-955-2903
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Omata Pubtic Power Bisthel
Page: 1
AMOUNT DUE: 2,098,340.00 USD Invoice No: CSB000723
Invoice Date: 03/12/2020
Amount Remitted Customer Number: ARM01023
_Payment Terms: Net 30
Due Date: 04/11/2020

Bill To:
CITY OF LAVISTA
ATTN: JOE SOUCIE
9900 PORTAL RD
LAVISTA NE 68128-3085
United States

Please Remit To:
OMAHA PUBLIC POWER DISTRICT
P.O, Box 3065
Omaha NE 68103-0065
United States

" For billing questions, please call 531-226-2121
Line Adj Identifier Descriplion Quantity UOM Unit Amt Net Amount
LA VISTA CITY CENTER REROUTE LINE 26 -CIR 639
WO 614414
1 WO 614414 1.00 LT 2,098,340.00 2,096,340.00
SUBTOTAL: 2,098,340,00
| TOTAL AMOUNT DUE 2,008,000.00 |

Flool @xymﬂ%»? /90_0_‘(@0% C//-?Steﬂ[

Original

(onsunr Asguota 4/7/%39 s

Omaha Public Power District

LUMF SUM
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Phone: 402.339.8882
I Fax: 402.339.9162 DATE INVOICE #
SIGNS © GRAPHICS ¢ PROMO ITEMS 3/18/2020 73015
8318 F Street + Omaha, NE 68127
BILL TO SHIP TO
City of La Vista Mitch Beaumont
8116 Parkview Blvd.
La Vista, NE 68128
P.O. NO. TERMS REP SHIP DATE SHIP VIA FOB PROJECT
Due on receipt [ MSR | 3/18/2020
QTY ITEM DESCRIPTION RATE AMOUNT
100 Banners Banners - Full Color - Double Sided 78.50 7,850.00
Size - 30.00in x 80.00in
3.00" Pole Pocket on Top & Bottom
Grommets Along Edge
é()ﬁ Amﬂ/f/é“y CYGE
D §.91.0%3.07%
OX 77 (%
* ,’Jq/d\/ & 2]
(st /W 4/ 72020
<
Thank you for choosing SignIT! Total $7,850.00

€ signiTomaha.com

A 1.5% LATE FEE WILL BE ADDED TO ALL BALANCES OVER 30 DAYS
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Thompson, Dreessen & Dorner, Inc. INVOICE
Consulting Engineers & Land Surveyors

Please remit to:
eng irecing TD2 Nebraska Office TD2 South Dakota Office
& surveyin g 10836 Cld Mill Road; Omaha, NE 68154 5000 S. Minnesota Ave., Ste. 300; Sioux Falls, SD 57108
Office: 402/330-8860 Fax: 402/330-5866 Offlce: 605/951-0886
CITY OF LA VISTA Invoice number 136357
PAT DOWSE Date 03/17/2020
9900 PORTAL ROAD
LA VISTA, NE 68128 Project 0171-400 CITY OF LAVISTA-

MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES 2012-
CURRENT, CIVIL

Professional Services from February 3, 2020 through March 08, 2020

Current
Description Billed
Civil Engineering Services 2,377.50
Communications and preparation of interlocal agreement with SID 237 and
discussions about access easement for culvert maintenance. 1,590.00
Attend Community Development staff meeting. 300.00
84th redevelopment budget preparation communications and Harrison
Hills public improvement research. 487.50
Total 2,377.50
Invoice total 2,377.50
Aging Summary
Invoice Number Invoice Date Outstanding Current Over 30 Over 60 Over 90 Over 120
136357 03/17/2020 2,377.50 2,377.50
Total 2,377.50 2,377.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Terms Net 30 Days. A Finance Charge of 1 1/2% Per Month (18% per Annum) Will Be Charged on Past Due Accounts. Also Liable for
all Legal and Collection Fees. Invoices not paid within 90 days of the invoice date will be subject to possible lien fikings.

‘O |

(orsunt- Acypda # 7/%

CITY OF LA VISTA Invoice number 136357 Invoice date 03/17/2020

Page 1
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INVOICE

Invoice #: 137836
Invoice Date: 2/24/2020

File Number: 42342PRC-20

To: From:
City of La Vista TitleCore National, LLC
9900 Portal Road 8701 West Dodge Road
La Vista, NE 68128 Suite 150
Patrick Dowse Omaha, NE 68114

PH 402-331-8927

402-691-9933

FX 402-331-1051

RE: 7506-7514 South 84th Street La Vista NE
/CLR Development, LLC, a Nebraska limited liability
company

fiVesCeip ol < AT

3

. S S U SO UOUoee | PN P

Title Certificate $200.00 1 $200.00
. Subtotal $200.00
Tax@0 % $0.00
Non Taxable $0.00
Amt.
Grand Total $200.00
Please Remit To:
TitleCore National, LLC
8701 West Dodge Road
Suite 150
Omaha, NE 68114
402-691-9933
Thank you!

/4.7 0917 0ce. STRTT 700
47 (onsent P27 (@ # Docose
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ALUATION

SERVICES

5408 North 99th Street, Suite A
Omaha, NE 68134

402-397-8080/FAX 402-393-3284

A-17%

INVOICE

DATE INVOICE #
City of La Vista, Nebraska 3/31/2020 20200097
Pat Dowse
8116 Parkview Blvd
LaVista, NE 68128 DUE DATE OWNER/NAME
3/31/2020 Retail Center
SERVICE PROPERTY ADDRESS AMOUNT
Appraisal 7506-7514 South 84th Street, LaVista 3,500.00

Federal ID # 47-0703667

(oot Agunla <t/ 2020

173
'

5.
ity 1. OUT. STRT/7¢
(prrsent prer Jot Dows

D4/

<
CC/;7

Balances over 30 days are subject to 1.5% per month finance fee. Liable for legal &
collection fees.

Total

$3,500.00




Valuation Services

5408 North 99% Street, Suite A * Omaha, Nebraska 68134 * (402) 397-8080

February 3, 2020

Pat Dowse

City Engineer

City of La Vista, Nebraska
8116 Park View Boulevard
La Vista, Nebraska 68128

Re:  Appraisal Proposal
7506 — 7514 South 84™ Street
La Vista, Nebraska

Dear Mr. Dowse:

As requested, I am providing you a proposal to prepare an appraisal on the above referenced
property conforming to the specifications below and in accordance with all applicable rules,
definitions, and appraisal standards of the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice.

Client/Intended Users: City of La Vista, Nebraska

Purpose and Use of Appraisal: To provide an opinion of market value for the
property for internal decision-making purposes.

Property Location: 7506 — 7514 South 84™ Street
Omaha, Nebraska
Assessor Parcel Numbers: 010581170
Property Type: Multi-building retail center
Value Premise: Market Value
Rights Appraised: Leased Fee Estate
Report Format: Complete Appraisal Report
Anticipated Delivery Date: Approximately 30 days after receiving written

authorization to proceed.

The fee to complete this appraisal assignment will be $3,500, payable upon completion and
delivery of the appraisal report. Unless requested by you otherwise, one hard copy and one
electronic copy will be provided upon its completion.




A -4
INVOICE Wellington

7304 W 130th St, Ste 370
Overland Park, KS 66213
913.402.1881

www. WellingtonExperience.com

Program Name: City of La Vista 60th Anniversary Celebration
Prepared by: Denise Barron
Date: 3.10.2020

Bill To = o Invoice Summary ~
City of La Vista Account # 1953
Crystal Larson PO N/A
Phone: 402-593-6424 Invoice # 6659
Email: clarson@cityoflavista.org Due Date  3/31/20
Description of Services -~ ... - Amount
Extension
Final Payment $10,375.00
Amount Due: $10,375.00

Always a pleasure doing business with you. W

Note: A minimum delinquent fee of 1.5% may be charged on invoices 30 days or more past due.

There is a 3% processing fee for credit card payments.

Ccmwd A‘JW 4/7/W

>



MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORT

CiTYy OF LA VISTA

APRIL 7, 2020 AGENDA

ITEM A’_lg

Subject:

Type:

Submitted By:

APPOINTMENT OF SAFETY STEERING
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

2 RESOLUTION
ORDINANCE
RECEIVE/FILE

JEFF SINNETT

CHIEF BLDG. OFFICIAL/SAFETY
STEERING COMMITTEE
CHAIRPERSON

SYNOPSIS

A resolution has been prepared in reference to the appointment of selected personnel to the La Vista Safety
Steering Committee.

FISCAL IMPACT

N/A

RECOMMENDATION

Approval

BACKGROUND

In accordance with the provision of state law 48-443, the Safety Steering Committee is comprised of an equal
number of representatives for the Employer and the Employees. 1t is intended that the committee represent a
diverse cross-section of city departments and employees. We have member terms expiring the end of April 2020.

I recommend the appointment of these individuals to a 2 year term:

Todd Armbrust
Randy Trail
Ryan South
Terry Foster
Jean Hurst

Other members of the Safety Steering Committee include:

Jeff Sinnett
Pam Buethe
Brian Burke
James Berger

Employer Representative
Employer Representative
Employee Representative
Employee Representative
Ex-Officio (Non-Voting)

Employer Representative (Chairman)

Employer Representative
Employee Representative

Employee Representative (FOP)

Bill Bowes (Fire) Ex-Officio (Non-Voting)

2 year term through 4/2022
2 year term through 4/2022
2 year term through 4/2022
2 year term through 4/2022
2 year term through 4/2022

2 year term through 4/2021
2 year term through 4/2021
2 year term through 4/2021
2 year term through 4/2021

K \APPS\City HallNCNCLRPT (Blue Letters)\20file\20 ADM Appomtment of Safety Steering Committee Members 04 07 2020 doc



RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LA VISTA,
NEBRASKA PROVIDING FOR THE APPOINTMENT OF SAFETY STEERING COMMITTEE
MEMBERS.

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of La Vista has determined that appointments to the
La Vista Safety Steering Committee are necessary; and

WHEREAS, a recommendation by the City Administrator, in consultation with the staff, has
been made regarding appointments; and

WHEREAS, the recommended appointments comply with N.R.S. 48-443:
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council of the City of La Vista,

Nebraska, do hereby appoint the following city employees to the La Vista Safety
Steering Committee for the terms specified:

Todd Armbrust Employer Representative 2 year term through 4/2022
Randy Trail Employer Representative 2 year term through 4/2022
Ryan South Employee Representative 2 year term through 4/2022
Terry Foster Employee Representative 2 year term through 4/2022
Jean Hurst Ex-Officio (Non-Voting) 2 year term through 4/2022

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 7TH DAY OF APRIL 2020.

CITY OF LA VISTA

Douglas Kindig, Mayor
ATTEST:

Pamela A. Buethe, CMC
City Clerk

KV\APPS\City Hall\20 FINAL RESOLUTIONS\20  Appointment of
Safety Steenng Committee Members 04 07 2020 docx



Council

City of La Vista Policy
Council Policy Statement 1 1 8

City Safety Committee Structure

The purpose of this policy will be to define the organization, responsibilities, and tenure of
the members of the City of La Vista Safety Committee.

Organization
The committee will be organized as follows:

1. Four of the eight members of the Committee shall be representative from each of
the City’s bargaining groups and non-bargaining personnel. In accordance with the
provisions of Nebraska Revised Statute 48-443, which requires the Committee be
comprised of an equal number of representatives for the Employer and the
Employees. The Employer representatives can be from any management level and
may include non-management employees if so desired as determined by the
Directors of the various City departments who submit the names of individuals who
are interested in serving on the Safety Committee. It is intended that the committee
represents a diverse cross-section of all City departments and employees.

2. The names of all Committee members shall be made available to all City employees.

3. The initial terms of the members of the Safety Committee shall be staggered so that
four members are appointed for a two-year term and four members are appointed
for a three-year term beginning on April 15, 2008. Thereafter, all members of the
Committee shall be appointed for a two-year term.

4, The Committee shall select a Chair and a Vice-Chair from its membership who shall
serve for terms of two years unless otherwise provided for as determined by the
members of the Committee.

5. An employee of the City shall serve as an ex-officio, non-voting member of the
Committee for purposes of coordinating the meetings of the Committee; maintaining
all records of Committee meetings; handling correspondence pertaining to the
Committee; maintaining accurate minutes of all meeting transactions and providing
copies of minutes to each Committee member; assisting the Chair in planning
Committee meetings; establishing an agenda for each meeting; and providing any
other administrative assistance required by the Chair or Vice-Chair. This person
must be competent in the use of Microsoft Word and Outlook. The ex-officio member
shall be appointed for a two-year term.

6. A representative of the Fire and Rescue Department serving the City of La Vista
shall serve as an ex-officio, non-voting member of the Committee for purposes of
working with the Safety Committee to help insure all responsibilities of the Safety
Committee are carried out.

7. The specific responsibilities of the Safety Committee shall consist of the following:

City Safety Committee Structure-118
Adopted: April 15, 2008
Amended: March 4, 2014
Resolution No: 08-037, 14-024



City of La Vista

Council Policy Statement

City Safety Committee Structure

A In accordance with state law, the Committee shall adopt and maintain an
effective written injury prevention program;

B The Committee shall actively engage in promoting safety at all work sites
throughout the City;

C. The Committee shall make recommendations regarding methods of
addressing safety and health at work sites throughout the City;

D The Committee chair or vice-chair shall accompany a representative of

the State of Nebraska Department of Labor during any safety inspections
conducted by the Department of Labor in accordance with the terms of
Nebraska Revised Statute 48-443 or the Department of Labor rules and
regulations promulgated to those statutory provisions;

E. The Committee shall assist in the investigation of unsafe practices or

conditions which are brought to the attention of the Committee and

provide recommendations with respect to preventing reoccurrences of
such practices;

The Committee shall facilitate the safety inspections of City facilities.

Committee members upon request shall serve on any subcommittee

which is created by the Safety Committee to study specific areas of

concern relative to safety concerns and accident prevention;

H. Committee members shall review accident/injury reports and records
and, if appropriate, make recommendations regarding methods to
prevent the occurrence of future accidents/injuries;

I Committee members should take all reasonable measures to attend a
meeting and if unavailable, shall request an excused absence.

J. Committee members shall perform any other duties and assignments
deemed necessary by the body as a whole.

@m

8. The Safety Committee shall meet quarterly (January, April, July, October) on the
second Tuesday of the month at 9:00 am at the La Vista Police Station.

9. The Chair of the Safety Committee shall be responsible for conducting all Committee
meetings in an orderly and businesslike manner; encourage suggestions to improve
workplace safety; have a good working knowledge of City safety policies and
procedures; and provide for meetings of the Safety Committee on a quarterly basis
or as otherwise directed by the body as a whole. In the event the Chair is unable to
attend a meeting, the Vice-Chair will conduct the meeting in his or her absence.

10. The Committee Chair and Vice-Chair should be selected from the members of the
Committee as soon after the Committee members’ terms commence on or about
April 15, 2008.

11. The Committee may adopt any formal written rules of procedure for the conduct of
its business and proceedings as it deems appropriate.

City Safety Committee Structure -118
Adopted: April 15, 2008
Amended: March 4, 2014
Resolution No: 08-037, 14-024
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DB: La Vista
Check # Check Date Vendor Name Amount Voided
131945 03/18/2020 OMAHA PUBLIC POWER DISTRICT 46,799.98 N
131948 03/18/2020 LAUSTEN JR ROBERT S 4,200.00 N
131949 03/18/2020 TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES 138.00 N
131950 03/18/2020 LA VISTA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 60.00 N
131951 03/18/2020 COMP CHOICE INC 409.00 N
131952 03/18/2020 BISHOP BUSINESS EQUIPMENT COMPA 66.67 N
131953 03/18/2020 UNITE PRIVATE NETWORKS LLC 4,400.00 N
131954 03/18/2020 GREATAMERICA FINANCIAL SERVICES 1,127.00 N
131955 03/18/2020 CHARLES E. TOSTENSON III 3,000.00 N
131956 03/18/2020 OMAHA PUBLIC POWER DISTRICT 1,761.95 N
131957 03/18/2020 OLSSON, INC. 6,714.25 N
131958 03/18/2020 RDG PLANNING & DESIGN 599192 N
131959 04/07/2020 PAPER ROLL PRODUCTS 71.95 N
131960 04/07/2020 SUBURBAN NEWSPAPERS INC 2,798.41 N
131961 04/07/2020 DEMCO INCORPORATED 121.67 N
131962 04/07/2020 FITZGERALD SCHORR BARMETTLER 34,236.40 N
131963 04/07/2020 DXP ENTERPRISES INC 116.00 N
131964 04/07/2020 GRAINGER 86.06 N
131965 04/07/2020 OMNI ENGINEERING 252.45 N
131966 04/07/2020 SARPY COUNTY LANDFILL 25.00 N
131967 04/07/2020 OMAHA PUBLIC POWER DISTRICT 2,350.76 N
131968 04/07/2020 BLACK HILLS ENERGY 450643 N
131969 04/07/2020 CENTURY UNK 464.58 N
131970 04/07/2020 COMFORT INN-KEARNEY 599.70 N
131971 04/07/2020 THE CHILD'S WORLD, INC. 1,192.20 N
131972 04/07/2020 TED'S MOWER SALES & SERVICE INC 1,092.26 N
131973 04/07/2020 UNITED SEEDS INCORPORATED 210.00 N
131974 04/07/2020 GRAYBAR ELECTRIC COMPANY INC 258.07 N
131975 04/07/2020 CITY OF PAPILLION 7,207.39 N
131976 04/07/2020 CITY OF PAPILLION 188,687.00 N
131977 04/07/2020 KEVIN JONES 900.00 N
131978 04/07/2020 NEBRASKA LAW ENFORCEMENT 30.00 N
131979 04/07/2020 JOHNSON HARDWARE COMPANY LLC 19.68 N
131980 04/07/2020 DH WIRELESS SOLUTIONS 1,477.47 N
131981 04/07/2020 HANEY SHOE STORE 101.99 N
131982 04/07/2020 NMC EXCHANGE LLC 23793 N
131983 04/07/2020 BS&A SOFTWARE 5,785.00 N
131984 04/07/2020 JOHNSON CONTROLS FIRE PROTECTIO 677.84 N
131985 04/07/2020 CONTROL MASTERS INCORPORATED 145.00 N
131986 04/07/2020 METROPOLTAN UTILTIES DISTRICT 2,059.43 N
131989 04/07/2020 SOUTHERN UNIFORM & EQUIPMENT 294.00 N
131990 04/07/2020 DELL MARKETING L.P. 179.08 N
131991 04/07/2020 CULLIGAN OF OMAHA 4450 N
131992 04/07/2020 SIGN IT 1,009.80 N
131993 04/07/2020 VERIZON WIRELESS 500.39 N
131994 04/07/2020 MOBOTREX, INC. 430.00 N
131995 04/07/2020 CORNHUSKER INTL TRUCKS INC 722.89 N
131996 04/07/2020 METROPOLITAN COMMUNITY COLLEG 10,755.72 N
131997 04/07/2020 MATHESON TRI-GAS INC 510.14 N
131998 04/07/2020 LIBRA INDUSTRIES INC 500.00 N
131999 04/07/2020  GENUINE PARTS COMPANY-OMAHA 1,547.12 N
132000 04/07/2020 GREY HOUSE PUBLISHING 597.50 N
132001 04/07/2020 OFFICE DEPOT INC 1,645.37 N
132002 04/07/2020 WALMART COMMUNITY BRC 1,061.85 N
132003 04/07/2020 GALE 1,029.88 N
132004 04/07/2020 MIDLANDS LIGHTING & ELECTRIC SUP 398.28 N
132005 04/07/2020 HY-VEE INC 53.64 N
132006 04/07/2020 ASPEN EQUIPMENT COMPANY 44927 N
132007 04/07/2020 PAY-LESS OFFICE PRODUCTS INC 200.10 N
132008 04/07/2020 OCLCINC 32242 N
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Check # Check Date Vendor Name Amount Voided
132009 04/07/2020 PETTY CASH-PAM BUETHE 45947 N
132010 04/07/2020 MILLARD METAL SERVICES INC 167.00 N
132011 04/07/2020 COX COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 294.13 N
132012 04/07/2020 CENTER POINT, INC. 408.66 N
132013 04/07/2020 MIDWEST TAPE 10473 N
132014 04/07/2020 INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES 1,385.16 N
132016 04/07/2020 KRIHA FLUID POWER CO INC 71.92 N
132017 04/07/2020 UNITED PARCEL SERVICE 23.10 N
132018 04/07/2020 CENTURY LINK BUSN SVCS 160.34 N
132019 04/07/2020 MSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO 228.60 N
132020 04/07/2020 BOBCAT OF OMAHA 295.00 N
132021 04/07/2020 TRADE WELL PALLET INC 405.00 N
132022 04/07/2020 RUHGE, RANDY 1,500.00 N
132024 04/07/2020 EBSCO INFORMATION SERVICES 3,018.30 N
132025 04/07/2020 RECORDED BOOKS, INC 1,677.96 N
132026 04/07/2020 WHITE CAP CONSTR SUPPLY/HDS 51.47 N
132027 04/07/2020 FASTENAL COMPANY 65.74 N
132028 04/07/2020 EDGEWEAR SCREEN PRINTING 73.60 N
132029 04/07/2020 DASH MEDICAL GLOVES 71.90 N
132030 04/07/2020 FEDEX 25.48 N
132031 04/07/2020 SID DILLON WAHOO INC 72,772.00 N
132032 04/07/2020 INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL 200.85 N
132033 04/07/2020 GENERAL FIRE & SAFETY EQUIP CO 89.00 N
132034 04/07/2020 ODEYS INCORPORATED 2,716.90 N
132035 04/07/2020 SECURITY EQUIPMENT INC. 169.00 N
132036 04/07/2020 BIBLIONIX LLC 4,465.00 N
132037 04/07/2020 SOLBERG, CHRISTOPHER 201.25 N
132038 04/07/2020 LARSEN SUPPLY COMPANY 1,399.86 N
132039 04/07/2020 FAC PRINT & PROMO COMPANY 34450 N
132040 04/07/2020 LOGO LOGIX EMBROIDERY & SCREEN 196.00 N
132041 04/07/2020 SUBSURFACE SOLUTIONS 240.00 N
132042 04/07/2020 MAPLE 85 14,975.10 N
132046 04/07/2020 BISHOP BUSINESS EQUIPMENT 405.17 N
132047 04/07/2020 LIBRARY IDEAS LLC 967.30 N
132048 04/07/2020 COLIBRI SYSTEMS NORTH AMER INC 1,351.28 N
132049 04/07/2020 CONTINENTAL RESEARCH CORPORATI 383.05 N
132050 04/07/2020 WOODHOUSE LINCLN-MAZDA-PORSC 548.63 N
132051 04/07/2020 D & K PRODUCTS 915.00 N
132052 04/07/2020 TRANS UNION RISK AND ALT. DATA'S 50.00 N
132054 04/07/2020 DATASHIELD CORPORATION 20.00 N
132055 04/07/2020 WESTLAKE HARDWARE INC NE-022 39.99 N
132056 04/07/2020 WESTLAKE HARDWARE INC NE-022 635.93 N
132057 04/07/2020 ROWMAN & LITTLEFIELD PUBLISHING 4797 N
132058 04/07/2020 CCH INCORPQRATED 1,215.00 N
132059 04/07/2020 DONALD B EIKMEIER 750.00 N
132060 04/07/2020 MID-WEST MILITARY REAL ESTATE, LLC 40.00 N
132061 04/07/2020 AT&T MOBILITY LLC 93.78 N
132062 04/07/2020 CINTAS CORPORTATION 44432 N
132063 04/07/2020 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC. 768.54 N
132064 04/07/2020 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC. 67.43 N
132065 04/07/2020 PER MAR SECURITY SERVICES 828.24 N
132066 04/07/2020 BERGANKDV LLC 2,350.00 N
132067 04/07/2020 HERRICK, ANGELA DAWN 40.00 N
132068 04/07/2020 KANOPY, INC. 39.00 N
132069 04/07/2020 NEBRASKA STATE PATROL 2,319.00 N
132070 04/07/2020 IGM TECHNOLOGY CORP. 19,796.00 N
132071 04/07/2020 WELLINGTON EXPERIENCE, INC. 372.50 N
132072 04/07/2020 SIGN-O-VATION, INC. 25.00 N
132074 04/07/2020 THE HARRY A KOCH COMPANY 214,467.75 N
132075 04/07/2020 DIAMOND VOGEL 60.27 N
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132076 04/07/2020 BIZCO, INC. 2,953.19 N
132077 04/07/2020 FOUNTAIN, BRUCE 201.25 N
132078 04/07/2020 POSITIVE CONCEPTS/ATPI 413.82 N
132079 04/07/2020 STURGIS WEB SERVICES 2,000.00 N
132080 04/07/2020 LILLY JOHNSON 40.00 N
132081 04/07/2020 BOBETTE JONES 5.00 N
132082 04/07/2020 RON & BRIDGET SHEEHAN 10.00 N
132083 04/07/2020 CAROL KOLB 10.00 N
132084 04/07/2020 CHERYL HELLER 5.00 N
132085 04/07/2020 CYNTHIA PRILL 5.00 N
132086 04/07/2020 CONNIE BRAY 5.00 N
132087 04/07/2020 CONNIE TWOHIG 5.00 N
132088 04/07/2020 ELAINE WESTBROOK 10.00 N
132089 04/07/2020 ELDON PAPE 10.00 N
132090 04/07/2020 GARY ROTH 5.00 N
132091 04/07/2020 GAYLE MAREK 15.00 N
132092 04/07/2020 GINGER MILLER 5.00 N
132093 04/07/2020 KAREN PETERSEN 5.00 N
132094 04/07/2020 KATHLEEN SMITH 5.00 N
132095 04/07/2020 LAIMA RICCERI 10.00 N
132096 04/07/2020 LANA POLITANO 5.00 N
132097 04/07/2020 LARRY SELL 10.00 N
132098 04/07/2020 MIKE GREVE 5.00 N
132099 04/07/2020 PAT LEVENE 5.00 N
132100 04/07/2020 SHARRON BAILEY 10.00 N
132101 04/07/2020 WM. NEWINGHAM 10.00 N
132102 04/07/2020 FRANCES WIENEKE 5.00 N
132103 04/07/2020 THERESA MADEIROS 10.00 N
132104 04/07/2020 ERIN BURGER 72.00 N
132105 04/07/2020 YANGIU DONG 106.00 N
132106 04/07/2020 ABM INDUSTRIES, INC 38,264.50 N
132107 04/07/2020 BISHOP BUSINESS EQUIPMENT COMPA 1,902.19 N
132108 04/07/2020 CPS HUMAN RESOURCE SERVICES 711.00 N
132109 04/07/2020 MENARDS-RALSTON 372.31 N
TOTAL: 757,135.82
APPROVED BY COUNCIL MEMBERS ON: 04/07/2020
COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER
COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER

COUNCIL MEMBER



ITEM

CITY OF LA VISTA
MAYOR AND CiTY COUNCIL REPORT
APRIL 7, 2020 AGENDA

Subject: Type: Submitted By:
FY 2018/2019 AUDITED

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL 4 RESOLUTION

FINANCIAL REPORT — ORDINANCE CINDY MISEREZ
BKD, LLP RECEIVE/FILE FINANCE DIRECTOR
SYNOPSIS

A resolution has been prepared to accept the audited Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the
twelve months ending September 30, 2019. The Council will also be accepting the audited Financial Report for
the Economic Development Fund — LB840.

FISCAL IMPACT

N/A.

RECOMMENDATION

Approval.

BACKGROUND

This report marks the first Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) issued by the City. The CAFR, while
facilitating transparency and full disclosure, goes beyond the minimum requirements of generally accepted
accounting principles to not only assess the financial health of the City but to ensure that users of the financial
statements have the information they need to do so themselves.

The Transmittal Letter gives the reader background on the City. The Management Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A) explains the year’s financial results. The Statistical Section provides trend information to indicate how
the City’s financial performance and position have changed over time and provides context for information
provided in the Financial Section.

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) sponsors a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting Program (CAFR Program). The City plans to submit this CAFR for that consideration.

The certified public accountants, BKD, LLP have submitted to the City their Independent Auditor’s Report on the
Financial Statements and Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. The auditor’s reports state that
the City’s financial statements were tested and present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
City and disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

K:\APPS\City HalNCNCLRPT (Blue Letters)\20file\20 ADM FY18-19 Audit CAFR 04.07.2020.Docx




RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LA VISTA, NEBRASKA
APPROVING THE FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019 MUNICIPAL AUDIT AS PREPARED BY THE
AUDITING FIRM OF BKD, LLP, OMAHA, NEBRASKA.

WHEREAS, the City of La Vista has contracted with the firm of BKD, LLP, Omaha, Nebraska, to
complete an audit of the City’s fiscal year 2018-2019 municipal operations; and

WHEREAS, BKD, LLP has completed said audit and provided copies of their findings.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council of La Vista, Nebraska,
that the 2018-2019 municipal audit is hereby accepted and approved.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 7TH DAY OF APRIL 2020.

CITY OF LA VISTA

Douglas Kindig, Mayor

ATTEST:

Pamela A. Buethe, CMC
City Clerk

K:\APPS\City Hall\20 FINAL RESOLUTIONS\20. FY18-19 Audit 04.07.2020.Docx
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March 31, 2020

Honorable Mayor, City Council,
And The Citizens of La Vista, Nebraska

The inaugural Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of La Vista, Nebraska (the
“City,” “La Vista,” or “City of La Vista”) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019 is hereby
submitted. State law requires cities to issue, within six months of fiscal year end, a set of
audited financial statements. This report fulfills this requirement for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2019.

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the completeness and fairness of the
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management. In developing and
evaluating the City’s accounting system, consideration is given to the adequacy of internal
accounting controls. Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance regarding the safeguarding of assets against loss, theft, or misuse, and
to ensure the reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) and
maintaining accountability of assets. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that
(1) the cost of control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation
of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgements by management.

As a recipient of federal, state, and local financial assistance, the City is also responsible for
ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure and document
compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to these programs.

To the best of management’s knowledge and belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all
material respects and reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position
and financial activities of the City. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an
understanding of the government’s financial activities as specified by all currently effective
statements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board have been included.

The City’s financial statements have been audited by BKD, LLP, a firm of licensed certified
public accountants. The goal of the independent audit is to provide reasonable assurance
that the financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019, are
free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon
the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified (“clean”) opinion
that the City’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019, are fairly
presented in accordance with general accepted accounting principles (“‘GAAP”). The
independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of this report.

Generally accepted accounting principles require that management provide a narrative
introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form
of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”). This letter of transmittal is designed to
complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City’'s MD&A can be
found in the Financial Section immediately following the Independent Auditor’s Report.

CITY PROFILE

Located on the northern edge of Sarpy County, in the Greater Omaha Combined Statistical
Area (CSA), La Vista is the “youngest” city in the State of Nebraska, incorporated in 1960.
From modest beginnings as a subdivision of 335 homes platted on 80 acres of land and a
population of 1,360, La Vista has grown to become a dynamic and progressive community
of over 18,000 and one of the fastest growing cities in Nebraska. La Vista is bordered by the

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019
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cities of Omaha and Ralston on the north, Papillion on the south, Bellevue on the east and
by Interstate 80 on the west.

La Vista is a friendly community, offering both the advantages of a small town and the
opportunities of a large city. Its inviting neighborhoods feature well-kept homes abutting tree-
lined streets, and its commercial and industrial districts are undergoing impressive
development and redevelopment. City leaders and citizens have a progressive vision for
La Vista that started with its incorporation over 60 years ago. La Vista offers an exceptional
quality of life in a great suburban environment. The people who live and work in La Vista are
truly proud of their community. The community embraces a forward-thinking plan for future
growth and is able to attract and retain diverse businesses and highly skilled residents as a
result of the City’s solid infrastructure and convenient location. It has become home to a
number of market leading businesses because of its location and the commitment of its
elected officials to envision the City’s future in partnership with its corporate citizens.

The City of La Vista operates under the Mayor-Council form of government. The Mayor is
elected at large to a four-year term, and eight City Council members are elected from four
dual-member wards to staggered four-year terms. The Mayor, with confirmation from the City
Council, appoints a professional City Administrator and certain other officials as provided in
the La Vista Municipal Code. The City Administrator manages the day-to-day operations of
the City, which is organized into the following function areas: Public Safety, Public Works,
Community Services, and Administrative Services, which are managed by four senior
directors.

LOCAL ECONOMY

La Vista’s corporate community includes Oath (Yahoo!), PayPal, Streck Laboratories,
Oriental Trading Co., Cabela’s, Inc., Costco, Rotella’s and Securities America, among many
others. Southport, the City’s regional destination development located near the Interstate 80
Interchange at Harrison & Giles on the western edge of the City, features a full-service
Embassy Suites Hotel and the La Vista Conference Center, and select-service hotels which
include Courtyard by Marriott, Hampton Inn & Suites, and Comfort Suites, in addition to a
growing compliment of retail and office users. In all, Southport contains more than 600 hotel
rooms.

La Vista’s diverse and high quality housing stock provides a wide range of residential options.
With 17 parks, a premier 62-acre sports complex, swimming pool, community center, youth
and senior recreation programs, and an outstanding public library, leisure time opportunities
abound.

Elementary and secondary education is provided through the Papillion La Vista Community
Schools, the fourth largest school district in the State, and the Omaha Catholic Archdiocese,
which operates schools in adjoining Ralston and Papillion. Pre-kindergarten education is
available through the private Primrose Academy and two Montessori Schools.

La Vista residents enjoy exceptional higher education opportunities as well. The University
of Nebraska at Omaha (UNO), Creighton University and Bellevue University are easily
accessible locally. Metro Community College’s Sarpy Center is located in La Vista, and the
University of Nebraska at Lincoln is only 45 minutes away. The overall quality of life in the
City of La Vista was rated as “excellent” or “good” by 90% of respondents to the 2020 National
Citizen Survey. 94% of respondents reported that they plan to remain in La Vista for the next
five years.
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LONG-RANGE FINANCIAL PLANNING

On September 20, 2011 the City Council approved a General Fund Cash Reserve Policy to
ensure that the General Fund Reserve balance is accumulated and maintained to protect the
stability of tax rates, fiscal solvency, and creditworthiness of the City. The policy establishes
a reserve up to 25% of the year’s General Fund operating expenditure budget. Based on the
fiscal 2019 budget and the unassigned cash balance in the General Fund at September 30,
2019, the operating cash reserve percentage is 47%. The excess reserve primarily relates
to the state sales and use tax reserve associated with the State of Nebraska economic
development incentive programs.

The City maintains a five-year Capital Improvement Program to establish a proactive
approach to sustain and improve the community’s infrastructure. The Plan is updated
annually in conjunction with the budget process. The plan establishes priorities and funding
of capital investments, which the City of La Vista should make to assure its continued
economic viability and to protect public health and safety. The first and second years of the
plan are adopted as the capital budget.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

Corridor 84 is a major redevelopment project currently underway along a major north-south
corridor in the heart of the City. A private developer is constructing a mixed-use district
consisting of residential, commercial/retail, office and entertainment components, along with
a state-of-the-art indoor/outdoor performance and entertainment venue. This area has been
named City Centre. In conjunction with this project, the City is constructing public
infrastructure that supports the development including streets, sewers, parking facilities and
public plaza spaces. The City is also transforming what was an adjacent golf course into a
regional recreation area that includes a large lake, restrooms, shelters, trails, and other
amenities. Additional corridor improvements include a bridge and pedestrian underpass to
connect the east and west sides of the community; and streetscape improvements that will
integrate pedestrian pathways, lighting, landscaping and signage improvements to clearly
identify the La Vista community. The City’s infrastructure projects are included in the five-
year Capital Improvement Program (CIP) and long-range operational needs such as staffing
and maintenance are ongoing discussions and budget considerations.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

The Honorable Major and City Council
City of La Vista, Nebraska

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, and each major fund of the City of La Vista, Nebraska (City of La Vista) as of and for the year
ended September 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the City of La Vista’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and each major fund
of the City of La Vista, as of September 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position and,
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information as listed in the table of contents be presented
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing
the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City's basic financial statements. The budgetary comparison schedules and the introductory
and statistical sections, as listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The budgetary comparison schedules and the introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we also have issued our report dated March 31, 2020,
on our consideration of the City of La Vista’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City of La Vista’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the City of La Vista's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

BED L

Omaha, Nebraska
March 31, 2020
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,
2019

This section of the City of La Vista, Nebraska (The “City” or “City of La Vista”) comprehensive annual financial report
offers readers of the City’s financial statements a narrative overview and analysis of the City’s financial activities as a

whole for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019. Please consider this discussion in conjunction with the additional
information provided in the Letter of Transmittal and the activities reflected in the City’s financial statements.

Financial Highlights

e The assets and deferred outflows of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at
September 30, 2019, by $61.2 million. Of this amount, $13.2 million is unrestricted and may be used to meet
the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

e The City’s total net position increased by $4.7 million, or 8.2% from the prior year. Of this amount, $4.0
million, or 86%, is related to governmental activities and $0.7 million, or 14%, is related to business-type
activities.

e As of September 30, 2019, the unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $7.8 million or 47%
of total operating General Fund expenditures. As of September 30, 2018 the corresponding fund balance
amount was $6.8 million or 43% of total operating General Fund expenditures.

e The City’s total bonded debt decreased by $4.1 million, or 8.7% during the current fiscal year.
e As of September 30, 2019, the City’s general obligation bond rating from Moody’s Investor Service is Aa3.
e The City’s cash balance as of September 30, 2019, is $15,643,683.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The City’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles established by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”).

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements. The City’s
basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial
statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.

The basic financial statements include two kinds of statements which present different views of the City.

e The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both long-term and short-
term information about the City’s overall financial status.

e The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the City government,
reporting the City’s operations in more detail than the government-wide statements.

o The governmental fund statements indicate how general governmental services such as public safety
were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending.

o Proprietary fund statements offer short and long-term financial information about the activities the
government operates like businesses, such as the sewer system.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial statements and
provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information and
other supplementary information which include fund budgetary comparisons. These statements further explain and
support the information in the financial statements.

Government-Wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the City as a whole using accounting methods similar to
those used by private-sector companies. The Statement of Net Position includes all the government’s assets and
liabilities. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Activities regardless
of when cash is received or paid.

The two government-wide statements on pages 20 and 21 report the City’s net position and how they have changed.

The Statement of Net Position presents the difference between the City’s assets and deferred outflows of resources
and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources.

e Over time, increases or decreases in the City’s net position are an indicator of whether its financial health
is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

e To assess the overall health of the City one needs to consider additional non-financial factors such as
changes in the City’s property tax base and the condition of the City’s capital assets.
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e The City’s certified valuation for fiscal year 2019 was $1,542,141,658 compared to $1,496,821,908 for fiscal
year 2018. This equates to a 3.0% increase in overall valuation. The County Assessor’s certified growth for
fiscal year 2019 was $11.8 million which reflects growth in new construction.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event of the change
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. This is the accrual basis of accounting. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal months (e.g.,
uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

The government-wide financial statements of the City are divided into two categories:

e Governmental activities - Most of the City’s basic services are included here. This includes police, streets,
fire, library, planning, building inspection, parks, recreation departments, and general administration. Property
and sales taxes, charges for services, and state and federal grants finance most of these activities.

e Business-type activities - The City charges fees to customers to help it cover the costs of certain services it
provides. The City’s sewer system is currently the only business type activity.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City’s funds - not the City as a whole.
Funds are accounting devices that the City uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending for
particular purposes.

e Some funds are required by state law and bond covenants.
e The City Council establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes.
The City has two types of funds:

Governmental Funds - Most of the City’s basic services are included in governmental funds, which focus on (1)
how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash and (2) the balances left at year-end that
are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view
which helps determine whether there are greater or fewer financial resources which can be spent in the near future
to finance the City’s programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the
government-wide statements, a reconciliation to the Statement of Activities is provided which explains the relationship
(or differences) between them. By comparing the governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements
the reader may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions.

Fund information is presented separately in the governmental fund Balance Sheet and in the governmental fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Statement.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 24 through 27 of this report.

The City adopts a biennial appropriated budget for all its funds. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided
for the General Fund, Keno Fund, and Police Academy Funds to demonstrate compliance with this budget. These
statements can be found on pages 48 through 50 of this report. For other legally adopted fund budgets, these
statements can be found on pages 54 through 57 of this report.

Proprietary funds - Services for which the City charges customers a fee are generally reported in proprietary funds.
Proprietary funds, like the government-wide statements, provide both long and short-term financial information. In
fact, the City’s enterprise fund (one type of proprietary fund) is the same as its business-type activities, but provide
more detail and additional information, such as a Statement of Cash Flows.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 28 through 30 of this report.
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-
wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 32 through 46 of
this report.

Required Supplementary Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required
supplementary information concerning the City’s 2019 budget information for various City funds. Required
supplementary information can be found on pages 48 through 50 of this report.
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Other Supplementary Information

This section contains legally adopted budget information for funds not previously included in the required supplementary
information. These schedules are found on pages 54 through 57 of this report.

Financial Analysis of the City as a Whole
Net Position

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the
case of the City, assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $61.2 million
at September 30, 2019.

The largest portion of the City’s net position (66.6%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. land, infrastructure,
buildings, machinery, and equipment) less any related outstanding debt to acquire those assets still outstanding.
The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for
future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted,
the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. Unrestricted net position may be used to meet the government’s ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors.

Condensed Statements of Net Position
September 30, 2019 and 2018

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Current and other assets $ 27,203454 $ 33,933,111 $ 3,981,066 $ 3,328,231 $ 31,184,520 $ 37,261,342
Capital assets 76,884,383 68,423,396 5,100,597 5,035,436 81,984,980 73,458,832
Total assets 104,087,837 102,356,507 9,081,663 8,363,667 113,169,500 110,720,174
Deferred outflows of resources 443,412 527,210 - - 443,412 527,210
Long-term liabilities 41,148,541 45,130,714 43,782 49,686 41,192,323 45,180,400
Other liabilities 10,107,251 8,465,894 1,160,192 1,108,298 11,267,443 9,574,192
Total liabilities 51,255,792 53,596,608 1,203,974 1,157,984 52,459,766 54,754,592
Deferred inflows of resources - - - - - -
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 35,719,808 32,292,598 5,005,395 5,035,436 40,725,203 37,328,034
Restricted 7,197,216 9,039,861 - - 7,197,216 9,039,861
Unrestricted 10,358,433 7,954,650 2,872,294 2,170,247 13,230,727 10,124,897
Total Net Position $ 53275457 $§ 49,287,109 $ 7,877,689 $ 7,205683 $ 61,153,146 $ 56,492,792

An additional portion of the City’s net position (11.8%) represents resources subject to external restrictions on their
use. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position (21.6%) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City reports positive balances in all three categories of net position, both for
the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities.

In addition to the General Fund departments listed on page 16, these funds are included in governmental activities
expenditures:

Expenditure Category Fund
General Government Debt Service Fund
Keno Fund (audit expenditures)
Public Safety Police Academy Fund
Community Betterment Keno Fund (remaining expenditures)

Community Development  Redevelopment Fund
Economic Development Fund

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019 11
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Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Revenues
Program revenues
Charges for services $ 2206116 $ 2,195101 $ 4,203,683 $ 3,959,894 6,409,799 $ 6,154,995
Operating grants & contributions 2,411,249 2,281,279 - - 2,411,249 2,281,279
Capital grants & contributions 1,014,391 - - - 1,014,391 -
General revenues
Property taxes 8,534,805 8,378,504 - - 8,534,805 8,378,504
Sales and use taxes 10,024,129 9,821,847 - - 10,024,129 9,821,847
State sales and use tax refunds (1,351,136) (414,404) - - (1,351,136) (414,404)
Occupation taxes 1,711,471 1,831,621 - - 1,711,471 1,831,621
Motor vehicle taxes 510,523 483,324 - - 510,523 483,324
Interest income 242,470 1,002,789 23,395 9,328 265,865 1,012,117
Miscellaneous 665,769 727,168 - - 665,769 727,168
Total Revenues 25,969,787 26,307,229 4,227,078 3,969,222 30,196,865 30,276,451
Expenditures
General government 4,038,516 4,033,942 - - 4,038,516 4,033,942
Public safety 7,605,607 7,132,385 - - 7,605,607 7,132,385
Public works 5,016,988 3,839,031 - - 5,016,988 3,839,031
Culture and recreation 2,699,851 2,975,688 - - 2,699,851 2,975,688
Community betterment 563,462 499,720 - - 563,462 499,720
Community development 707,573 1,235,141 - - 707,573 1,235,141
Interest on long-term debt 1,333,392 2,011,109 - - 1,333,392 2,011,109
Sewer - - 3,571,122 3,305,178 3,571,122 3,305,178
Total Expenses 21,965,389 21,727,016 3,571,122 3,305,178 25,536,511 25,032,194
Increase in Net Position Before
Transfers 4,004,398 4,580,213 655,956 664,044 4,660,354 5,244,257
Transfers (16,050) (23,528) 16,050 23,528 - -
Capital contributions - (125,197) - 125,197 - -
Transfer of capital assets - 33,447 - (33,447) - -
Total Transfers (16,050) (115,278) 16,050 115,278 - -
Increase in Net Position 3,988,348 4,464,935 672,006 779,322 4,660,354 5,244,257
Net position - beginning 49,287,109 44,822,174 7,205,683 6,426,361 56,492,792 51,248,535
Net position - ending $ 53275457 $ 49,287,109 $ 7,877689 $ 7,205683 $ 61,153,146 $ 56,492,792

Governmental Activities

Governmental activities increased the City’s net position by $4.0 million Key elements of the $575,815 year over
year decrease in net position activity are as follows:

e Operating grants and contributions increased $129,970 (5.7%) in fiscal year 2019 due to increased payments
in lieu of tax and highway allocation funds.

e Capital grants and contributions increased $1 million in fiscal year 2019, primarily due to reimbursement
from the State of Nebraska Department of Transportation of approximately $934,000.

e Property tax receipts increased $156,301 (1.9%) in fiscal year 2019 primarily due to a 3.0% increase in the

overall tax base.

e Gross sales tax receipts increased by $202,282 (2.1%) fiscal year 2019.

12

State sales and use tax refunds were $1 million higher in fiscal year 2019, reducing revenue. The Nebraska
Advantage Act allows eligible businesses refunds of their state sales and use tax payments.

Interest income decreased $760,319 in fiscal year 2019 due to the full principal payment of the Economic
Development Program Fund loan in fiscal year 2018.

Expenditures increased $238,373 in fiscal year 2019 primarily due to increased public works expenditures
to repair streets.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019
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Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities
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Business-Type Activities

Business type activities increased the City’s net position by $0.7 million, or 14% of the total growth in the net position
of the City.

The City Council accepted a sewer rate study which recommended increasing sewer use fees by an average of 5%.
The rate supports the City’s effort to create a capital replacement fund and meet the ongoing operations needed to
maintain the sewer system.

The City’s enterprise operations are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revenues and expenses are adjusted as
necessary to maintain an adequate amount of working capital. The City has decided to account for these activities
through the use of enterprise accounting to better identify the cost of the services and for better management control.

Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance related legal
requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances
of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements. In particular,
unassigned fund balance may serve as a measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the
end of the fiscal year. As the City completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of
$22.2 million. Of that fund balance, $7.8 million constitutes unassigned fund balance.
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The General Fund is the main operating fund of the City. At the end of fiscal year 2019, the unassigned fund balance
of the general fund was $7.8 million. As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both
unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. The City’s unassigned fund balance is
99% of the total fund balance. The unassigned fund balance represents 47% of the total 2019 governmental fund
expenditures. This exceeds the target fund balance reserve policy of maintaining a reserve of up to 25%. This
percentage of fund to expenditure ratio is important for the City to mitigate current and future risk, such as revenue
shortfalls or unanticipated expenditures in capital or maintenance needs of City infrastructure and facilities. In
addition, through the state’s Nebraska Advantage Act incentive program, the City may need to refund earned sales
taxes over several years into the future. To mitigate the revenue loss, the City maintains a reserve to offset these
refunds. This state sales and use tax reserve balance is $3.7 million. Excluding this amount from the general fund
reserve balance the reserve balance is 25% which represents three months of operating expense.

The Debt Service Fund provides for the servicing of bonded debt issued for governmental activities regarding the
general obligation bonds and notes from direct placements. At the end of the current fiscal year, the restricted fund
balance was $4.2 million which represents 108% of the scheduled principal and interest payments of the currently
issued general obligation bonds and notes from direct placements due in the next twelve months.

The Keno Fund is restricted for community betterment as defined by Nebraska State Statutes. At the end of the
fiscal year 2019, the restricted fund balance was $3.6 million which is a $324,612 increase from the prior year.
The increase is a result of lower than anticipated expenditures. The majority of current year revenue was used for
community events, such as Salute to Summer, Easter Egg Hunt, Halloween Safe Night and Holiday Tree Lighting.
Funds are also directed to strategic initiatives such as the City’s brand development, community surveys and other
strategic initiatives. These funds will continue to be used in the future for community betterment purposes as allowed
by the state.

The Capital Improvements Fund accounts for the City’s construction projects. The fund balance of $0.3 million is
restricted for various capital projects. The decrease from last year’s fund balance of $3.6 million is a result of a
parking garage construction located in City Centre.

The activity in the Economic Development Program Fund was minimal due to the close out of the existing grant in
fiscal year 2018. The fund balance is restricted for future grant activity.

The 84th Street Redevelopment Fund was created to track proceeds of the additional one-half percent sales and
use tax and related expenditures for public infrastructure projects or public purposes associated with redevelopment
of the 84th Street corridor. The Redevelopment Fund is not exclusive and other funds of the City may be involved
with respect to the 84th Street Redevelopment Area. At the end of the current fiscal year, the restricted fund balance
was $6.1 million which is a $4.4 million decrease from one year ago. The decrease is a result of ongoing public
infrastructure construction activity. The tax revenue bond debt service is paid through the 84th Street Redevelopment
Fund.

The Sarpy-Douglas Law Enforcement Academy (SDLEA) is the primary activity of the Police Academy Fund. The
fund balance of $23,465 is restricted for SDLEA activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Significant variances between the general fund’'s actual revenues and expenditures (on the budgetary basis) and
the final amended budget are summarized as follows:

e Net sales tax revenue was under budget by $0.4 million resulting from two variances:
o Sales tax revenue was $1.4 million below budget.
o State sales and use tax refunds were $1.0 million below budget.
e General government activity was $603,676 below budget.
e Public works activity was $131,658 below budget.
o The Streets Department was $79,605 below budget.
e Public safety activity was $298,185 below budget.
o The Police Department was $270,632 below budget.
e Culture and recreation was $537,093 below budget.
o The Parks Department was $367,772 below budget.
The Community Development Department was $154,459 below budget.

The primary source of budget variance is due to open positions during a portion of the year and reduced utilization
of planned contracts. Over the course of the year, the City Council did not revise the City budget.
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General Fund Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)
Year Ended September 30, 2019

Original Budget Final Budget Actual
Revenues
Taxes $15,057,339 $15,057,339 $14,635,068
Charges for services 373,618 373,618 523,976
Other 3,004,584 3,004,584 3,040,599
Total 18,435,541 18,435,541 18,199,643
Expenditures, lapsed
encumbrances, and transfers 18,731,524 18,731,524 16,687,103
Changes in fund balance $ (295,983) $ (295,983) $ 1,512,540

General Fund Revenues - Actual

Miscellaneous: 0.8%

Interest income: 0.5% —
Charges for services: 2.9% \‘

Intergovernmental: 12.7% /\~ ~__— Property taxes: 40.9%
Licenses and permits: 2.9%

Motor vehicle taxes: 2.8%

Occupation taxes: 9.3%

/

General Fund Expenses - Actual

Sales and use taxes: 27.2%

State sales and use tax refunds : 1.2%/_\

— 4

/ General Government: 21.1%

Capital Outlay: 3.2% \ ( Debt Service: 1.2%
Community Development: 3.3% "

Culture and Recreation: 15.6%

Public Works: 13.7%

Public Safety: 40.7%

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019 15



/C|ty of La Vista’ Nebraska Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

The following departments are included in the General Fund Expense Categories Chart on
the prior page.

General Government Public Safety
Administration Police
Administrative Services Fire
Building Maintenance Animal Control
Information Technology Police Academy
Human Resources Culture and Recreation
Public Transportation Parks
Special Services Bus Recreation
Finance Sports Complex
Public Works Library
Public Works Administration Pool
Streets Community Development

Community Development

Proprietary Fund

Expense and Program Revenues - Business Type Activities

$6 000 000

$4 000 000

Values

$2 000 000

$0
Sewer

Income @ Expenses

The City’s Sewer Fund provides the same type of information found in the government-wide financial statements,
but in more detail.

The total proprietary fund unrestricted net position at the end of the year was $2.9 million. Factors concerning the
finances of this fund are addressed in the discussion of the City’s business-type activities.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

The City’s capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of September 30, 2019, equals $82.0
million (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes vehicles, furniture, land,
buildings, and system improvements, including construction-in-progress, machinery and equipment, park facilities,
utility systems, roads, highways, and bridges. The net increase in the City’s capital assets for the current year was
$8.5 million. This is a 12% increase over the prior year, resulting from new asset purchases being greater than the
depreciation of assets. This is an increase of 12% for governmental activities and an increase of 1% for business
type activities.
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Capital Assets (net of depreciations)
September 30, 2019 and 2018

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Land $ 15,609,324 $ 15,609,324 $ 9,524 $ 9,524 $ 15,618,848 $ 15,618,848
Buildings 10,617,438 6,559,140 - - 10,617,438 6,559,140
Improvements/Infrastructure 30,598,233 30,412,095 - - 30,598,233 30,412,095
Equipment/Furniture/Vehicles 3,328,144 3,238,791 722,106 627,129 4,050,250 3,865,920
Sewer line system - - 4,241,085 4,398,783 4,241,085 4,398,783
Construction in progress 16,731,244 12,604,046 127,882 - 16,859,126 12,604,046
Total $ 76,884,383 $§ 68423396 $ 5100597 $ 5035436 $ 81,984,980 $ 73,458,832

Maijor Capital Asset events during 2019 include the following
e One-and-Six Year Road Plan improvements, including:

o 84th Street from Harrison Street to Giles Road was resurfaced with a new asphalt overlay for $1.6 million.
The State of Nebraska was billed for $934,000.

o A new asphalt overlay on Park View Boulevard from 72nd Street to 84th Street and Brentwood Drive
from 84th to 87th Street was installed. The amount expended was $832,000.

e City Centre Public Improvements:
o A $3.7 million parking garage was constructed.

o Public infrastructure improvements including streets, sewer, and utilities amounted to $2.6 million in
expenditures.

e Civic Center Park Phase 2 improvements which include a walking trail, lake, fountain, and utilities, amounts
to $2 million.

Additional Information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 7 of the notes to the financial statements
on pages 39 and 40 of this report.

Long Term Debt
At the end of fiscal year 2019, the City had total bonded debt outstanding of $43.2 million, all backed by the full faith
and credit of the government. The City made all scheduled payments.

Outstanding Bonded Debt
September 30, 2019 and 2018

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
General obligation bonds $ 22,075,000 $ 25,300,000 $ -8 - $§ 22,075,000 $ 25,300,000
Tax revenue bonds 18,065,000 18,560,000 - - 18,065,000 18,560,000
Notes from direct placements 2,810,000 3,150,000 - - 2,810,000 3,150,000
Premium/discount on bonds issued 247,341 285,118 - - 247,341 285,118
Total $ 43,197,341 $ 47,295,118 §$ -8 - $ 43,197,341 $§ 47,295,118

The City’s bonded debt decreased by 8.7% in fiscal year 2019. The net decrease of $4.1 million is a result of
scheduled payments towards the outstanding bonds.

The City maintains a Aa3 bond rating as issued by Moody’s Investors Service.

The City has notes payable direct borrowings of $362,605 related to capital equipment. These notes contain a
provision that in the event of default, outstanding amounts become immediately due if the City is unable to make
payment.

Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 8 on pages 40 through 42 of this report.
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget and Rates

While establishing fiscal year 2020’s budget, the focus is on the long-term future of the City, not simply a one-year
view. As a result of budgetary planning done in prior years, the City was able to prepare the fiscal 2020 budget
without an increase to the property tax levy.
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Revenues:

Gross sales and use tax continues to increase at a steady pace. Sales and use tax incentive refunds are
budgeted at $1.5 million in 2020. Net sales tax receipts in 2020 are projected at $9.4 million, which is a 1%
decrease from 2019 receipts of $9.5 million on a budget basis. This is due to higher sales and use tax refunds
in 2020. Gross sales and use tax receipts are estimated to increase 8.3% in 2020. Sales & use tax is 27% of
revenues for the General Fund on a budgetary basis and 33% of revenues on a governmental activity basis.

The City’s assessed property tax valuation for the year ending September 30, 2019, is $1,542,141,658 which
is 3.0% higher compared to the year ended September 30, 2018, due primarily to an increase in property
values within city limits. Property tax is a significant revenue source and accounts for approximately 33%
of General Fund revenues on a budgetary basis and 30% of revenues on a governmental activity basis.

A Restaurants and Drinking Places tax was approved by City Council on September 3, 2019. The City may
set the rate to collect up to $700,000 per fiscal year per state statute with periodic review of the rate.

A sewer rate study was completed in 2019 for the sewer system which recommended a 5% rate increase.
The rates became effective on October 1, 2019.

The City anticipated continued commercial build out of the 84th Street corridor and annexations to increase
future year’s sales tax and property tax revenue.

Expenditures:

The City has budgeted and expects to make significant expenditures for the following capital projects during
the next two fiscal years. Major projects are listed below:

2020 2021
Project Adopted Projection

City Hall Facility Improvements $ 150,000 $ 2,000,000
Giles Road Widening 512,000 2,484,000
66th Street Reconstruction 12,600 829,600
96th Street Panel Overlay 1,100,000 -
108th Street Asphalt Overlay 2,400,000 -
City Centre Drive 1,000,000 250,000
84th Street Underpass 500,000 2,000,000
Civic Center Park OPPD Line 2,100,000 -
84th Corridor Streetscape 2,500,000 2,500,000
East La Vista Sewer and Pavement Rehabilitation 50,000 3,800,000
Civic Center Park Phase 3 200,000 2,000,000
City Centre Parking #1 200,000 -
City Centre Parking #2 550,000 -
City Park Interface Improvements 3,350,000 2,000,000
Swimming Pool 500,000 6,000,000
Street Resurfacing #2 - 500,000
Resurface Edgewood and 78th Street - 900,000
Thompson Creek Channel and Trail 150,000 1,600,000

Total $ 15,274,600 $ 26,863,600

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all those with an interest.

Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information
should be addressed to the City Clerk’s Office, 8116 Park View Blvd La Vista, NE 68128.
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See Notes to the Financial Statements

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,968,065 $ 2,675,618 $ 15,643,683
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 5,631,679 - 5,631,679
Cash at County Treasurer 107,712 - 107,712
Certificates of deposit 2,060,674 257,539 2,318,213
Investments 2,979,247 504,791 3,484,038
Receivables 3,391,000 543,118 3,934,118
Prepaid items 65,077 - 65,077
Capital assets
Nondepreciable 32,340,568 137,406 32,477,974
Depreciable, net 44,543,815 4,963,191 49,507,006
Total assets 104,087,837 9,081,663 113,169,500
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred charge on refunding 443,412 - 443,412
Liabilities
Accounts payable 3,395,896 1,040,177 4,436,073
Accrued expenses 1,249,055 117,457 1,366,512
State sales and use tax refunds payable 1,351,136 - 1,351,136
Compensated absences
Payable within one year 167,369 2,558 169,927
Payable in more than one year 1,532,390 43,782 1,576,172
Notes payable
Due within one year 148,795 - 148,795
Due in more than one year 213,810 - 213,810
Bonds payable
Due within one year 3,795,000 - 3,795,000
Due in more than one year 39,402,341 - 39,402,341
Total liabilities 51,255,792 1,203,974 52,459,766
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 35,719,808 5,005,395 40,725,203
Restricted for community betterment 3,577,253 - 3,577,253
Restricted for debt service 3,596,498 - 3,596,498
Restricted for public safety 23,465 - 23,465
Unrestricted 10,358,433 2,872,294 13,230,727
Total net position $ 53275457 $ 7,877,689 $ 61,153,146

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019
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Statement of Activities
Year Ended September 30, 2019

Net Revenues (Expenses) and Changes in

Program Revenues Net Position
Operating Capital Business-
Charges for  Grants and Grants and  Governmental type
Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions Activities Activities Total
Primary Government
Governmental activities
General government $ 4,038,516 $ 530,210 $ 378,590 $ - $ (3,129,716) $ - $ (3,129,716)
Public safety 7,605,607 - 156,973 12,629 (7,436,005) - (7,436,005)
Public works 5,016,988 - 1,875,686 1,001,762 (2,139,540) - (2,139,540)
Culture and recreation 2,699,851 563,996 - - (2,135,855) - (2,135,855)
Community betterment 563,462 1,111,910 - - 548,448 - 548,448
Community development 707,573 - - - (707,573) - (707,573)
Interest on long-term debt 1,333,392 - - - (1,333,392) - (1,333,392)
Total governmental activities 21,965,389 2,206,116 2,411,249 1,014,391  (16,333,633) - (16,333,633)
Business-type activities
Sewer 3,571,122 4,203,683 - - - 632,561 632,561
Total business-type activities 3,571,122 4,203,683 - - - 632,561 632,561
Total Primary Government $25,536,511 $ 6,409,799 $§ 2411249 $§ 1,014,391 $(16,333,633) $ 632,561 $(15,701,072)
General Revenues
Property taxes 8,534,805 - 8,534,805
Sales and use taxes 10,024,129 - 10,024,129
State sales and use tax refunds (1,351,136) - (1,351,136)
Occupation taxes 1,711,471 - 1,711,471
Motor vehicle taxes 510,523 - 510,523
Interest income 242,470 23,395 265,865
Miscellaneous 665,769 - 665,769
Transfers (16,050) 16,050 -
Total general revenues and transfers 20,321,981 39,445 20,361,426
Change in Net Position 3,988,348 672,006 4,660,354
Net Position, Beginning of Year 49,287,109 7,205,683 56,492,792
Net Position, End of Year $ 53,275,457 $ 7,877,689 $ 61,153,146

See Notes to the Financial Statements
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Balance Sheet —
Governmental Funds
September 30, 2019

Capital Economic 84th Street Police Total
Debt Service Improvements Development Redevelopment Academy Governmental
General Fund Fund Keno Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5297654 $ 3,745148 §$ 380,434 $ 226,805 $ 7,043 $ 3,310,981 $ - $ 12,968,065
Restricted cash and cash
equivalents 131,146 - 72,333 2,133,821 - 3,270,824 23,555 5,631,679
Cash at County Treasurer 102,401 5,311 - - - - - 107,712
Certificates of deposit 1,287,732 - 772,942 - - - - 2,060,674
Investments 559,032 36,575 2,383,640 - - - - 2,979,247
Due from other funds 348 2,377 - - - - - 2,725
Prepaid items 62,711 - - - - - 2,366 65,077
Receivables 1,538,663 424,410 82,893 933,527 - 410,350 1,157 3,391,000
Total assets $ 8979687 § 4213821 $§ 3,692,242 $ 3,294,153 $ 7,043 $ 6,992,155 $§ 27,078 $ 27,206,179
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 464,972 § - $ 29,625 $ 2,037,907 $ -3 862,298 § 1,094 $ 3,395,896
Accrued expenses 442,454 - 92,059 - - - 2,519 537,032
Due to other funds 2,377 - 348 - - - - 2,725
Total liabilities 909,803 - 122,032 2,037,907 - 862,298 3,613 3,935,653
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenues 130,261 10,279 - 933,527 - - - 1,074,067
Fund Balances
Nonspendable 62,711 - - - - - 2,366 65,077
Restricted for:
Debt service - 4,203,542 - - - - - 4,203,542
Community betterment - - 3,570,210 - - - - 3,570,210
Economic development - - - - 7,043 - - 7,043
84th street redevelopment - - - 322,719 - 6,129,857 - 6,452,576
Public safety - - - - - - 21,099 21,099
Committed for:
Capital outlay 100,716 - - - - - - 100,716
Unassigned 7,776,196 - - - - - - 7,776,196
Total fund balances 7,939,623 4,203,542 3,570,210 322,719 7,043 6,129,857 23,465 22,196,459
Total liabilities, deferred
inflows of resources and
fund balances $ 8979687 § 4213821 § 3,692,242 $ 3,294,153 $ 7,043 § 6,992,155 $ 27,078 $ 27,206,179

See Notes to the Financial Statements
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Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet
of Governmental Funds to the
Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2019

Total Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 22,196,459
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different because:

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation used in governmental activities, are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds. 76,884,383

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not
reported in the funds. Other related amounts include interest payable of $269,260, bond premiums of $274,768 and

bond discounts of $27,427. Amount also includes retainage payable of $442,763 and notes payable of $362,605. (44,271,969)
Deferred outflows of resources related to refunded debt are not current financial resources, and therefore, are not

reported in the funds. 443,412
Compensated absences are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. (1,699,759)

State sales and use tax refunds payable are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not

reported in the funds. (1,351,136)

Deferred inflows represents funds not available in the current period and, therefore, are not recognized as revenue

in the governmental funds. 1,074,067
Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 53,275,457

See Notes to the Financial Statements
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Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances —
Governmental Funds

Revenues
Property taxes
Sales and use taxes
Occupation taxes
Motor vehicle taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Keno
Interest income
Special assessments
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current

General government
Public works

Public safety

Culture and recreation
Community betterment
Community development

State sales tax refunds
Capital outlay
Debt service

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Principal retirement
Interest

Total expenditures

Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers, net

Total other financing sources

(uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, Beginning of

Year

Fund Balances, End of Year

Year Ended September 30, 2019

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Capital Economic 84th Street Police
Debt Service Improvements  Development Redevelopment Academy

General Fund Fund Keno Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
$ 7,531,642 $ 970,025 $ -8 - -3 -3 - $ 8,501,667
5,012,065 2,506,032 - - - 2,506,032 - 10,024,129
1,711,471 - - - - - - 1,711,471
507,578 - - - - - - 507,578
530,410 - - - - - - 530,410
2,342,116 - - - - - 81,762 2,423,878
530,676 - - - - - - 530,676
- - 1,111,910 - - - - 1,111,910
75,044 49,280 52,930 13,055 109 60,368 212 250,998
- 455,621 - - - - - 455,621
152,494 509,244 - - - - - 661,738
18,393,496 4,490,202 1,164,840 13,055 109 2,566,400 81,974 26,710,076
3,612,840 150,053 26,380 38,513 - 500 - 3,828,286
2,345,088 - - - - - - 2,345,088
6,964,579 - - - - - 95,389 7,059,968
2,670,865 - - - - - - 2,670,865
- - 563,462 - - 163,722 - 727,184
571,650 - - - - - - 571,650
201,445 100,722 - - - 100,722 - 402,889
553,248 - - 6,269,431 - 4,984,079 - 11,806,758
168,603 3,565,000 - - - 495,000 - 4,228,603
14,661 633,751 - - - 637,618 - 1,286,030
17,102,979 4,449,526 589,842 6,307,944 - 6,381,641 95,389 34,927,321
1,290,517 40,676 574,998 (6,294,889) 109 (3,815,241) (13,415) (8,217,245)
(365,856) (1,868,892) (250,386) 3,016,874 - (552,083) 20,000 (343)
(365,856) (1,868,892) (250,386) 3,016,874 - (552,083) 20,000 (343)
924,661 (1,828,216) 324,612 (3,278,015) 109 (4,367,324) 6,585 (8,217,588)
7,014,962 6,031,758 3,245,598 3,600,734 6,934 10,497,181 16,880 30,414,047
$ 7939623 $ 4203542 $ 3,570,210 $ 322,719 $ 7,043 $ 6,129,857 $ 23,465 $ 22,196,459

See Notes to the Financial Statements
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Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the
Statement of Activities - Governmental Activities
September 30, 2019

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ (8,217,588)
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities, the cost of
those assets is allocated over their useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation
exceeded capital outlay in the current period. 8,022,849

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds; however, the

transaction increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. Governmental funds report the effect of

the premiums, discounts and similar items when the debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and

amortized in the Statement of Activities. 37,777

Repayment of bond, note and warrant principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment
reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. 4,228,603

In the Statement of Activities, interest is accrued on outstanding bonds and notes, whereas in governmental funds,
an interest expenditure is reported when due. (36,436)

Compensated absences do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds. (50,391)

State sales tax refunds payable do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported
as expenditures in governmental funds until the refunds are paid. This is the amount by which refunds accrued in
the Statement of Activities exceed payments made in the governmental funds. (948,247)

Deferred inflows represent funds not available in the current period and, therefore, are not recognized as revenue in

the governmental funds. 1,051,286
Government funds report capital asset transfers to proprietary funds as expenditures. (15,707)
Amortization of deferred amounts on refunding that do not represent activity in the current period. (83,798)
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 3,988,348

See Notes to the Financial Statements
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Balance Sheet —
Proprietary Fund
September 30, 2019

Sewer Fund
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,675,618
Certificates of deposit 257,539
Investments 504,791
Accounts receivable 543,118
Total current assets 3,981,066
Non-Current Assets
Land 9,524
Equipment and furniture 1,942,636
Utility systems 7,872,662
Buildings and improvements 9,365
Construction in progress 127,882
Accumulated depreciation (4,861,472)
Capital assets - net of depreciation 5,100,597
Total assets $ 9,081,663
Liabilities and Net Position
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 1,040,177
Accrued expenses 117,457
Compensated absences - current portion 2,558
Total current liabilities 1,160,192
Non-Current Liabilities
Compensated absences 43,782
Total non-current liabilities 43,782
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 5,005,395
Unrestricted 2,872,294
Total net position 7,877,689
Total liabilities and net position $ 9,081,663

See Notes to the Financial Statements
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position —
Proprietary Fund
Year Ended September 30, 2019

Sewer Fund
Operating Revenues
User fees $ 4,087,111
Permits and hookups 116,572
Total operating revenues 4,203,683
Operating Expenses
General and administrative 13,126
Maintenance 3,300,164
Depreciation and amortization 257,832
Total operating expenses 3,571,122
Operating Income 632,561
Nonoperating Revenues
Interest income 23,395
Total nonoperating revenues 23,395
Income Before Transfers 655,956
Transfers 16,050
Change in Net Position 672,006
Net Position, Beginning of Year 7,205,683
Net Position, End of Year $ 7,877,689

See Notes to the Financial Statements

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019 29



/C|ty of La Vista, Nebraska Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Statement of Cash Flows — Proprietary Funds
Year Ended September 30, 2019

Sewer Fund
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from customers $ 4,144,865
Payments to suppliers (2,823,754)
Payments to employees (538,748)
Net cash provided by operating activities 782,363
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfers 16,050
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 16,050
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Acquisition of capital assets (227,791)
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (227,791)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Net proceeds (purchases) from sales and maturities of investments (507,986)
Interest income 23,395
Net cash used in investing activities (484,591)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 86,031
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 2,589,587
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 2,675,618

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities
Operating income 632,561
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided
by operating activities

Depreciation 257,832

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Increase in receivables (58,818)
Increase in payables and accrued expenses (49,212)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 782,363

Supplemental Cash Flows Information
Accounts payable incurred for capital assets $ 95,202

See Notes to the Financial Statements

30 For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019



Notes to Financial

Statements

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT / CITY OF LA VISTA, NEBRASKA



/C|ty of La ViSta, Nebraska Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

32

Introduction

The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant accounting principles and practices of the City
of La Vista, Nebraska (the “City”) are discussed in the subsequent section of this Note. The remainder of the
Notes are organized to provide explanations, including required disclosures, of the City’s financial activities for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019.

The City of La Vista, Nebraska operates under a Council-Mayor form of government and provides the following
services: public safety (Police and Fire), public works (highway and streets), sanitary sewer, culture and
recreation, community development (planning and zoning), and general administrative services.

Financial Reporting Entity

These financial statements present the financial statements of the City as the primary government. In determining
its reporting entity, the City has considered all potential component units for which it is financially accountable,
including other organizations which are fiscally dependent on the City, or the significance of their relationship
with the City are such that exclusion would make the financial statements misleading or incomplete. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) has set forth criteria to be considered in determining
financial accountability, which was used in making this evaluation.

The City has determined the La Vista Municipal Facilities Corporation is a blended component unit as the
governing body consists of members appointed by the City government and the City is obligated to help support
the component unit. A blended component unit, although a legally separate entity, is a direct part of the
government’s operations. The City is financially responsible for this blended component unit and provides
operational responsibility and control. No separate financial statements are issued for this blended component
unit.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

Governmental fund financial statements are prepared using the current financial resources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recorded when susceptible to accrual (when they become both measurable and available). “Measurable” means
the amount of the transaction can be determined and “available” means collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period and that it is legally available for such
purposes. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days
of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred,
except for debt service expenditures and other long-term obligations general obligations, which are reported as
expenditures in the year due.

Major revenues that are determined to be susceptible to accrual include real estate taxes, sales taxes, earned
interest, and charges for services. Major revenues not susceptible to accrual because they are either not
available early enough to pay liabilities from the current period or are not measurable until received include
franchise taxes, special assessments, licenses, permits, and fines. Revenues not considered available are
recorded as unearned revenues.

Operating income reported in proprietary fund financial statements includes revenues and expenses related to
the primary, continuing operations of the fund. Principal operating revenues for proprietary funds are charges to
customers for sales or services. Principal operating expenses are the costs of providing goods or services and
include administrative expenses and depreciation of capital assets. Other revenues and expenses are classified
as non-operating in the financial statements.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use restricted
resources first, then unrestricted resources as needed.
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of Presentation

The government-wide financial statements include the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities.
These statements report financial information for the City as a whole excluding fiduciary activities. Individual
funds are not displayed but the statements distinguish governmental activities, generally supported by taxes and
City general revenues, from business-type activities, generally financed in whole or in part with fees charged to
external customers.

The Statement of Activities reports the expenses of a given function offset by program revenues directly
connected with the functional program. A function is an assembly of similar activities and may include portions
of a fund or summarize more than one fund to capture the expenses and program revenues associated with a
distinct functional activity. Program revenues include charges paid by the recipients of the goods or services
offered by the programs and grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular program. Revenues not classified as program revenues are presented as general
revenues. The comparison of program revenues and expenses identifies the extent to which each program or
business segment is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the City.

Net position should be reported as restricted when constraints placed on net position use are either externally
imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Fund financial
statements report detailed information about the City. The focus of governmental and enterprise fund financial
statements is on major funds rather than reporting funds by type. Major individual funds are reported in separate
columns in the fund financial statements. Afund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the City,
meets specific criteria set forth by GASB or is identified as a major fund by the City’s management.

Fund Types and Major Funds

Governmental funds are those through which most general governmental functions of the City are financed.
Governmental funds are accounted for using a current financial resources measurement focus. With this
measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet.
Operating statements of these funds present increases and decreases in net current assets.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all financial resources except
those required to be accounted for in another fund. Revenues are derived primarily from property and other
local taxes, state and federal distributions, licenses, permits, charges for services and interest income.

Debt Service Fund is used to account for financial resources that are restricted for, and the payment of, general
long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs.

Keno Fund is a special revenue fund used to account for the revenues and expenses related to the Keno
operations of the City. These funds are used for community betterment.

Capital Improvements Fund is a capital projects fund used to account for financial resources that are committed
to expenditures for capital outlay.

Economic Development Fund is a debt service fund used to account for revenues and expenditures to support
the payment of long-term debt principal, interest and related costs. The bond proceeds are used to issue grants to
support the commercial developments, rehabilitate residential neighborhoods and expand industrial development
in order to ensure economic stability and vitality of the City.

84th Street Redevelopment Fund is a capital projects fund used to account for revenues and expenditures to
support the redevelopment of the 84th Street corridor between Harrison Street and Giles Street to improve the
economic viability of a town center and central park. A voter approved sales tax levy provides the revenue for
this fund.

The Police Academy Fund is a special revenue fund used to account for revenues and expenditures to support
the operation of a law enforcement training academy as defined in an interlocal agreement between Sarpy
County, Douglas County, City of Papillion and City of Bellevue.

A legally adopted budget is approved for each of the above funds.

Proprietary funds are used to account for the City’s ongoing organizations and activities that are similar to
those often found in the private sector. Proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of
these funds are included in the balance sheet. Proprietary fund operating statements present increases and
decreases in total net position.
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The City reports the following major proprietary fund:
Sewer Fund accounts for the activities of the government’s sewer utility.
Cash and Investments

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments which
are both readily convertible to known amounts of cash, and so near their maturity (generally original maturity of
three months or less) that they present insignificant risk of changes in value because of interest rate changes.

The City maintains a cash deposit pool that is available for use by all funds. The pool consists of bank deposits
and investments. The equity of proprietary funds in this pool is cash and cash equivalents for purposes of the
Statement of Cash Flows. In addition, cash and investments are separately held by several of the City’s funds.

Nonnegotiable certificates of deposit are carried at amortized cost, which approximates fair value. The City
invests in an external investment pool which primarily invests in government agency securities, certificates of
deposit, demand deposits and repurchase agreements which are valued at amortized cost, which approximates
fair value based on the short-term nature of the investments. All other investments are carried at fair value. Fair
value is determined using quoted market prices.

Investment income includes dividend and interest income and the net change for the year in the fair value of
investments carried at fair value. Investmentincome is assigned to the funds with which the related investment
asset is associated.

Special Assessments

Special assessments are recorded as revenue in the year the assessments become current. Annual installments
not yet due are reflected as special assessments receivables and deferred inflows of resources. As of September
30, 2019, there are no outstanding special assessments owed to the City..

Unbilled Sewer Revenue

Billings for sewer revenues are rendered on a monthly basis. Unbilled sewer revenues, representing estimated
consumer usage for the period between the last billing date and the end of the year, have been recorded in the
amount of $537,780, and are included in accounts receivable.

Prepaid Iltems

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid
items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. Prepaid items are recorded as an expenditure at
the time of consumption.

Capital Assets and Depreciation

The City’s property, plant, equipment and infrastructure with useful lives of more than one year are stated at
historical cost and comprehensively reported in the government-wide financial statements; proprietary capital
assets are also reported in their respective fund. The City maintains infrastructure asset records consistent with
all other capital assets. The City generally capitalizes assets with a cost of $2,500 or more as purchase and
construction outlays occur. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Donated
assets are stated at acquisition value on the date donated. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that
do not add to the asset value or materially extend useful lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method. When capital assets are disposed, the cost and
applicable accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts, and the resulting gain or loss
is recorded in operations.

Estimated useful lives, in years, for depreciable assets are as follows:

Buildings 10 - 45 years
Improvements 5-30 years
Infrastructure and utility systems 20 - 60 years
Equipment, furniture, and fixtures 5-20 years
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position or balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow
of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category,
the deferred charge on refunding reported in the government-wide statement of net position. A deferred charge
on refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This
amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position or balance sheet will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized
as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has one item, which arises only under a modified
accrual basis of accounting, that qualifies for reporting in this category and is reported in the governmental funds
balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from property taxes, special assessments,
and grants that are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become
available.

Revenues are deferred if not received within 60 days of recognition.
Long-Term Obligations

In government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations
are reported as liabilities. Bond discounts or premiums are amortized over the terms of the respective bonds
using a method that approximates the effective interest method.

The governmental fund financial statements recognize the proceeds of debt and premiums as other financing
sources of the current period. Issuance costs are reported as expenditures.

Compensated Absences

Vacation leave and other compensated absences with similar characteristics are accrued as the benefits are
earned if the leave is attributable to past services and it is probable that the City will compensate the employees
for such benefits. Sick leave and other compensated absences with similar characteristics are accrued as the
benefits are earned only to the extent that it is probable that the City will compensate the employees for such
benefits. Such accruals are based on current salary rates plus an additional amount for compensation-related
payments such as Social Security and Medicare taxes and pension amounts using rates in effect at that date.
Vacation and sick leave is accrued in accordance with the City’s policy, when incurred in the government-wide
and proprietary fund financial statements. In the governmental funds, only compensated absences expected to
be liquidated with expendable available financial resources are recorded as a fund liability.

State Sales and Use Tax Refund Payable

Qualified companies in the State of Nebraska are allowed certain benefits under various legislative acts and
incentive programs, including refunds of State sales and use taxes paid. These refunds can include the local
option tax as well as state taxes. Under State Statute, the State Tax Commissioner must notify an affected city,
village, county, or municipal county of any pending refund claims of more than twenty-five thousand dollars by
June 15 of a given year. The notification must be made by July 1 of the same year and the refund will be made
on or after November 15. On a monthly basis, the State notifies the City of approved refund claims exceeding
$25,000. The State pays the refund to the recipient and, twelve months later, deducts that amount from the City’s
sales and use tax proceeds. If the amount of a refund exceeds 25% of the City’s sales and use tax receipts for
a prior fiscal year, the deduction will be made in twelve equal installments beginning thirteen months after the
payment is made by the State to the recipient. The City accrues these tax refunds due upon receipt of notification
from the State Tax Commissioner.

Net Position

Net position is required to be classified into three components — net investment in capital assets, restricted and
unrestricted. These classifications are defined as follows:
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Net investment in capital assets — This component of net position consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvements of those assets. Deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvements of
those assets are also included in this component of net position. If there are significant unspent related debt
proceeds at year-end, the portion of debt attributable to unspent proceeds is not included in the calculation of
net investment in capital assets.

Restricted — This component of net position consists of restrictions placed on net position use through
external constraints imposed by creditors (such as debt covenants), contributors, or law or regulations of other
governments, or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted — This component consists of net position that does not meet the definition of “restricted” or “net
investment in capital assets.”

Fund Balance Classification
The fund balances for the City’s governmental funds are displayed in five components:
Nonspendable - Nonspendable fund balances are not in a spendable form or are required to be maintained intact.

Restricted - Restricted fund balances may be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by external resource
providers, constitutionally or through enabling legislation. Restrictions may be changed or lifted only with the
consent of resource providers.

The source of the restricted fund balance for the Debt Service Fund is unexpended tax revenue to be used for
debt service. The Keno Fund restricted fund balance is intended for community betterment expenditures. The
restricted fund balance in the Capital Improvements Fund is designated for 84th Street redevelopment parking
garage capital construction expenditures. The fund balance in the Economic Development Fund is restricted for
economic development purposes. The source of the restricted fund balance in the 84th Street Redevelopment
Fund is unexpended sales tax revenue and bond proceeds. The designated use of these funds is debt service
payments and capital construction expenditures. The restricted fund balance of the Police Academy Fund is
designated for program expenditures of the Sarpy-Douglas law Enforcement Academy (SDLEA).

Committed - Committed fund balances may be used only for the specific purposes determined by resolution of
the City Council. Commitments may be changed or lifted only by issuance of a resolution by the City Council.

In the fiscal year 2019 budget, according to Neb. Rev. Statute 13-518 (5), the City Council designated a portion
of the General Fund to be used for acquisition or replacement of tangible personal property with a useful life
of five years or more which is to be undertaken in the future but is to be paid for in part or in total in advance
using periodic payment assignment as a qualified sinking fund. The September 30, 2019 balance is $100,716.

Assigned - Assigned fund balances are intended to be used by the City for specific purposes as determined
by management. In governmental funds other than the general fund, assigned fund balance represents the
amount that is not restricted or committed. This indicates that resources in other governmental funds are, at a
minimum, intended to be used for the purpose of that fund. On September 30, 2019, the City did not have any
assigned funds.

Unassigned - Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the general fund and includes all amounts
not contained in the other classifications.

Fund balances are classified as restricted, committed, assigned or unassigned. When expenditures are incurred
that use funds from more than one classification, the city will generally determine the order which the funds are
used on a case-by-case basis, taking into account any applicable requirements of grant agreements, contracts,
business circumstances, or other constraints. If no other constraints exist, the order of spending of resources
will be restricted, committed, assigned and, lastly, unassigned.

At the end of each fiscal year, the City will maintain spendable - unassigned portions of the fund balance for
a cash reserve in a range up to 25% of the General Fund operating expenditures. In addition to cash reserve
needs this accommodates emergency contingency concerns.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Note 2. Budget and Budgetary Accounting
The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

o The City’s department heads, and mid-level managers prepare and submit budget requests for the
following two fiscal years to the City Administrator who then reviews the request with the department
and division heads.

o After this review process has been completed, the City Administrator presents these budget requests to
the Mayor and City Council along with recommendations as to what changes, if any, should be made.
These budget requests and recommendations are reviewed by the City Council at meetings open to
the public.

o Apublic hearing and the first reading of the budget is then conducted at a City Council meeting to obtain
comments from citizens. Two additional readings are conducted at subsequent City Council meetings.

o Prior to September 20, the City Council legally enacts the budget through the passage of a resolution
adopting the biennial budget.

o Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for all
Governmental Funds and Proprietary Funds.

o The budgets adopted are stated on a cash basis of accounting which is a comprehensive basis of
accounting other than generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America.

Note 3. Deposits and Investments
Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, a government’s deposits may not be returned
to it. The City’s deposit policy for custodial credit risk requires compliance with the provisions of state law.

State law requires collateralization of all deposits with federal depository insurance; bonds and other obligations
of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. agencies or instrumentalities of the State of Nebraska; bonds of any city, county, school
district or special road district of the State of Nebraska; bonds of any state; or a surety bond having an aggregate
value at least equal to the amount of the deposits. The statutes allow pledged securities to be reduced by the
amount of the deposit insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).

At September 30, 2019, all the City’s deposits in excess of FDIC are covered by collateral held in a Federal
Reserve pledge account or by an agent of the City.

Investments

Generally, the City’s investing activities are managed under the custody of the City Finance Director. The City
has an adopted investment policy. The City may legally invest in state-sponsored pooled investment funds and
in direct obligations of and other obligations guaranteed as to principal by the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agencies
and instrumentalities.

Interest Rate Risk — Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates (market rates) will affect the fair
value of an investment.

Custodial Credit Risk — Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the
City will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in possession of an
outside party.

Credit Risk — Credit risk is the risk that the issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. The City’s only investments are units of participation in the short-term investment pool of the
Nebraska Public Agency Investment Trust (“NPAIT”). NPAIT is a special purpose government established under
Nebraska statute. The investment pool or trust is not registered and is not rated for credit risk. The City limits
its interest rate risk by investing only in the short-term pool, which consists primarily of government agency or
government securitized investments with maturities of less than one year. The amount invested in the NPAIT
pool was $3,484,038 at September 30, 2019.

Concentration of Credit Risk — The City places no limit on the amount that may be invested in any one issuer.
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Note 3: Deposits and Investments (Continued)

Summary of Carrying Values

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

The carrying values of deposits and investments are included in the government-wide Statement of Net Position

as follows:
Carrying Values
Cash at County Treasurer 107,712
Deposits 23,593,575
Investments 3,484,038
$ 27,185,325
Included in the following Statement of Net Position captions as follows:
Cash and cash equivalents 15,643,683
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 5,631,679
Cash at Country Treasurer 107,712
Certificates of deposit 2,318,213
Investments 3,484,038
$ 27,185,325

Note 4: Disclosures About Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value measurements must maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. There is a hierarchy of three levels of inputs
that may be used to measure fair value:

Level 1: Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or
can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets
or liabilities

Level 3: Unobservable inputs supported by little or no market activity and are significant to the fair
value of the assets or liabilities

Investments

The City’s investments in external pooled investments are carried at amortized cost and thus are not included
within the fair value hierarchy.

Note 5. Property Taxes

38

The tax levy for the City is certified by the Sarpy County Board each year. Real estate taxes are due and attached
as an enforceable lien on December 31 following the levy date. The first half of real estate taxes becomes
delinquent on April 1 and the second half becomes delinquent August 1 following the levy date. Delinquent taxes
bear interest at a 14% annual rate. Property taxes are collected by the County Treasurer and are periodically
remitted to the City.

The tax rate to finance governmental services other than the payment of principal and interest on long-term
debt for the year ended September 30, 2019, was $0.4900 per $100 of assessed valuation and the debt service
requirement was $0.0600 per $100 of assessed valuation. The assessed valuation for the 2018-2019 tax year
was $1,542,141,658.
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Note 6: Receivables

Receivables at September 30, 2019, consist of the following:

STATISTICAL SECTION

Accounts Total
Fund Taxes Receivable Receivables
General $ 935,532 $ 603,131 $ 1,538,663
Debt Service 424,410 - 424,410
Keno - 82,893 82,893
Capital Improvement - 933,527 933,527
Redevelopment Fund 410,350 - 410,350
Police Academy - 1,157 1,157
Sewer - 543,118 543,118
$ 1,770,292 $ 2,163,826 $ 3,934,118
The City anticipates collecting all outstanding receivables.
Note 7: Capital Assets and Depreciation
Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2019, was as follows:
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental Activities
Land $ 15609324 $ -3 - $ 15,609,324
Construction in progress 12,604,046 11,562,778 (7,435,580) 16,731,244
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 28,213,370 11,562,778 (7,435,580) 32,340,568
Capital assets, being depreciated
Buildings 19,189,417 4,826,232 - 24,015,649
Improvements/infrastructure 60,251,804 2,742,143 (70,438) 62,923,509
Equipment/furniture/vehicles 11,768,800 544,607 (60,055) 12,253,352
Total capital assets, being depreciated 91,210,021 8,112,982 (130,493) 99,192,510
Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings (12,630,277) (772,069) 4,135 (13,398,211)
Improvements/infrastructure (29,839,709) (2,495,860) 10,293 (32,325,276)
Equipment/furniture/vehicles (8,530,009) (515,980) 120,781 (8,925,208)
Total accumulated depreciation (50,999,995) (3,783,909) 135,209 (54,648,695)
Capital assets being depreciated, net 40,210,026 4,329,073 4,716 44,543,815
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 68423396 $ 15,891,851 $ (7,430,864) $ 76,884,383

Depreciation was charged to functions/programs as follows:

Governmental Activities

General services
Public safety

Culture and recreation
Public works

Total governmental activities depreciation expense

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019

225,244
573,229
293,679

2,691,757

$ 3,783,909

39



/J City of La Vista, Nebraska

Note 7: Capital Assets and Depreciation (Continued)

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Business-type Activities

Land $ 9524 $ - 8 - 8 9,524
Construction in progress - 127,882 - 127,882
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 9,524 127,882 - 137,406
Capital assets, being depreciated
Building and improvements 9,365 - - 9,365
Sewer line system 7,872,662 - - 7,872,662
Equipment and furniture 1,747,938 194,698 - 1,942,636
Total capital assets, being depreciated 9,629,965 194,698 - 9,824,663
Accumulated depreciation
Building and improvements (9,365) - - (9,365)
Sewer line system (3,473,879) (156,129) (1,569) (3,631,577)
Equipment and furniture (1,120,809) (101,703) 1,981 (1,220,530)
Total accumulated depreciation (4,604,053) (257,832) 412 (4,861,472)
Capital assets being depreciated, net 5,025,912 (63,134) 412 4,963,191
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 5,035,436 $ 64,748 $ 412§ 5,100,597
Depreciation was charged to functions/programs as follows:
Business-type Activities
Sewer $ 257,832

Note 8: Long-term Liabilities

General obligation bonds, issued by the City for various municipal improvements, are repaid through the
Debt Service Fund (sales and use tax, property tax), the General Fund (highway allocation revenue), and the
Redevelopment Fund (sales and use tax). The City has pledged its full faith and credit as collateral for the general
obligation bonds. The City has no debt outstanding subject to legal debt limitations. The City’s borrowing capacity
is restrained by maintaining the City’s debt at a responsible level.

The following is a summary of long-term debt activity of the City for the year ended September 30, 2019:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental Activities
Bonds payable
General obligation bonds $ 25,300,000 $ - $ 3225000 $ 22,075,000 $ 2,965,000
Tax revenue bonds 18,560,000 - 495,000 18,065,000 505,000
Notes from direct placements 3,150,000 - 340,000 2,810,000 325,000
Premium/discount on bonds issued 285,118 - 37,777 247,341 -
Total bonds payable 47,295,118 - 4,097,777 43,197,341 3,795,000
Other long-term liabilities
Installment notes payable - direct borrowings 531,208 - 168,603 362,605 148,795
Compensated absences 1,649,368 821,462 771,071 1,699,759 167,369
Total other long term liabilities 2,180,576 821,462 939,674 2,062,364 316,164

Total governmental

long-term liabilities $ 49475694 $ 821,462 $ 5,037,451 $§ 45259.705 $ 4,111,164

Business-type Activities
Other long-term liabilities
Compensated absences $ 51,982 $ 39,547 $ 45,189 $ 46,340 $ 2,558

The compensated absences reported as governmental activities will be paid from the General Fund.
The compensated absences of the business-type activities will be paid from the Sewer Fund.
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Note 8: Long-term Liabilities (Continued)

Long-term bonded debt and notes payable are comprised of the following:

Original Interest Final Date Outstanding
Borrowing Rates Maturity Callable Balance
Governmental Activities
General obligation bonds:
June 28, 2012, GO refunding bonds $ 8,915,000 0.300-3.250% 12/15/2032 06/28/2017 $ 4,705,000
December 31, 2014 public safety tax anticipation
refunding bonds 835,000 1.850-2.350% 11/15/2022 12/31/2019 430,000
December 31, 2014 GO refunding bonds 6,475,000 1.750-2.450% 08/15/2023 12/31/2019 2,345,000
December 31, 2014 highway allocation refunding
bonds 790,000 1.850-3.250% 11/15/2028 12/31/2019 * 590,000
December 31, 2014 facilities corp refunding bonds 2,935,000 1.750-3.650% 03/15/2035 12/31/2019 1,565,000
December 1, 2015, GO refunding bonds 8,240,000 0.500-2.350% 12/15/2026 12/01/2020 5,800,000
September 5, 2018 GO offstreet parking series
2018 Garage 1 4,955,000 1.700-4.000% 09/01/2038 09/05/2023 4,770,000
May 25, 2016, highway allocation refunding bonds 2,070,000 1.000-3.125% 05/01/2041 05/01/2041 ** 1,870,000
Total general obligation bonds $ 22,075,000
Special tax revenue bonds:
December 21, 2017, tax supported improvement
bonds 18,840,000 1.250-5.000% 07/15/2042 07/15/2022 $ 18,065,000
Direct Placements
August 21, 2018, refunding certificates of
participation 3,150,000 1.5000-3.000% 12/15/2026 12/15/2023 § 2,810,000
Total Bonds $ 42,950,000
Installment notes payable - direct borrowings***
January 5, 2015, dump truck 2.89% 01/05/2020 $ 12,026
May 1, 2018, street sweeper 3.00% 05/01/2022 144,024
May 1, 2018, dump truck 3.00% 05/01/2022 135,063
July 18, 2018, bucket truck 3.00% 08/01/2022 71,492
Total installment notes payable $ 362,605

* Bonds are subject to mandatory redemption in various amounts prior to maturity beginning November 15, 2015.
** Bonds are subject to mandatory redemption in various amounts prior to maturity beginning May 1, 2017.
*** Installment notes payable are collateralized by the equipment acquired.
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Maturities of the long-term debt, subject to mandatory redemption are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Year Ending General Obligation Bonds Tax Revenue Bonds
September 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest

2020 $ 2,965,000 $ 527,344 § 505,000 $ 630,688
2021 2,855,000 474,511 515,000 616,900
2022 2,905,000 415,322 545,000 591,150
2023 2,215,000 359,408 570,000 563,900
2024 1,580,000 309,671 600,000 535,400
2025-2029 5,070,000 1,087,158 3,435,000 2,238,850
2030-2034 2,450,000 589,271 4,015,000 1,649,050
2035-2039 1,810,000 209,190 4,685,000 985,725
2040-2044 225,000 10,625 3,195,000 209,950
$ 22,075,000 $ 3,982,500 $ 18,065,000 $ 8,021,613

Installment Notes -

Year Ending Notes from Direct Placements Direct Borrowings

September 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest

2020 $ 325,000 $ 68,771 $ 148,795 $ 9,768
2021 330,000 62,793 141,014 5,455
2022 335,000 55,749 72,796 1,160
2023 345,000 48,045 - -
2024 355,000 38,925 - -
2025-2029 1,120,000 51,150 - -
$ 2,810,000 $ 325433 $ 362,605 $ 16,383

The City’s outstanding notes from direct borrowings and direct placements related to government activities of
$2,810,000 contain a provision that in an event of default, outstanding amounts become immediately due if the

City is unable to make payment.

Note 9: Interfund Balances and Activity

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds that may result in

amounts owed between funds.

Transfers are used to (a) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the
fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, (b) move revenues from restricted funds to funds where the
expenditures were incurred related to the restrictions and to (c) use unrestricted revenues collected in the general
fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.

Transfer To/From Other Funds at September 30, 2019, consists of the following cash transfers:

Transfer From

Debt
General Service Keno Redevelopment Govermental
Transfer To Fund Fund Fund Fund Activities Total
General $ - $ - $ 186,805 $ - $ - $ 186,805
Debt Service 476,295 - - 76,781 - 553,076
Capital Improvements 56,366 2,421,968 63,238 475,302 - 3,016,874
Police Academy 20,000 - - - - 20,000
Sewer - - 343 - 15,707 16,050
$ 552,661 $ 2,421,968 $ 250,386 $ 552,083 $ 15,707 $ 3,777,098

During the year ended September 30, 2019, $15,707 was transferred from Governmental Activities to the Sewer

Fund.
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Note 9: Interfund Balances and Activity (Continued)

As of September 30, 2019, the balance due to/from other funds primarily resulted from the respective funds
overdrawing its share of pooled cash.

Due From
General Keno
Due To Fund Fund Total
Debt Service $2,377 $- $2,377
General - 348 348
Total $2,377 $348 $2,725

Note 10: Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis to Modified Accrual Basis

Amounts presented on the budgetary basis of accounting differ from those presented in accordance with the
modified accrual basis of accounting due to the treatment afforded accruals, encumbrances, and funds for which
legally adopted annual budgets are not established. A reconciliation for the year ended September 30, 2019,
which discloses the nature and amount of the adjustments necessary to convert the actual modified accrual
basis data to the budgetary basis, is presented below:

General Keno Police
Fund Fund Academy

Net change in fund balance

Balance on a GAAP basis $ 924,661 $ 324612 $ 6,585

Basic differences (accruals) occur because the cash basis

of accounting used for budgeting differs from the modified

accrual basis of accounting prescribed for governmental

funds 587,879 33,409 239
Balance on a budget basis $ 1,512,540 $ 358,021 $ 6,824

Note 11: Retirement Plans

The employees of the City are covered by several defined contribution retirement plans as detailed below.
All plans are administered by outside trustees and, therefore, are not included in the City’s basic financial
statements. Any plan provisions or amendments are reviewed and approved by the Mayor and City Council.
The City plans are administered by the International Cities and Counties Manager Association - Retirement
Corporation (ICMA-RC). ICMA-RC is a not-for-profit organization chartered to provide a portable retirement plan
for government employers nationwide.

City Administrator’s Retirement Plan

The City has a defined contribution pension plan covering the City Administrator, the only participant in this plan.
The plan requires that the City and the employee contribute an amount equal to 10.80% and 6.27%, respectively,
of the employee’s base salary per pay period. The City’s pension expense and plan member’s contributions to
the plan for the year ended September 30, 2019, were $16,695 and $9,693, respectively.

Civilian Employee Retirement Plan

The City has a defined contribution pension plan covering all civilian employees who are eligible with 103
participants as of September 30, 2019. The plan requires that both the employee and the City contribute an
amount equal to 6% of the employee’s base salary per pay period. The plan allows for forfeitures to be used
to pay administration costs of the plan and then used to reduce the City’s contributions. Employees are fully
vested in their contributions and begin vesting in employer contributions after four years and are fully vested
after seven years. The City’s pension expense and plan members’ contributions to the plan for the year ended
September 30, 2019, were $251,588 each. The City used $47,032 in forfeitures to offset the City’s contributions
to the plan in 2019.
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Note 11: Retirement Plans (Continued)

Police Retirement Plan

The City has a defined contribution pension plan for its full-time employees in the Police Department with 49
participants as of September 30, 2019.. The plan was converted effective January 1, 1984, from a defined
benefit plan to a defined contribution plan. The plan requires that both the employee and the City contribute an
amount equal to 7% of the employee’s base salary per pay period. The plan allows for forfeitures to be used
to pay administration costs of the plan and then used to reduce the City’s contributions. Employees are fully
vested in their contributions and begin vesting in employer contributions after four years and are fully vested
after seven years. The City’s pension expense and plan members’ contributions to the plan for the year ended
September 30, 2019, were $226,718 each. The City used $50,129 in forfeitures to offset the City’s contributions
to the plan in 2019.

Fire Retirement Plan

The City has a defined contribution pension plan for its full time employees in the Fire Department. The plan
was effective June 2007. The plan requires that the employee contribute an amount equal to 6.5% and the City
contribute an amount equal to 13% of the employee’s base salary per pay period. The plan allows for forfeitures
to be allocated to the Unallocated Employer Account and if the Unallocated Employer Account is insufficient to
meet plan liabilities, then forfeitures shall first be used to pay expenses of administration and then reduce City
contributions.

Employees are fully vested in their own contributions and begin vesting in employer contributions after four years
and are fully vested after seven years. The only employee in the plan, the Fire Chief, retired in July 2018 and
therefore for the year ended September 30, 2019, there were no City or employee contributions.

Deferred Compensation Plan

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue
Code Section 457. The plan, available to all regular permanent full and part-time City employees, permits them
to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until
termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency.

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with those amounts, and
all income attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are (until paid or made available to the employee or
other beneficiary) held in trust for the exclusive benefits of the participants and their beneficiaries. The plan assets
are held in trust by a third party, ICMA-RC, for the employees and are not reflected in these financial statements.

Note 12: Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage to, or destruction of assets, errors or
omissions, injuries to employees, or natural disasters. These risks are transferred to independent insurance
carriers and no self-insurance program is maintained by the City. City management believes adequate coverage
exists for potential exposures as of September 30, 2019. The City did not pay any settlement amounts which
exceeded its insurance coverage for any of the three preceding years.

Note 13: Commitments and Contingencies
Commitments

During the year, the City has accepted various bids for street improvements and other projects in the normal
course of business that have not been completed and/or fully paid for at year-end.

Claims and Litigation

The City is involved in various litigation matters in the normal course of business. The outcome of such litigation
is not expected to have a material effect on the City’s financial position or results of operations.

Government Grants

The City participates in several federally assisted grant programs, which are subject to financial and compliance
audits or reviews. The amount of expenditures, if any, which may be disallowed by the granting agencies, is
not determinable at this time; however, City officials do not believe that such amounts, if any, will be significant.
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Note 13: Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

State Sales and Use Tax Refunds

Qualified companies in the State of Nebraska are allowed certain benefits under various legislative acts and
incentive programs, including refunds of sales and use taxes paid. These refunds can include the local option
tax as well as state taxes. Under State Statute, the State Tax Commissioner must notify an affected city, village,
county, or municipal county of any pending refund claims of more than twenty-five thousand dollars by June 15
of a given year. The notification must be made by July 1 of the same year and the refund will be made on or
after November 15. On a monthly basis, the State notifies the City of approved refund claims exceeding $25,000.
The State pays the refund to the recipient and, twelve months later, deducts that amount from the City’s sales
and use tax proceeds. If the amount of a refund exceeds 25% of the City’s sales and use tax receipts for a prior
fiscal year, the deduction will be made in twelve equal installments beginning thirteen months after the payment
is made by the State to the recipient. The City accrues these tax refunds due upon receipt of notification from
the State Tax Commissioner.

The amount of tax refunds due, if any, under these acts and programs is not determinable by the City until
notification is made by the state.

As of September 30, 2019, the City had been notified of $1,351,136 of state sales and use tax refunds due,
which are to be repaid starting in December 2019 through August 2020. This amount is recognized on the
government-wide Statement of Net Position.

Between December 2019 and January 2020, the City was notified by the state of approximately $803,113 of
additional state sales tax refunds due beginning in December 2020.

Note 14: Interlocal Agreements
Fire Department

In October 2013, the City entered into an interlocal agreement with the City of Papillion (“Papillion”) and the
Papillion Rural Fire District (“RFD”) to allow Papillion to expand its fire department operations to provide fire
and emergency medical services (“EMS”) for all of the participants to the agreement and areas within each
participants’ boundaries beginning April 1, 2014. In consideration for these services, the City and RFD each
contribute proportionate funding and use of their respective fire and EMS equipment, fire apparatuses, EMS
medic units and other fire or EMS vehicles and fire department real property. The agreement will terminate on
September 30, 2033, with optional ten-year terms thereafter.

Under the terms of the agreement, the participants have created a mutual finance organization as authorized
under the Nebraska Municipal Finance Assistance Act, known as the Papillion Fire Protection Mutual Finance
Organization (“MFQ”). The MFO is responsible for transacting business for financing the operation and equipment
needs of the fire department or MFO; having charge and custody of and managing all funds of the MFO; and
seeking funding from the Nebraska Mutual Finance Assistance Fund or other potential funding organizations.
The participants in the MFO are required to levy a general fund property tax at an equal rate for the purpose of
jointly funding the single fire department operations. The rate must have unanimous approval from all participants
and exclude levies for bonded indebtedness and lease-purchase contracts in existence on July 1, 1998. The
Papillion Finance Director serves as the fiscal agent of the MFO.

As of September 30, 2019, the MFO has not issued debt nor acquired title to any assets. Any debt or assets of
the MFO would be split amongst the participants.

During the year ended September 30, 2019, the City paid $1,926,516 to Papillion in consideration of services
rendered. The City received $509,244 from the MFO, as determined by the terms of the interlocal agreement.

Police Academy

On April 4, 2017, the City entered into the Law Enforcement Training Academy interlocal agreement with
Sarpy County, Douglas County, the City of Papillion and the City of Bellevue to create the Sarpy-Douglas Law
Enforcement Academy (SDLEA).. The City provides office space and administrative and accounting support for
the SDLEA. Each participating agency contributes $20,000 per year to the Policy Academy Fund and provides
training locations for the classes.
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Note 14: Interlocal Agreements (Continued)

The Agreement is administered by an Advisory Board consisting of the chief law enforcement officer of each
participating agency, or his or her designee. The Advisory Board members are responsible for the overall policies
and administration of this Agreement. The governing board is known as the Sarpy-Douglas Law Enforcement
Academy Advisory Board. The Board makes any and all decisions based on the concurrence of a majority of the
Board members after providing an opportunity for all Board members to be involved in any and all such decisions.
The Sarpy-Douglas Law Enforcement Academy Advisory Board shall meet at least four times each year, with
such additional meetings held as often as its members deem advisable. The Advisory Board shall annually in the
month of September, from among themselves, elect a chairperson on a rotating basis. The Board shall establish
and implement rules and procedures not inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement for implementation hereof.

The Agreement shall be effective for a term of five (5) years beginning on October 1, 2017 and ending September
30, 2022. The Agreement may only be terminated upon the mutual agreement of all participating agencies. At
the end of the initial five year term, the agreement shall automatically renew for two (2) additional one year terms
unless any Party to the Agreement gives written notice by April 1 prior to the effective date of the termination to
the other participating agencies as to its desire to withdraw or terminate or amend the Agreement.

During the year ended September 30, 2019, the City received $81,762 from the participating agencies and the
City transferred $20,000 from the General Fund to the Police Academy Fund, as determined by the terms of
the interlocal agreement.

Note 15: Tax Abatements

The state approves tax abatements under the Tax Increment Financing Program (TIF), the Nebraska Advantage
Act and the Employment and Investment Growth Act.

TIF provides property tax abatements to encourage improvements to blighted property. The program is established
under the auspices of a state statue (Article 21, Section 18-2101 — 2144) empowering cities and counties to
establish such programs. The abatements equal 100 percent of the additional property tax resulting from the
increase in assessed value as a result of the improvements, as administered as a rebate of the incremental
taxes generated from improvements to property, and last for 15 years (or fewer, if the loan is paid off). Eligibility
for approval requires the property to have no loss of pre-existing tax revenues, and the developer demonstrates
the project is not feasible without TIF. Abatements are obtained through application by the property owner and
are reviewed and approved by the Council prior to commencing the improvements. This refund reduces the next
property tax paid to the City. As of September 30, 2019, the City has entered into agreements with developers
under TIF.

The Employment and Investment Growth Act under State Legislative Bill (LB) 775 and the Nebraska Advantage
Act under LB 312 grants tax credits and sales tax refunds for companies that hire at least 30 new employees
and invest at least $3 million. These acts allow a refund of sales tax paid on equipment or other taxable property
purchased in connection with the project. This refund to companies reduces the net monthly sales receipts
remitted to the City.

Taxes abated under these programs for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019 were $1,369,203. This consists
of $18,067 pertaining to the Tax Increment Financing Program and $1,351,136 pertaining to the Employment
and Investment Growth Act and Nebraska Advantage Act.

Note 16: Subsequent Events

In December 2019, the City issued $4,690,000 of General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2019, to
partially refund outstanding principal of $3,260,000 of the General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2012
and $1,655,000 of the General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2014, The City completed the refunding
to reduce its total debt service payments by approximately $155,000 which resulted in an economic gain of
approximately $128,000.

The City Council approved a $3 million grant in March 2020, for the Economic Development Program Fund.
The project is the Astro Amphitheater, a 2,500 seat indoor, 5,000 seat outdoor event venue. The developer, City
Ventures, is also building apartments and retail/restaurant space at City Centre along 84th Street.

The City is following state and federal guidelines to address the COVID-19 virus pandemic and is following the
Center for Disease Control pandemic plan. Measures are being taken to safeguard employees and citizens. The
budget is under review for potential delays in expense to offset any declines in revenue.
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances — Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) —
General Fund
Year Ended September 30, 2019

Variance
With
Final
Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Taxes $ 15,057,339 $ 15,057,339 $ 14,635,068 $ (422,271)
Licenses and permits 583,250 583,250 527,991 (55,259)
Intergovernmental revenues 2,231,743 2,231,743 2,219,743 (12,000)
Charges for services 373,618 373,618 523,976 150,358
Grant income 81,815 81,815 68,128 (13,687)
Interest income 31,242 31,242 75,044 43,802
Miscellaneous 76,534 76,534 149,693 73,159
Total revenues 18,435,541 18,435,541 18,199,643 (235,898)
Expenditures
General government 4,073,735 4,073,735 3,470,059 603,676
Public works 2,572,937 2,572,937 2,441,279 131,658
Public safety 7,079,605 7,079,605 6,781,420 298,185
Culture and recreation 2,302,880 2,302,880 1,765,787 537,093
Public library 880,477 880,477 788,274 92,203
Community development 718,268 718,268 563,809 154,459
Capital outlay 527,920 527,920 540,619 (12,699)
Total expenditures 18,155,822 18,155,822 16,351,247 1,804,575
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 279,719 279,719 1,848,396 1,568,677
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers out (575,702) (575,702) (335,856) 239,846
Total other financing sources
(uses) (575,702) (575,702) (335,856) 239,846
Net Change in Fund Balances $ (295,983) $ (295983) $ 1,512,540 $ 1,808,523
Basic differences (accruals) occur
because the cash basis of accounting
used for budgeting differs from the
modified accrual basis of accounting
prescribed for governmental funds (587,879)
Balance on a GAAP Basis $ 924,661

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances — Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) —
Keno Fund
Year Ended September 30, 2019

Variance
With
Final
Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Keno $ 1,190,000 $ 1,190,000 $ 1,117,207 $ (72,793)
Interest income 16,691 16,691 52,930 36,239
Total revenues 1,206,691 1,206,691 1,170,137 (36,554)
Expenditures
General government 34,745 34,745 26,380 8,365
Community betterment 725,430 725,430 535,350 190,080
Total expenditures 760,175 760,175 561,730 198,445
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 446,516 446,516 608,407 161,891
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers (395,902) (395,902) (250,386) 145,516
Total other financing sources
(uses) (395,902) (395,902) (250,386) 145,516
Net Change in Fund Balances $ 50,614 $ 50,614 $ 358,021 $ 307,407

Basic differences (accruals) occur
because the cash basis of accounting
used for budgeting differs from the
modified accrual basis of accounting

prescribed for governmental funds (33,409)
Balance on a GAAP Basis $ 324,612

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances — Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) —
Police Academy Fund

Year Ended September 30, 2019

50

Revenues
Intergovernmental
Interest income

Total revenues

Expenditures
Public Safety

Total expenditures

Deficiency of Revenues
Under Expenditures

Other Financing Sources
Operating transfers in

Total other financing sources
Net Change in Fund Balances
Basic differences (accruals) occur
because the cash basis of accounting
used for budgeting differs from the

modified accrual basis of accounting
prescribed for governmental funds

Balance on a GAAP Basis

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Variance
With
Final
Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 80,000 $ 80,000 $ 80,605 $ 605
55 55 212 157
80,055 80,055 80,817 762
95,104 95,104 93,993 1,111
95,104 95,104 93,993 1,11
(15,049) (15,049) (13,176) 1,873
20,000 20,000 20,000 -
20,000 20,000 20,000 -
$ 4,951 § 4,951 § 6,824 $ 1,873
239
$ 6.585

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information
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Note 1: Budgetary Accounting

The City prepares its budgets on a cash basis of accounting. Accordingly, revenues are recognized when cash
is received by the City and expenditures are recognized when cash is disbursed. This is a comprehensive basis
of accounting in contrast to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Under this
method of accounting, all unexpended appropriations lapse at the end of the budget year.

Amounts presented on the cash basis of accounting differ from those presented in accordance with modified
accrual basis due to the treatment of afforded accruals. A reconciliation for the year ended September 30, 2019,
which discloses the nature and amount of the adjustments necessary to convert the actual modified accrual
basis data to the budgetary basis, is presented on each schedule.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019 51



This page is intentionally left blank.




Other
Supplementary
Information

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT / CITY OF LA VISTA, NEBRASKA

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019 53



/C|'[y of La Vista’ Nebraska Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances — Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) —
Debt Service Fund
Year Ended September 30, 2019

Variance
With
Final
Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Property taxes $ 1,026,510 $ 1,026,510 $ 1,008,682 $ (17,828)
Sales taxes 2,598,480 2,598,480 2,377,484 (220,996)
Motor vehicle taxes 5,091 5,091 3,304 (1,787)
Special Assessments 50,000 50,000 338,131 288,131
Interest income 43,586 43,586 164,792 121,206
Other income 509,244 509,244 509,244 -
Total revenues 4,232,911 4,232,911 4,401,637 168,726
Expenditures
General government 285,382 285,382 144,979 140,403
Debt service principal retirement 3,850,000 3,850,000 3,565,000 285,000
Debt service interest 914,981 914,981 633,751 281,230
Total expenditures 5,050,363 5,050,363 4,343,730 706,633
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (817,452) (817,452) 57,907 875,359
Other Financing Sources
Operating transfers out (2,454,502) (2,454,502) (2,759,764) (305,262)
Total other financing sources (2,454,502) (2,454,502) (2,759,764) (305,262)
Net Change in Fund Balances $ (3,271,954) $ (3,271,954) $§ (2,701,857) $ 570,097
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances — Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) —
Capital Improvement Fund
Year Ended September 30, 2019

Variance
With
Final
Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Grant income $ 800,000 $ 800,000 $ 30,001 $  (769,999)

Interest income 11,830 11,830 13,054 1,224

Total revenues 811,830 811,830 43,055 (768,775)

Expenditures

Capital Outlay 15,834,327 15,834,327 5,021,075 10,813,252

General Government 217,741 217,741 38,513 179,228

Total expenditures 16,052,068 16,052,068 5,059,588 10,992,480

Deficiency of Revenues Under
Expenditures (15,240,238)  (15,240,238) (5,016,533) 10,223,705
Other Financing Sources

Operating transfers in 3,618,663 3,618,663 3,877,746 259,083

Bond proceeds 12,773,611 12,773,611 - (12,773,611)
Total other financing sources 16,392,274 16,392,274 3,877,746 (12,514,528)
Net Change in Fund Balances $ 1,152,036 $ 1,152,036 $ (1,138,787) $ (2,290,823)
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances — Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) —
Economic Development Program Fund
Year Ended September 30, 2019

Variance
With
Final
Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Interest income $ 718 $ 718 $ 109 $ (609)
Total revenues 718 718 109 (609)
Expenditures
General government - grant
issuance 3,000,000 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
Debt service principal retirement 75,000 75,000 - 75,000
Debt service interest 59,559 59,559 - 59,559
Total expenditures 3,134,559 3,134,559 - 3,134,559
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (3,133,841) (3,133,841) 109 3,133,950
Other Financing Sources
Operating transfers 200,000 200,000 - (200,000)
Bond proceeds 3,000,000 3,000,000 - (3,000,000)
Total other financing sources 3,200,000 3,200,000 - (3,200,000)
Net Change in Fund Balances $ 66,159 $ 66,159 $ 109 $ (66,050)
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances — Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) —
84th Street Redevelopment Fund
Year Ended September 30, 2019

Variance
With
Final
Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Sales taxes $ 2598480 $ 2598480 $ 2,377,484 $  (220,996)
Interest income 65,818 65,818 60,368 $ (5,450)
Other income 500,000 500,000 - (500,000)
Total revenues 3,164,298 3,164,298 2,437,852 (726,446)
Expenditures
Community development 656,639 656,639 117,459 539,180
General governmental 75,500 75,500 500 75,000
Capital outlay 10,780,187 10,780,187 4,390,514 6,389,673
Debt service principal retirement 775,000 775,000 495,000 280,000
Debt service interest 1,000,918 1,000,918 637,618 363,300
Total expenditures 13,288,244 13,288,244 5,641,091 7,647,153
Deficiency of Revenues Under
Expenditures (10,123,946) _ (10,123,946) (3,203,239) 6,920,707
Other Financing Sources
Operating transfers out (415,557) (415,557) (552,083) (136,526)
Bond proceeds 17,130,000 17,130,000 - (17,130,000)
Total other financing sources 16,714,443 16,714,443 (552,083)  (17,266,526)
Net Change in Fund Balances $ 6590497 $ 6,590,497 $ (3,755,322) $ (10,345,819)
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Statistical Section

This section of the City of La Vista’s comprehensive annual financial report contains trend information to indicate how
the City’s financial performance and position have changed over time. It also provides a context for the information
presented in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information.

Contents Pages
Financial Trends 61-65

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City’s financial performance and
well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 66-72

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City’s most significant local revenue sources:
Property Tax and Sales Tax

Debt Capacity 73-76

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City’s current levels of
outstanding debt and the City’s ability to issue additional debt in the future

Demographic and Economic Information 77-78

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment within
which the City’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information 79-81

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in the
City’s financial report relates to the services the city provides and the activities it performs.

Source: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the annual financial reports for
the relevant year.
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Governmental activities:
Net investment in capital
assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total governmental
activities net position

Business-type activities:
Net investment in capital
assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total business-type
activities net position

Primary Government

Net investment in capital
assets

Restricted

Unrestricted

Total primary government

net position

FINANCIAL SECTION

STATISTICAL SECTION

Table 1

Net Position by Component

Last Ten Years Fiscal Years

(Accrual Basis of Accounting)
Fiscal Year
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

$ 9,079,173 12,776,059 15,143,780 19,712,625 21,279,103 22,643,751 26,375,291 28,465,755 32,292,598 35,719,808
- 2,712,041 2,491,321 2,082,173 1,216,946 3,504,013 9,145,027 7,154,675 9,039,861 7,197,216
12,224,345 9,169,085 8,600,472 10,015,035 10,613,657 10,365,699 6,748,900 9,201,744 7,954,650 10,358,433
$21,303,518 24,657,185 26,235,573 31,809,833 33,109,706 36,513,463 42,269,218 44,822,174 49,287,109 53,275,457
$ 4,611,063 5,079,147 5,200,724 5,898,032 5,788,436 5,613,220 5,308,491 5,158,341 5,035,436 5,005,395
468,066 803,522 876,233 1,065,640 1,027,671 1,200,275 1,002,419 1,268,020 2,170,247 2,872,294
$ 5,079,129 5,882,669 6,076,957 6,963,672 6,816,107 6,813,495 6,310,910 6,426,361 7,205,683 7,877,689
$13,690,236 17,855,206 20,344,504 25,610,657 27,067,539 28,256,971 31,683,782 33,624,096 37,328,034 40,725,203
- 2,712,041 2,491,321 2,082,173 1,216,946 3,504,013 9,145,027 7,154,675 9,039,861 7,197,216
12,692,411 9,972,607 9,476,705 11,080,675 11,641,328 11,565,974 7,751,319 10,469,764 10,124,897 13,230,727
$26,382,647 30,539,854 32,312,530 38,773,505 39,925,813 43,326,958 48,580,128 51,248,535 56,492,792 61,153,146

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019
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Table 2a
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Accrual Basis of Accounting)
Fiscal Year
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Expenses:
Governmental Activities
General government $ 3,209,728 2,600,340 2,280,932 2,464,606 2,830,676 3,042,745 3,180,352 3,302,609 4,033,942 4,038,516
Public safety 4,254,537 4,594,288 5,050,454 4,928,992 5,671,727 6,369,785 6,473,034 6,839,929 7,132,385 7,605,607
Public works 3,248,389 3,330,530 3,290,489 3,470,958 3,686,477 3,710,503 3,851,418 4,116,582 3,839,031 5,016,988
Culture and recreation 2,687,247 2,677,742 2,558,430 2,507,328 2,643,595 2,641,524 2,800,325 3,372,819 2,975,688 2,699,851
Community betterment - 396,069 420,338 542,381 476,137 471,751 534,331 555,357 499,720 563,462
Community development - 1,159,090 1,144,697 3,041,707 570,548 579,238 851,063 842,525 1,235,141 707,573

Interest on long-term debt 3,104,332 3,002,580 2,554,174 2,442,261 2,360,424 2,275,121 2,048,414 2,055,098 2,011,109 1,333,392
Total Governmental Activities

Expenses 16,504,233 17,760,639 17,299,514 19,398,233 18,239,584 19,090,667 19,738,937 21,084,919 21,727,016 21,965,389
Business-type activities
Sewer 1,593,775 2,134,557 2,322,889 2,620,300 3,034,561 3,021,293 3,299,763 3,540,832 3,305,178 3,671,122
Golf 432,455 442,410 447,968 387,343 392,987 367,118 668,985 12,715 - -
Total Business-Type Activities
Expenses 2,026,230 2,576,967 2,770,857 3,007,643 3,427,548 3,388,411 3,968,748 3,553,547 3,305,178 3,571,122
Total Primary Government
Expenses $ 18,530,463 20,337,606 20,070,371 22,405,876 21,667,132 22,479,078 23,707,685 24,638,466 25,032,194 25,536,511

Program Revenues
Governmental Activities
Charges for Services

General government ~ $ 444,910 597,706 427,362 464,950 511,857 663,837 535,652 547,546 735,348 530,210
Public safety - - - - - - - - - -
Public works - - - - - - - - - -
Culture and recreation 408,814 922,229 432,726 475,908 455,299 283,575 285,461 371,747 326,054 563,996

Community betterment 1,259,986 1,490,596 1,298,859 1,256,231 1,314,587 1,389,381 1,282,710 1,228,240 1,133,699 1,111,910
Operating Grants and

Contributions 1,134,467 2,070,211 2,168,791 1,934,709 2,026,822 2,362,743 2,094,755 2,249,237 2,281,279 2,411,249
Capital Grants and
Contributions 1,769,867 2,896,413 1,305,307 748,876 343,354 718,596 693,334 - - 1,014,391
Total Governmental Activities
Program Revenues 5,018,044 7,977,155 5,633,045 4,880,674 4,651,919 5,418,132 4,891,912 4,396,770 4,476,380 5,631,756

Business-Type Activities
Charges for services

Sewer 1,631,483 2,364,615 2,451,692 2,623,684 2,651,549 2,979,124 3,299,328 3,829,690 3,959,894 4,203,683
Golf 250,649 263,344 260,301 236,325 229,615 248,149 246,215 3,470 - -
Operating Grants and
Contributions - - - 24,082 24,233 22,918 22,918 19,731 - -
Capital Grants and
Contributions 183,571 - - - - - - - - -
Total Business-Type Activities
Program Revenues 2,065,703 2,627,959 2,711,993 2,884,091 2,905,397 3,250,191 3,568,461 3,852,891 3,959,894 4,203,683
Total Primary Government
Program Revenue $ 7,083,747 10,605,114 8,345,038 7,764,765 7,557,316 8,668,323 8,460,373 8,249,661 8,436,274 9,835,439
Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental Activities $(11,486,189)  (9,783,484) (11,666,469) (14,517,559) (13,587,665) (13,672,535) (14,847,025) (16,688,149) (17,250,636) (16,333,633)
Business-Type Activities 39,473 50,992 (58,864) (123,552) (522,151) (138,220) (400,287) 299,344 654,716 632,561
Total $(11,446,716)  (9,732,492) (11,725,333)  (14,641,111) (14,109,816) (13,810,755) (15,247,312) (16,388,805) (16,595,920) (15,701,072)

62 For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019



INTRODUCTORY SECTION FINANCIAL SECTION SECTION

Table 2b
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Accrual Basis of Accounting)
Fiscal Year
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
General Revenues and Other
Changes in Net Position
Governmental Activities
Taxes
Property taxes $ 5,245,729 5,394,414 5,716,198 5,746,838 6,754,924 6,878,134 7,281,504 7,685,321 8,378,504 8,534,805
Sales and use taxes 3,492,898 3,867,123 4,476,662 6,269,262 5,623,544 7,722,672 9,087,248 9,140,084 9,821,847 10,024,129
Sales tax refunds - - - - (99,060)  (2,325,035) (179,393)  (2,048,490) (414,404)  (1,351,136)
Occupation taxes 1,414,507 1,542,079 1,580,448 1,705,931 1,813,090 1,821,521 1,764,230 1,743,994 1,831,621 1,711,471
Motor vehicle taxes 310,709 316,468 324,746 354,182 385,836 402,999 444,213 477,817 483,324 510,523
Interest income 1,588,437 1,320,465 1,321,256 1,301,858 1,230,685 1,481,807 1,274,167 1,274,532 1,002,789 242,470
Miscellaneous 163,806 235,591 75,547 75,290 263,945 1,225,768 918,311 782,123 727,168 665,769
Transfers (234,964) (235,000) (250,000) (250,000) (374,050) (131,575) 12,500 185,724 (23,528) (16,050)
Capital contributions
from governmental
activities
to business -type
activities - - - - - - - - (125,197) -
Transfer of Capital
assets from
business-type
activities to
governmental
activities - - - - - - - - 33,447 -

Net Position Received from

Annexation - 696,011 - 4,888,458 - - -
Total Governmental Activities 11,981,122 13,137,151 13,244,857 20,091,819 15,498,914 17,076,291 20,602,780 19,241,105 21,715,571 20,321,981
Business Type Activities

Interest Income 6,954 5,502 3,152 3,397 4,923 4,033 1,693 1,831 9,328 23,395
Miscellaneous - - - - - - (91,491) - - -
Transfers 234,964 235,000 250,000 250,000 374,050 131,575 (12,500) (185,724) 23,528 16,050

Capital contributions
from governmental
activities
to business -type
activities - - - - - - - - 125,197 -
Transfer of Capital
assets from
business-type
activities to
governmental
activities - - - - - - - - (33,447) -
Net Position Received from
Annexation - 512,046 - 756,870 - - - - - -
Total Business Type Activities 241,918 752,548 253,152 1,010,267 378,973 135,608 (102,298) (183,893) 124,606 39,445
Total primary governmental
activities general revenues
and other charges $ 12,223,040 13,889,699 13,498,009 21,102,086 15,877,887 17,211,899 20,500,482 19,057,212 21,840,177 20,361,426

Change in Net Position
Governmental Activities $ 494,933 3,353,667 1,578,388 5,574,260 1,911,249 3,403,756 5,755,755 2,552,956 4,464,935 3,988,348
Business-Type Activities 281,391 803,540 194,288 886,715 (143,178) (2,612) (502,585) 115,451 779,322 672,006
Change in Net Position 776,324 4,157,207 1,772,676 6,460,975 1,768,071 3,401,144 5,253,170 2,668,407 5,244,257 4,660,354

Change in Accounting

Principle:
Governmental Activities - - - - (611,376) - B - - -
Business-Type Activities - - - - (4,387) - - - - -
Change in Accounting
Principle: - (615,763)

Total Primary Government $ 776,324 4,157,207 1,772,676 6,460,975 1,152,308 3,401,144 5,253,170 2,668,407 5,244,257 4,660,354

Note: The City adopted GASB Statement No. 65 for the fiscal year ending 9/30/2015. No prior period information was restated.
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Table 3
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)
Fiscal Year
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
General Fund
Nonspendable $ - - - - 84,840 263,575 43,298 134,883 56,437 62,711
Restricted - - - - - - - - 131,146 -
Committed for:
Capital outlay - - - - - - - - - 100,716
Unassigned 4,329,223 5,215,704 5,392,485 8,269,430 8,109,475 8,898,359 9,087,712 7,921,378 6,827,379 7,776,196
Total General Fund $ 4,329,223 5,215,704 5,392,485 8,269,430 8,194,315 9,161,934 9,131,010 8,056,261 7,014,962 7,939,623
All Other Governmental
Funds
Nonspendable - - - - - - - - - 2,366
Restricted for:
Debt Service $ 7,552,573 6,216,383 5,162,786 5,620,155 3,612,797 4,746,495 6,024,480 6,217,965 6,031,758 4,203,542
Community
Betterment 2,777,824 2,712,041 2,491,321 2,082,173 1,216,946 1,645,971 1,966,247 2,734,800 3,245,598 3,570,210
Economic
Development 17,412,446 17,201,319 16,990,730 16,775,152 16,554,788 16,343,469 16,129,763 16,120,117 3,607,668 7,043
84th Street
Redevelopment - - - - - 1,848,042 14,650,624 9,413,946 10,497,181 6,452,576
Public Safety - - - - - - - - 16,880 21,099
Committed for:
Capital Improvements 393,571 392,181 660,518 536,600 702,103 236,369 264,477 - - -
Unassigned - - - - - - - (881,978) - -
Total All Other Governmental
Funds $28,136,414 26,521,924 25,305,355 25,014,080 22,086,634 24,820,346 39,035,591 33,604,850 23,399,085 14,256,836
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Table 4
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)
Fiscal Year
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Revenues
Taxes
Property $ 5,313,649 5,460,797 5,744,386 5,744,730 6,721,628 6,912,323 7,299,937 7,674,921 8,333,225 8,501,667
Sales and Use 3,492,898 3,867,123 4,476,662 6,269,262 5,523,544 7,722,672 9,087,248 9,140,084 9,821,847 10,024,129
Occupation 1,414,507 1,542,079 1,580,448 1,705,931 1,813,090 1,821,521 1,769,846 1,743,994 1,831,621 1,711,471
Motor Vehicle 310,709 316,468 324,746 354,182 385,836 402,999 444,213 477,817 483,324 507,578
Licenses and permits 444,910 597,706 427,362 464,950 511,857 663,837 535,652 547,546 734,973 530,410
Intergovernmental 1,935,112 4,964,162 3,472,166 2,689,012 2,221,089 3,077,615 2,833,320 2,201,182 2,281,279 2,423,878
Charges for services 408,814 954,761 432,726 475,908 455,299 283,575 285,461 352,183 429,630 530,676
Keno 1,259,986 1,490,596 1,298,859 1,256,231 1,314,587 1,389,381 1,282,710 1,228,240 1,133,699 1,111,910
Interest Income 1,588,437 1,320,465 1,321,256 1,301,858 1,230,685 1,513,486 1,259,744 1,247,903 950,149 250,998
Special Assessments 347,917 252,396 117,338 140,471 18,514 731,673 129,801 21,843 45,440 455,621
Miscellaneous 161,578 92,131 56,314 62,266 247,292 1,206,518 897,722 765,995 595,623 661,738
Total Revenues 16,678,517 20,858,684 19,252,263 20,464,801 20,443,421 25,725,600 25,825,654 25,401,708 26,640,810 26,710,076
Expenditures
Current
General government 2,640,012 2,246,340 2,089,437 2,114,795 2,164,343 2,738,370 3,004,718 2,978,453 3,664,625 3,828,286
Public works 1,917,853 2,207,457 2,098,247 2,122,632 2,055,777 2,109,913 2,058,528 2,068,969 2,031,477 2,345,088
Public safety 3,994,353 3,889,265 4,360,564 4,255,511 5,003,284 5,726,842 5,850,116 6,157,356 6,537,737 7,059,968
Culture and recreation 2,037,137 2,213,236 2,205,502 2,237,321 2,328,643 2,305,979 2,455,107 2,564,596 2,690,026 2,670,865
Community betterment - 396,069 420,338 542,381 476,137 471,751 534,331 555,357 499,720 727,184
Community development 439,088 1,159,090 1,144,697 615,014 570,548 579,238 851,063 842,525 1,235,141 571,650
State sales and use tax refunds - - - - 2,426,693 232,320 773,245 1,593,069 2,064,859 402,889
Capital outlay 1,621,401 4,144,479 1,879,308 1,352,623 1,732,940 2,650,442 3,450,398 9,323,669 10,074,863 11,806,758
Debt service
Principal retirement 2,335,000 3,025,000 3,170,000 3,785,000 3,907,697 3,572,623 4,191,956 4,018,904 31,302,409 4,228,603
Interest 3,134,876 3,118,195 2,784,588 2,434,294 2,405,870 2,279,745 2,019,445 2,027,947 2,462,867 1,286,030
Total Expenditures 18,119,720 22,399,131 20,152,681 19,459,571 23,071,932 22,667,223 25,188,907 32,130,845 62,563,724 34,927,321
Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (1,441,203)  (1,540,447) (900,418) 1,005,230 (2,628,511) 3,058,377 636,747 (6,729,137) (35,922,914)  (8,217,245)
Other Financing Sources
(Uses)
Refunding bonds issued 11,370,000 15,115,000 8,915,000 - - 11,035,000 8,240,000 - 3,150,000 -
Payment to bond refunding
escrow agent (11,240,000) (14,955,000)  (8,804,370) - - (10,145,000)  (8,110,000) - (3,095,000) -
Bond or note issuance - - - - - - 13,285,000 - 24,345,811 -
Bond premium - - - - - 132,398 107,574 - 150,876 -
Insurance proceeds - - - - - - - - 131,146 -
Transfers, net (234,964) (235,000) (250,000) (250,000) (374,050) (109,444) 25,000 223,647 (6,983) (343)
Net position received from
annexation 289,479 887,438 - 1,830,440 - - - - - -
Total Other financing sources
(uses) 184,515 812,438 (139,370) 1,580,440 (374,050) 912,954 13,547,574 223,647 24,675,850 (343)
Net Change in Fund Balances $ (1,256,688) (728,009)  (1,039,788) 2,585,670 (3,002,561) 3,971,331 14,184,321 (6,505,490) (11,247,064)  (8,217,588)
Debt service as a percentage
of non-capital expenditures* 33% 33% 32% 34% 30% 29% 28% 27% 64% 24%

*In the fiscal year ending 9/30/2018, the City retired an $11,215,000 bond anticipation note and repaid a $15,810,692 note. Excluding these amounts from principal
retirement, the debt service as a percent of non-capital expenditures ratio would be 26% rather than 64%.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019
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TOTAL CITY TAXABLE SALES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year Ended

Total City Taxable

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Table 5

Total Direct Tax

September 30 Sales Rate
2010 $ 246,875,288 1.50%
201 276,281,219 1.50%
2012 314,443,224 1.50%
2013 444,362,439 1.50%
2014 378,557,985 1.50%
2015 398,170,898 2.00%
2016 467,201,026 2.00%
2017 479,638,144 2.00%
2018 521,747,831 2.00%
2019 519,030,075 2.00%
Note: The 2014 voter approved tax rate increase began October 1,

2014 for the redevelopment of the 84th Street corridor.

In 2013, the City experienced unusually high consumer use
taxable sales related to business projects initiated under the
Nebraska Advantage Act. This consumer use tax collected was
refunded in subsequent years per the terms of the Nebraska

Advantage Act.

Source: Nebraska Department of Revenue

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019



INTRODUCTORY SECTION FINANCIAL SECTION STATISTICAL SECTION

Table 6

TOTAL CITY SALES TAX RATES
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Direct 1 Overlapping 2
City of State of Total
Fiscal Year La Vista Nebraska Tax Rate
2010 0.0150 0.0550 0.0700
2011 0.0150 0.0550 0.0700
2012 0.0150 0.0550 0.0700
2013 0.0150 0.0550 0.0700
2014 0.0150 0.0550 0.0700
2015 0.0200 0.0550 0.0750
2016 0.0200 0.0550 0.0750
2017 0.0200 0.0550 0.0750
2018 0.0200 0.0550 0.0750
2019 0.0200 0.0550 0.0750
Note: 1 2014 voter approved tax rate increase began October 1, 2014 for

the redevelopment of the 84th Street corridor

2 Overlapping rates are those of other governments that apply to
consumers within the City of La Vista

Source: Nebraska Department of Revenue

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019
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Table 7
NET TAXABLE SALES BY BUSINESS CLASSIFICATION
CURRENT YEAR AND TEN YEARS AGO
2018 2008
Percentage Percentage
of Total City of Total City
Net Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Business Classification Sales Rank Assessed Value Assessed Value Rank Assessed Value
Retail Trade $ 921,185,120 1 47.18% $ 526,965,307 1 50.31%
Accomodations & Food Services 314,521,763 2 16.11% 164,699,855 2 15.72%
Wholesale Trade 141,386,021 3 7.24% 110,174,653 3 10.52%
Other 575,224,159 29.46% 245,567,133 23.45%
1,952,317,063 100.00% 1,047,406,948 100.00%
City of La Vista Total $ 521,747,831 $ 199,207,942
City of La Vista Percentage of Total 26.72% 19.02%
Note: Amounts shown are Sarpy County net taxable sales, which includ refunds and do not include motor vehicle net sales.

The sales numbers are on a calendar year basis.

Amounts are not available at the City level.

2019 sales data is not yet available from the Nebraska Department of Revenue.
Source: Nebraska Department of Revenue
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ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year
Ended Total Assessed Total Direct Tax
September 30 Real Property Personal Property Value Rate

2010 965,262,634 53,679,105 1,018,941,739 0.5235
2011 1,011,049,839 38,892,725 1,049,942,564 0.5235
2012 1,025,349,544 33,988,114 1,059,337,658 0.5500
2013 1,009,044,474 51,330,141 1,060,374,615 0.5500
2014 1,193,207,760 50,759,000 1,243,966,760 0.5500
2015 1,215,889,400 53,195,886 1,269,085,286 0.5500
2016 1,279,185,949 51,952,600 1,331,138,549 0.5500
2017 1,352,554,270 58,126,806 1,410,681,076 0.5500
2018 1,430,278,887 66,543,021 1,496,821,908 0.5500
2019 1,474,302,710 67,838,948 1,542,141,658 0.5500

Note: Property is assessed at actual value, therefore, the assessed values are equal to actual value.
Source: Sarpy County Assessor’s Office

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019
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Table 9
PROPERTY TAX RATES-DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Tax Year 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
City of La Vista
General Fund 0.4435 04735 0.5000 0.4900 0.4900 0.4900 0.4100 0.4100 0.4100 0.4900
Debt Service 0.0800 0.0500 0.0500 0.0600 0.0600  0.0600  0.1400  0.1400  0.1400  0.0600
Total City of La Vista 0.5235 0.5235 0.5500 0.5500 0.5500 0.5500 0.5500 0.5500  0.5500  0.5500
Overlapping rates @*
Sarpy County 0.29990 0.29990 0.29990 0.29990 0.29990 0.29990 0.29690 0.29690 0.29690 0.29690
Papillion-La Vista Schools 0.09022 0.09796 0.09257 0.09667 0.12042 0.11886 0.11412 0.10855 1.07599 1.07070
Papillion School Special

Building - - - - - - 0.01000 0.01000 - -
School District 27 Bond 1 0.01376 0.01407  0.0141 0.01359 - - - - - -
School District 27 Bond 2 0.02413  0.02631 0.0268 0.02586 - - - - - -
School District 27 Bond 3 0.10186 0.10679 0.1109 0.11189 0.11131 0.11246 0.11046 0.10410 0.10145 0.09819
School District 27 Bond 4 0.05295 0.05556  0.0623 0.05785 0.05943 0.05956 0.05812 0.05694 0.05646 0.05440
School District 27 Bond 5 - - - - 0.01529 0.06223 0.05985 0.07525 0.07191 0.06669
School District 27 Bond 6 - - - - - - - - - 0.01503
Elementary Learning

Committee 0.95000 0.95000 0.9500 0.95000 0.95000 0.95000 0.95000 0.95000 - -
Learning Committee Special

Building 0.01000 - - - - - - - - -
Learning Committee Capital

Projects 0.00500 0.00125 - - - - - - - -
Learning Committee -
Elementary Learning 0.01000  0.0100 0.01000 0.01000 0.01000 0.01625 0.01525 0.01625 0.01625
Papio Natural Resource 0.03276 0.03275 0.03275 0.03061 0.02422 0.02453 0.03045 0.03061 0.03079 0.03085
Papio NRD Bond - - - 0.00215 0.00853 0.00823 0.00759 0.00743 0.00701 0.00674
Metro Community College 0.08500 0.08500 0.08500 0.08500 0.09500 0.09500 0.09500 0.09500 0.09500 0.09500
Agricultural Society 0.00111  0.00114 0.00134 0.00136 0.00210 0.00224 0.00240 0.00257 0.00259 0.00274
Educational Service Unit 3 0.01618 0.01611 0.01609 0.01606 0.01500 0.01500 0.01500 0.01500 0.01500 0.01500
Total Overlapping Rates 1.68286 1.69684 1.70184 1.70093 1.71120 1.75801 1.76613 1.76759 1.76935 1.76848
Total Tax Rate 2.20636 2.22034 2.25184 2.25093 2.26120 2.30801 2.31613 2.31759 2.31935 2.31848

Note: The above tax year rates are for use in the following fiscal year.
Source: Sarpy County Clerk’s Office and City of La Vista Finance Department

() Tax rates are per $100 of assessed valuation and effective on September 1 of each year.
@ Qverlapping Rates are those of local and county governments which apply to property owners within the City of La Vista, NE.
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Table 10

2019
Percentage of

Taxable Assessed Total City Taxable
Taxpayer Type of Business Value Rank Assessed Value
JDHQ Hotels Conference Center/Hotel 68,007,000 1 4.41%
Harrison Hills Apartments, LLC Apartments 40,846,700 2 2.65%
Green Pointe, LLC Apartments 33,828,000 3 2.19%
Paypal Inc. Office Building 29,520,366 4 1.91%
Edward Rose Development Co, LLC Apartments 25,921,590 5 1.68%
Streck Inc. Manufacturer 24,246,344 6 1.57%
Rotella’s Italian Bakery Inc. Bakery 16,814,624 7 1.09%
Yahoo Holdings, Inc. (Oath) Office Building 15,458,258 8 1.00%
Southwind Partners Apartments 14,904,000 9 0.97%
SR Group, LLC Apartments 11,900,000 10 0.77%

$ 281,446,882 18.25%

2010
Percentage of

Taxable Assessed Total City Taxable
Taxpayer Type of Business Value Rank Assessed Value
JQH Hotels, LLC Conference Center/Hotel ~ $ 65,630,000 1 6.90%
Harrison Hills Apartments, LLC Apartments 29,690,000 2 3.12%
Paypal Inc. Office Building 27,774,372 3 2.92%
Green Pointe, LLC Apartments 23,330,000 4 2.45%
Streck Inc. Manufacturer 15,716,424 5 1.65%
Edward Rose Development Co, LLC Apartments 14,000,500 6 1.47%
The Kroenke Group Shopping Mall 13,588,872 7 1.43%
Yahoo Holdings, Inc. (Oath) Office Building 12,117,385 8 1.27%
Southwind Partners Apartments 10,840,000 9 1.14%
Cabela’s Retail 10,600,000 10 1.12%

$ 223,287,553 23.49%

Source: Sarpy County Assessor’s Office

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019
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Table 11
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Collected within the Fiscal Year of
the Levy Total Collections to Date
Fiscal Year
Ended Taxes Levied Collections in
September for the Fiscal Percentage of subsequent Percentage of
30th, Year Amount Levy Years Amount Levy
2010 $ 5,334,160 $ 5,266,897 98.74% $ 48,178 5,315,075 99.64%
2011 5,496,449 5,414,857 98.52% 47,712 5,462,569 99.38%
2012 5,826,357 5,757,064 98.81% 40,434 5,797,498 99.50%
2013 5,832,060 5,796,975 99.40% 43,057 5,840,032 100.00%
2014 6,841,817 6,755,069 98.73% 74,642 6,829,711 99.82%
2015 6,979,969 6,895,803 98.79% 58,598 6,954,401 99.63%
2016 7,321,262 7,226,652 98.71% 56,087 7,282,739 99.47%
2017 7,758,746 7,665,825 98.80% 67,832 7,733,657 99.68%
2018 8,232,520 8,178,652 99.35% 73,925 8,252,577 100.00%
2019 8,481,779 8,350,204 98.45% 8,350,204 98.45%
Note: The fiscal year of the City begins October 1 and ends September 30. Taxes are levied in December. First installments of real

estate taxes are delinquent the following April 1, second installments delinquent August 1. Delinquent taxes bear 14 percent

interest. The figures above do not include motor vehicle in lieu of ad valorem taxes. Tax receipts are not reported from the

County separate from interest collected. Therefore taxes collected may be greater than original levy.

Source: Sarpy County Treasurer’s Office
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Table 12
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Fiscal Year
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Governmental Activities
General obligation bonds $60,050,000 58,830,000 56,100,000 55,595,000 51,780,000 48,945,000 47,130,000 43,145,000 25,300,000 22,075,000
Registered warrants 640,554 640,554 640,554 - - - - - - -
Tax revenue bonds - - - - - - - - 18,560,000 18,065,000
Bond anticipation notes - - - - - - 11,215,000 11,215,000 - -
Notes from direct
placements - - - - - - - - 3,150,000 2,810,000
Notes payable 523,867 372,611 239,129 110,589 17,892 149,692 116,710 82,806 531,208 362,605
Premium/discount on
bonds issued 45,701 42,276 38,852 35,427 32,002 147,459 194,010 167,525 285,118 247,341
Deferred for refunding (92,880) (198,403) (811,307) (751,687) - - - - - -
Business Type Activities
Revenue bonds 470,000 360,000 245,000 125,000 - - - - - -
Notes payable 21,419 160,276 123,870 83,178 47,662 14,316 - - - -
Total Primary Government $61,658,661  $60,207,314  $56,576,098  $55,197,507 $51,877,556 $49,256,467 $58,655,720 $54,610,331  $47,826,326  $43,559,946
Net Debt per Capita 3,913 3,764 3,496 3,305 3,029 2,896 3,431 3,187 2,787 2,538 *
Percentage
of Personal Income 9.79% 9.09% 8.22% 7.66% 6.85% 6.27% 7.30% 6.59% 5.54% 5.04%
*
* 2019 Net Debt per Capital and Percentage of Personal Income is calculated using the City’s 2018 demographic data.
Source: Finance Department
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Table 13
RATIOS OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Ratio of

Less: Net Net Debt to

Position Valuation

General Bond General Restricted Bonded of Taxable

Obligation  Anticipation Bonded for Debt Debt per Real

Fiscal Year Bonds Notes Debt Service Total Capita 1 Property: 2
2010 $60,002,821 - $60,002,821 - 60,002,821 3,808 5.89%
2011 58,673,873 - 58,673,873 - 58,673,873 3,668 5.59%
2012 55,327,545 - 55,327,545 - 55,327,545 3,418 5.22%
2013 54,878,740 - 54,878,740 - 54,878,740 3,286 5.18%
2014 51,812,002 - 51,812,002 - 51,812,002 3,026 4.17%
2015 49,092,459 - 49,092,459 - 49,092,459 2,887 3.87%
2016 47,324,010 11,215,000 58,539,010 4,127,637 54,411,373 3,183 4.40%
2017 43,312,525 11,215,000 54,527,525 4,419,875 50,107,650 2,924 3.87%
2018 47,295,118 - 47,295,118 5,663,117 41,632,001 2,426 3.16%
2019 43,197,341 - 43,197,341 3,596,498 39,600,843 2,307* 2.80%

Note: Details regarding the City’s outstanding debt can be found in the Notes to the financial statements.
1 Population data can be found in Table 14 Demographic and Economic Statistics. Population is not available yet for 2019.
2 Property Value information can be found in Table 8 Assessed Value and Estunated Actual Value of Taxable Property.

* 2019 Bonded Debt per Capital ratio was calculated using the City’s 2018 population data.
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Table 14
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Estimated Direct and
Debt Percentage Overlapping
Governmental Units Outstanding Applicable Debt to the City
City $ 43,197,341 100.0% $ 43,197,341
Overlapping:
Sarpy County** $ 37,245,000 9.94% $ 3,702,153
School District. 0027 Papillion-LaVista 107,650,000 26.80% 28,850,200
$ 144,895,000 $ 32,552,353
Total $ 188,092,341 $ 75,749,694

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the City.
This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne
by the residents and businesses of the City of La Vista. This process recognizes that, when considering the
City’s ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden bone by the residents and businesses
should be taken into account. However this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore
responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping government.

The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values. Applicable
percentages were estmated by determining the portion of the City’s taxable assessed value and dividing it by
the corresponding overlapping government unit’s taxable assessed value.

Source: Nebraska Auditor of Public Accounts; Each respective political subdivision’s FYE 2018 audit and 2007-18 budget
** Includes debt issued by Sarpy County Leasing Corporation
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Table 15
PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Debt Service Requirements

Direct Net
Gross Operating Available
Revenue Expenses Revenue Principal Interest Total Coverage
Sewer Utility Service
System Charges
2010 1,631,483 1,593,775 37,708 21,419 632 22,051 1.71
2011 2,364,615 2,132,197 232,418 160,276 4,772 165,048 1.41
2012 2,451,692 2,318,950 132,742 123,870 3,688 127,558 1.04
2013 2,647,766 2,617,284 30,482 83,178 3,292 86,470 0.35
2014 2,675,782 3,032,588  (356,806) 47,662 1,213 48,875 (7.30)
2015 3,002,042 3,020,231 (18,189) 14,316 151 14,467 (1.26)
2016 3,322,246 3,299,763 22,483 - - - n/a
2017 3,849,421 3,540,832 308,589 - - - n/a
2018 3,959,894 3,305,178 654,716 - - - n/a
2019 4,203,683 3,571,122 632,561 - - - n/a
Gross

Golf Revenue
2010 250,649 405,837  (155,188) 470,000 52,478 522,478 (0.30)
2011 263,344 421,049  (157,705) 360,000 29,946 389,946 (0.40)
2012 260,301 428,501 (168,200) 245,000 13,489 258,489 (0.65)
2013 236,325 378,954  (142,629) 125,000 3,406 128,406 (1.11)
2014 229,615 391,541 (161,926) - - - n/a
2015 248,149 367,118  (118,969) - - - n/a
2016 246,215 668,985  (422,770) - - - n/a
2017 3,470 12,715 (9,245) - - - n/a
2018 - - - - - - n/a
2019 - - - - - - n/a

Source: Finance Department
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Table 16

Peronal

Income Per Capita

(thousands of Personal Public School ~ Unemployment
Fiscal Year Population ™ dollars)® Income @ Enroliment® Rate ¢

2010 15,758 6,382,084 39,958 9,895 4.1%
2011 15,994 6,735,101 41,433 10,049 4.0%
2012 16,185 7,040,716 42,500 10,393 3.6%
2013 16,700 7,293,707 43,158 10,753 3.3%
2014 17,125 7,599,405 44,215 11,023 2.7%
2015 17,006 8,100,120 46,222 11,159 2.7%
2016 17,095 8,391,199 47,009 11,334 2.8%
2017 17,137 8,790,405 48,385 11,608 2.7%
2018 17,163 9,284,454 50,333 11,730 2.5%
2019 N/A N/A N/A 11,818 2.7%

Sources: ™MU.S. Census Bureau. 2019 numbers are not available.

@ U.S. Department of Commerce Bureau of Economic Analysis, Personal Income and Per Capital
Income are based on Omaha-Council Bluffs NE-IA, Sarpy County NE.

® Papillion-LaVista Community Schools (Sarpy County School District 0027)
® Nebraska.gov - Department of Labor, statistics for Sarpy County, NE

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019
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Table 17

EMPLOYER

INDUSTRY

Offutt Air Force Base

PayPal, Inc.

Infogroup Compilation Center
Oriental Trading Company

Papillion-La Vista Public Schools

Bellevue Public Schools
Werner Enterprises, Inc.
Ehrling Berquist Clinic
Bellevue University
Hillcrest Health System

Source: Sarpy County 2018 and 2010 FY Continuing Disclosure statement
employee numbers are not available due to the proprietary nature of the information.
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Offutt Air Force Base

Data/Marketing
Warehouse/Distribution

Papillion-La Vista Public Schools
Werner Enterprises, Inc.
Bellevue Public Schools
AmeriTrade (Southroads)
Infogroup Compilation Center
Oriental Trading Company
Bellevue University

Sarpy County Government

Government

Service

Education

Trucking

Education

Financial
Data/Marketing
Warehouse/Distribution
Education

Government

Specific
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Table 18
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Full Time Equivalent Employees as of September 30
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Function
General Fund
Administrative Services

Director - - - - - 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Finance 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.00 3.00
City Clerk 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 2.00 2.50 2.50 4.50 4.50
Human Resources 1.00 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50 2.50 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00
Administration
City Administrator’s
Office 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.80 4.80 4.88 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00
Intern (Unpaid) 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 - - - -
Public Buildings & Grounds
Buildings & Grounds 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 - - - - -
Community Development
Administration 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00
Planning 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 2.00
Building Inspection 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00
Code Enforcement 1.00 - - - - - - - - -
Intern (Paid) 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.00
Public Safety
Fire Department 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Police Sworn 33.00 34.00 34.00 34.00 34.00 34.00 34.00 34.00 37.00 38.00
Police Civilian 4.50 5.50 5.50 5.50 5.50 5.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50
Intern (Unpaid) 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 - - - - - -
Volunteers 75.00 75.00 75.00 75.00 - - - - - -
Police Academy - - - - - - - - 1.00 1.00
Public Works
PW Administration - - - 4.24 4.62 4.70 4.00 5.00 5.00 6.00
Building Maintenance - - - - - 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50
Streets Operating 19.00 19.24 19.24 15.62 15.62 15.62 15.62 15.62 15.62 16.62
Streets PT & Seasonal 1.88 1.88 1.88 1.88 1.88 1.88 1.88 1.88 1.88 1.88
Parks Operating 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 7.00 8.00 8.42 8.42 8.42 10.00
Parks Seasonal 3.36 3.36 3.36 3.36 3.36 3.98 3.56 3.56 3.56 4.56
Sports Complex 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00
Sports Complex
Seasonal 0.84 0.84 0.84 0.84 0.84 0.84 0.84 0.84 0.84 0.84
Library
Library Administration 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 6.00
Circulation Clerks 5.80 5.90 5.90 5.90 5.90 6.00 6.70 6.70 6.70 5.70
Library (Seasonal) 0.50 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10
Recreation
Recreation
Administration 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00
Recreation Assistants 4.00 4.00 4.00 3.30 3.30 3.30 3.30 3.30 3.30 3.30
Senior Bus 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.75 1.83 1.83 1.83 1.83 1.83
Swimming Pool
(Seasonal) 3.99 3.99 3.99 3.99 3.99 3.99 3.99 3.99 3.99 3.99
General Fund Total 198.92 200.51 200.51 201.23 126.56 127.37 124.74 124.74 130.24 137.32
Sewer Fund
Sewer Admin - - - - - - 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00
Sewer PT & Seasonal 2.08 2.08 2.08 2.08 2.08 2.08 2.08 2.08 2.08 2.08
Sewer Fund Total 2.08 2.08 2.08 2.08 2.08 2.08 8.08 8.08 8.08 8.08
All Funds Total 201.00 202.59 202.59 203.31 128.64 129.45 132.82 132.82 138.32 145.40

Source: Various City Departments
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Function

Engineering
Miles of Street -
Reconstruction
Public Safety
Police
Arrests
Parking/Ordinance
Citations
Traffic Citations
Fire
Number of Calls
Answered
Number of Facilities
Building and Safety

Number of Commercial
Building Permits

Number of Residential
Building Permits
Miscellaneous Permits
Building Inspections
Culture and Recreation
Library
Total Circulation
Recreation
Attendance: Community
Center

Source: Various City Departments
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Table 19
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION
LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
- 1 - 3 - - 2 3 - 7
489 450 520 566 652 534 350 317 390 275
17 62 35 54 73 33 34 40 33 96
4,226 4,830 5,828 6,396 5,790 3,654 2,943 2,739 3,525 2,737
n/a n/a n/a n/a 792 1,080 1,363 1,289 1,239 1,427
2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
42 44 32 35 34 45 42 51 53 75
192 156 146 137 124 115 99 107 121 90
589 969 1,019 784 786 725 798 1,428 1,285 984
2,200 2,366 2,813 1,960 2,093 n/a 1,661 2,126 2,989 3,327
138,065 141,488 143,931 153,697 158,336 176,633 166,197 165,606 162,799 175,187
n/a n/a n/a n/a 93,551 96,935 85,590 84,775 93,028 95,187

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019
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Function
General Government
City Hall
Public Safety
Police Stations
Fire Stations
Streets
Streets (Lane Miles)
Culture and Recreation
Parks Acreage
Parks #

Swimming Pools
(Public)
Tennis Courts
Baseball Fields
Soccer Fields
Football Fields

Outdoor Basketball
Court

Remote Airplay Flying

Field
Golf Courses (Public)
Library
Sewer
Sanitary Sewer
(miles)

FINANCIAL SECTION

STATISTICAL SECTION

Source: Various City Departments

Table 20
CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
173 173 192 192 206 207 209 210 210 213
153 153 153 153 153 153 153 153 153 153
17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
1 11 1 11 1 11 1 11 11 1
12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12
2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 - -

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
48 51 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 54
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Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditor’s Report

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of La Vista, Nebraska

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, and each major fund of the City of La Vista, Nebraska (“the City™), as of and for
the year ended September 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 31, 2020.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019
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The Honorable Major and City Council
City of La Vista, Nebraska
Page 84

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

FBED L

Omaha, Nebraska
March 31, 2020

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
Economic Development Fund
City of La Vista, Nebraska

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Economic Development Fund of the City
of La Vista, Nebraska, as of and for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, and the related
statements of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance for the years then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which comprise the basic financial statements, as listed in the
table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.



The Honorable Mayor and City Council
Economic Development Fund
Page 2

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Economic Development Fund of the City of La Vista, Nebraska, as of
September 30, 2019 and 2018, and the changes in financial position thereof for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the Economic Development Fund and do not
purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the City of La Vista, Nebraska, as of
September 30, 2019 and 2018, and the changes in its financial position for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is
not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Management has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical
context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

BED L

Omaha, Nebraska
March 31, 2020



Economic Development Fund
City of La Vista, Nebraska
Balance Sheets
September 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,043 $ 6,934
Total assets $ 7,043 $ 6,934
Fund Balance
Restricted for economic development 7,043 6,934
Total fund balance $ 7,043 $ 6,934

See Notes to Financial Statements 3



Economic Development Fund

City of La Vista, Nebraska

Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balance

Years Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

Interest Income
Expenditures

Community development

Debt service
Principal retirement

Interest
Total expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
Transfers
Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year

See Notes to Financial Statements

2019 2018
$ 109 $ 753012
- 736
- 16,420,000
- 1,431,476
- 17,852,212
109 (17,099,200)
- 986,017
109 (16,113,183)
6,934 16,120,117
$ 7,043 $ 6,934




Economic Development Fund
City of La Vista, Nebraska

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2019 and 2018

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

On September 30, 2003, the citizens of the City of La Vista, Nebraska (the “City”) voted to
establish the Economic Development Program to create jobs and/or develop tourism for the
purpose of supporting the City’s commercial developments, rehabilitate residential neighborhoods
and expand industrial development in order to ensure the economic stability and vitality of the
City.

Financial Reporting Entity

The financial statements of the Economic Development Fund include all significant separately
administered activities for which the Economic Development Fund is financially accountable.
Financial accountability is determined on the basis of selection of governing authority, imposition
of will, a financial benefit/burden relationship, and/or fiscal dependency. The Economic
Development Fund’s financial statements are included in the City’s financial statements as a major
governmental fund.

The financial statements present only the Economic Development Fund and do not purport to, and
do not, present fairly the financial position of the City as of September 30, 2019 and 2018, and the
changes in its financial position for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis of Accounting

The Economic Development Fund financial statements are prepared using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual (when they become
both measurable and available). “Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be
determined and “available” means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to
be used to pay liabilities of the current period and that it is legally available for such purposes.
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for debt service
expenditures which are reported as expenditures in the year due.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.



Economic Development Fund
City of La Vista, Nebraska

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2019 and 2018

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, a government’s deposits may not
be returned to it. The Economic Development Fund follows the City’s deposit policy for custodial
credit risk which requires compliance with the provisions of state law.

State law requires collateralization of all deposits with federal depository insurance; bonds and
other obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. agencies or instrumentalities of the State of Nebraska;
bonds of any city, county, school district or special road district of the State of Nebraska; bonds of
any state; or a surety bond having an aggregate value at least equal to the amount of the deposits.
The Statutes allow pledged securities to be reduced by the amount of the deposit insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).

The Economic Development Fund participates in the pooled cash accounts maintained by the City.
The Fund’s share of this pool was $7,043 and $6,934 at September 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

Note 2.  City Transfer

The general fund of the City transferred $986,017 to the Economic Development Fund in 2018 to
assist in funding debt service payments. No transfers were made in 2019.

Note 3: Subsequent Events

The City Council approved a $3 million grant in March 2020, for the Economic Development
Fund. The project is the Astro Amphitheater, a 2,500 seat indoor, 5,000 seat outdoor event venue.
The developer, City Ventures, is also building apartments and retail/restaurant space at City Centre
along 84th Street.

The City is following state and federal guidelines to address the COVID-19 virus pandemic and is
following the Center for Disease Control pandemic plan. Measures are being taken to safeguard
employees and citizens. The budget is under review for potential delays in expense to offset any
declines in revenue



ITEM
CITY OF LA VISTA
MAYOR AND CiTY COUNCIL REPORT
APRIL 7, 2020 AGENDA

Subject: Type: Submitted By:

RESOLUTION KEVIN POKORNY
AMEND THE RESTAURANTS AND € ORDINANCE DIRECTOR OF
DRINKING PLACES OCCUPATION TAX RECEIVE/FILE ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
SYNOPSIS

This ordinance comes before Council to amend the Restaurants and Drinking Places Occupation Tax (known as
the Restaurant Tax) by adopting a new section 113.10.4.1 providing for a quarterly return and payment of the tax.
FISCAL IMPACT

This amendment poses no impact to the financial requirements of this occupation tax.

RECOMMENDATION

Approval.

BACKGROUND

The Restaurants tax came before Council for the second reading and adoption on September 3, 2019 and went
into effect on October 1, 2019.

With the recent developments of the COVID-19, the Nebraska Governor’s executive orders on no gatherings of
more than 10 persons and the City’s wish to work with its business partners in the City, staff is recommending to
permit restaurants and drinking places to prepare and file returns and pay taxes on a quarterly basis, rather than
monthly, by filing such election with the City Administrator or designee.

Restaurant and Drinking Places are still be required to file and pay the occupation tax monthly in absence of any
election filed and approved by the City Administrator or designee.

K:\APPS\City Hal\CNCLRPT (Blue Letters)\20file\20 ADM Amend Restaurants And Drinking Places Occupation Tax Ordinance 04.07.2020.Docx




ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LA VISTA,
NEBRASKA ADOPTING SECTION 113.10.4.1 OF THE LA VISTA MUNICIPAL CODE TO
PROVIDE FOR QUARTERLY RETURN AND PAYMENT OF RESTAURANTS AND
DRINKING PLACES OCCUPATION TAX; REPEALING CONFLICTING ORDINANCES,;
AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, PUBLICATION AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LA VISTA,
NEBRASKA, as follows:

Section 1. The Mayor and City Council of the City of La Vista desire to adopt
Section 113.10.4.1 of the La Vista Municipal Code to permit quarterly return and payment
of Restaurants and Drinking Places Occupation Tax.

Section 2. Section 113.10.4.1 of the La Vista Municipal Code is hereby adopted
and approved as follows:

“8§113.10.4.1 Quarterly Return & Payment Election. Notwithstanding
anything in the Code to the contrary, on and after April 8, 2020, any taxpayer
engaged in a restaurant or drinking place within the City may prepare and file
returns and pay taxes under this section on a quarterly basis, rather than monthly,
by filing an election with the City Administrator in accordance with such rules or
regulations as the City Administrator from time to time may specify, including
without limitation any such rules or regulations specifying the form, content, or
timing within which any such election shall be made (“Quarterly Return and
Payment Election”) Any such Quarterly Return and Payment Election shall be
subject to approval of the City Administrator, and further shall be subject to the
following conditions:

(a) A Quarterly Return and Payment Election shall be effective with
respect to returns and taxes of a taxpayer that are due and
payable on or after the day the Quarterly Return and Payment
Election is filed with the City, as determined by the City
Administrator, unless the City Administrator and taxpayer agree
to a later effective date;

(b) Taxpayers making a Quarterly Return and Payment Election
shall prepare and file returns and pay taxes under this section
no later than the last day of the month immediately after the end
of each calendar quarter during which any gross receipts are
received that are included for purposes of calculating the tax.
For this purpose, the calendar quarters are March, June,
September, and December. All gross receipts for the quarter
shall be included, except for any gross receipts that were
included for purposes of any prior return and tax payment to the
City;

(c) A Quarterly Return and Payment Election shall be irrevocable
and the taxpayer shall make all future payments on a quarterly
basis. Provided, however, in the event circumstances arise that
were not reasonably foreseeable to the taxpayer when making
a Quarterly Return and Payment Election, the taxpayer may file
with the City Administrator a written request to revoke a
Quarterly Return and Payment Election and begin preparing
and filing returns and paying taxes on a monthly basis. Any
such request shall be subject to approval of the City
Administrator in her or his sole discretion; and

(d) Any other requirements specified by the City Administrator from
time to time.”

Section 3. Repeal of Conflicting Provisions. Any conflicting provision of any
previously enacted ordinance is hereby repealed.

Section 4. Severability. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of
this Ordinance is, for any reason, held to be unconstitutional or invalid, such
unconstitutionality or invalidity shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this
Ordinance. The Mayor and City Council of the City of La Vista hereby declare that it would
have passed this Ordinance and each section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase




hereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences,
clauses or phrases be declared unconstitutional or invalid.

Section 5. Publication and Effective Date of Ordinance. This Ordinance shall be
published and in force and effect in accordance with applicable law.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 7TH DAY OF APRIL, 2020.

CITY OF LA VISTA

Douglas Kindig, Mayor

ATTEST:

Pamela A. Buethe, CMC
City Clerk



ITEM
CITY OF LA VISTA
MAYOR AND CiTY COUNCIL REPORT
APRIL 7, 2020 AGENDA
Subject: Type: Submitted By:
€ RESOLUTION
ORDINANCE BRENDA GUNN
MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT RECEIVE/FILE CITY ADMINISTRATOR

SYNOPSIS

A resolution has been prepared to approve a Mutual Aid Agreement by, between, and among Sarpy
County and the cities of La Vista, Papillion, Gretna, Bellevue, Springfield to coordinate response
activities and share resources in times of emergencies.

FISCAL IMPACT

N/A

RECOMMENDATION

Approval.

BACKGROUND

It has long been recognized that mutual aid between agencies sharing similar demands is highly
desirable. It is recognized that, oftentimes, delivery of services during emergency situations can be done
most cost-effectively and with enhanced flexibility when forces are combined. The Federal Government
through the Department of Homeland Security and Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)
strongly encourages the formation of mutual aid agreements between local jurisdictions for reciprocal
disaster response and recovery assistance.

With this in mind, Sarpy County and the United Cities of Sarpy County, have worked to draft and
formalize a mutual aid agreement. This agreement does not replace our current agreements in place for
Police and Fire services. It does, however, provide for the local entities to support each other, coordinate
and share resources available, and be reimbursed for those services as appropriate.

K:\APPS\City Hal\CNCLRPT (Blue Letters)\19file\20 ADM Mutual Aid Agreement Sarpy County And United Cities Of Sarpy County 04.07.2020.Docx



RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LA VISTA, NEBRASKA
AUTHORIZING A MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT BETWEEN SARPY COUNTY AND THE CITIES
OF LA VISTA, PAPILLION, GRETNA, BELLEVUE, AND SPRINGFIELD TO COORDINATE
RESPONSE ACTIVITIES AND SHARE RESOURCES IN TIMES OF EMERGENCIES.

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

it has long been recognized that mutual aid between agencies sharing similar
demands is highly desirable; and

it is recognized that, oftentimes, delivery of services during emergency situations can
be done most cost-effectively and with enhanced flexibility when forces are
combined; and

the Federal Government, through the Department of Homeland Security and
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), strongly encourages the
formation of mutual aid agreements between local jurisdictions for reciprocal
disaster response and recovery assistance; and

Sarpy County and the United Cities of Sarpy County have worked to formalize a
mutual aid agreement for the local entities to support each other, coordinate and
share available resources, and be reimbursed for those services as appropriate;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council of the City of La Vista,

Nebraska, hereby authorize the Mayor to execute a Mutual Aid Agreement
between Sarpy County and the cities of La Vista, Papillion, Gretna, Bellevue,
and Springfield to coordinate response activities and share resources in times
of emergencies.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 7TH DAY OF APRIL 2020.

ATTEST:

CITY OF LA VISTA

Douglas Kindig, Mayor

Pamela A. Buethe, CMC

City Clerk

K:\APPS\City Hall\20 FINAL RESOLUTIONS\20. Authorize Mutual Aid
Agreement Sarpy County And United Cities Of Sarpy County 04.07.2020.Docx



SARPY COUNTY AND UNITED CITIES OF SARPY COUNTY MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT

This Mutual Aid Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into this day of

, 20 by, between, and among the City of Papillion, Nebraska

(hereinafter referred to as “Papillion”), the City of La Vista, Nebraska (hereinafter referred to as “La

Vista”), the City of Gretna, Nebraska (hereinafter referred to as “Gretna”), the City of Bellevue, Nebraska

(hereinafter referred to as “Bellevue”), the City of Springfield, Nebraska (hereinafter referred to as

“Springfield”), and Sarpy County, Nebraska (hereinafter referred to as “Sarpy”) (singularly “Party”, and
collectively “Parties”).

WHEREAS, it is desirable and necessary for the protection of life, property, and the environment
that each of the Parties hereto voluntarily aid and assist each other by the interchange of services and
resources in the event of an emergency; and

WHEREAS, the Parties have determined that it would be in their best interests to enter into a
Mutual Aid Agreement that implements a plan and sets forth procedures and responsibilities of the Parties
whenever emergency services, personnel, facilities, equipment, materials, and/or other resources are
provided from one Party to another; and

WHEREAS, the Federal Government, through its Federal Department of Homeland Security and
Federal Emergency Management Agency (“FEMA”), has recommended and actively encourages the
formation of mutual aid agreements between local jurisdictions for reciprocal disaster response and
recovery assistance; and,

WHEREAS, such an Agreement is in accord with the Nebraska Emergency Management Act ("Act")
set forth in Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 81-829.36 et seq., and the Nebraska Interlocal Cooperation Act set forth in
Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 13-801 et seq.; and

WHEREAS, no Party should be in a position of depleting unreasonably its own resources or
services providing such mutual aid.

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE CONDITIONS AND COVENANTS CONTAINED
HEREIN, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

l. PURPOSE

Recognizing that emergencies may require aid or assistance in the form of emergency services,
personnel, facilities, equipment, materials, and/or other resources from outside the area of
impact, the signatory Parties hereby enter into a Sarpy County and United Cities of Sarpy County
Mutual Aid Agreement. Through the Agreement, Parties coordinate response activities and share
resources during emergencies. This Agreement sets forth the procedures and standards for this
Sarpy County and United Cities of Sarpy County Mutual Aid Agreement.

Il DEFINITIONS

A. AREA OF OPERATION — A geographic area in which emergency Sarpy County or United
Cities of Sarpy County operations are conducted.



B. ASSISTANCE —Services, personnel, facilities, equipment, materials, and/or other resources
to address an Emergency, except for mutual aid provided by police, fire, or sheriff’s
department personnel and related costs.

C. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE(S) — An official or designated employee of a Party
authorized by that Party to request or offer assistance under the terms of the Agreement.

D. EMERGENCY — A natural or human caused event or circumstance causing, or imminently
threatening to cause, loss of life, injury to person or property, human suffering, or
financial loss, and includes, but is not limited to, fire, explosion, flood, storm, severe
weather, drought, earthquake, volcanic activity, spills or releases of oil or hazardous
material, contamination, utility or transportation emergencies, disease, blight,
infestation, civil disturbance, riot, intentional acts, sabotage, and war that is, or could
reasonably be, beyond the capability of the resources of a Party to fully manage and
mitigate internally.

E. INCIDENT COMMANDER — The person responsible for all aspects of an emergency
response, including quickly developing incident objectives, managing all incident
operations, application of resources as well as responsibility for all persons involved.

F. NATIONAL INCIDENT MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (NIMS) — A national, standardized approach
to incident management and response that sets uniform processes and procedures for
emergency response operations.

G. PERIOD OF ASSISTANCE — A specified period of time when a Providing Party assists a
Requesting Party. The period commences when resources depart from Providing Party’s
facility and ends when the resources return to their facility (portal to portal). All
protections identified in the Agreement apply during this period. The specified Period of
Assistance may occur during response to, or recovery from, an emergency as previously
defined.

H. PROVIDING PARTY — A Party that provides Assistance to a Requesting Party.
l. REQUESTING PARTY — A Party that requests Assistance from other Parties.

J. SARPY COUNTY LOCAL EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN (“LEOP”) — The plan approved by
the governing bodies of Sarpy County and the United Cities of Sarpy County to establish
policies, plans, guidelines, and procedures with respect to Emergencies, consistent with
applicable requirements including NIMS, which plan, as adopted or amended from time
to time, is incorporated into this Agreement by reference.

APPLICABILITY
This Agreement is available and applicable to all Parties upon signing of the Agreement. This
Agreement shall not apply to mutual aid provided by police, fire, or sheriff’s departments and

related costs.

PROCEDURES



In the event that a particular Party becomes a Requesting Party, the following procedures shall be
followed:

A

A Party shall not be held liable for failing to serve as a Providing Party.

Each Providing Party may respond, when practicable, to requests for Assistance by
providing such resources as are reasonably available to the Providing Party. The Providing
Party shall have the sole discretion of determining which resources are reasonably
available.

The execution of this Agreement shall not create any duty to respond on the part of any
Party.

The Requesting Party may contact participating Parties that may be able to provide the
requested resources.

Necessary information in accordance with the procedures defined in this Agreement shall
be shared between Requesting and Providing Parties.

When contacted by a Requesting Party, the Authorized Representative of a Party shall
assess if it is capable of providing assistance. If the Authorized Representative determines
that the Party is capable and willing to provide assistance, the Authorized Representative
shall notify the Requesting Party and provide the Requesting Party with the information
as required.

The Requesting Party shall designate an Incident Commander to manage all aspects of
the response to the Emergency under this Agreement. The Providing Party shall designate
an Authorized Representative to address issues regarding its provision of Assistance
under this Agreement. The Incident Commander shall exercise operational control of all
Assistance provided by all sources, including that provided by any Providing Party, to
respond to the emergency. The Incident Commander shall provide work assignments for
provided personnel and shall schedule and arrange for the use of provided materials or
other resources. The Incident Commander shall supervise the safety of personnel and
resources provided by a Providing Party, and regularly report work progress to the
Authorized Representative of the Providing Party. Notwithstanding the authority granted
the Incident Commander under this Agreement, the Authorized Representative of a
Providing Party shall have the power to prohibit or limit any proposed use of its
Assistance, upon notice to the Incident Commander. The designated Authorized
Representative of the Providing Party shall maintain daily personnel time records and a
log of equipment hours (including breakdowns or damage, if any).

When possible, the Requesting Party shall supply reasonable food and shelter for the
Providing Party personnel. If the Requesting Party does not provide food and shelter for
the Providing Party, the Providing Party’s Authorized Representative is authorized to
secure, at the expense of the Requesting Party, the resources reasonably necessary to
meet the needs of its personnel in coordination with the Requesting Party’s procedures.
The cost for such resources shall not exceed the state per diem rate for that area, unless

3



the Providing Party documents and demonstrates that the additional costs were
reasonable and necessary under the circumstances.

l. The Requesting Party’s Incident Commander shall provide a communications plan to the
Authorized Representative of the Providing Party prior to arrival.

J. The command structure established during the Emergency shall comply with the
requirements of the National Incident Management System (NIMS).

K. The Incident Commander shall, as soon as reasonably possible, release the resources of
the Providing Party from the Emergency. The resources of the Providing Party shall, if
practical, be released before the resources of the Requesting Party are released.

L. To the extent permitted by law, Providing Party personnel who hold valid licenses,
certificates, or permits evidencing professional, mechanical, or other skills shall be
allowed to carry out activities and tasks relevant and related to their respective
credentials during the specified Period of Assistance.

M. Resources of the Providing Party shall be released from the Emergency when it is
determined by the Incident Commander that the services provided by the Providing Party
are no longer required or when the Authorized Representative of the Providing Party
informs the Incident Commander that the resources provided by the Providing Party are
otherwise needed by the Providing Party.

N. Each Party shall provide its own credentialing for identification purposes.
REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES

The Requesting Party shall reimburse the Providing Party for each of the following categories of
costs incurred during the specified Period of Assistance. This Agreement, and the duty to
reimburse, shall apply to all emergencies or disasters involving any mutual aid assistance, except
for mutual aid among police, fire, or sheriff’s departments. This Agreement, and the duty to
reimburse, shall not be contingent upon any declaration or reimbursement decision of FEMA or
similar State agencies. The Parties shall enter into a memorandum of understanding or other
agreement as needed for reimbursement of costs not subject to common practice billing.

A Personnel — The Providing Party shall be reimbursed by the Requesting Party for
personnel costs incurred for work performed during the specified Period of Assistance.
Providing Party personnel costs shall be calculated according to the terms provided in
their employment contracts or other conditions of employment. Providing Party’s
Authorized Representative must keep accurate records of work performed by personnel
during the specified Period of Assistance. Requesting Party reimbursement to the
Providing Party could consider all personnel costs, including salaries or hourly wages,
overtime, costs for fringe benefits, and indirect costs.



Equipment — The Requesting Party shall reimburse the Providing Party for the use of
equipment during the specified Period of Assistance, including, but not limited to,
reasonable rental rates, all fuel, lubrication, maintenance, transportation, and
loading/unloading of loaned equipment. All equipment shall be returned to the Providing
Party in good working order in accordance with applicable requirements including,
without limitation, NIMS, as soon as is practicable and reasonable under the
circumstances. As a minimum, rates for equipment use must be based on the FEMA
Schedule of Equipment Rates. If the Providing Party wishes to use rates different from
those in the FEMA Schedule of Equipment Rates, the Providing Party must first provide
such rates orally or in writing to the Requesting Party prior to supplying the equipment,
and also obtain the Requesting Party’s written consent, all prior to dispatch of the
equipment. Reimbursement for equipment not referenced on the FEMA Schedule of
Equipment Rates must be developed based on actual recovery of costs. If the Providing
Party must lease a piece of equipment while its equipment is being repaired, the
Requesting Party shall reimburse the Providing Party for such rental costs.

Materials and Supplies — The Requesting Party must reimburse the Providing Party in kind
or at actual replacement cost, plus handling charges, for use of expendable or non-
returnable supplies. The Providing Party must not charge direct fees or rental charges to
the Requesting Party for other supplies and reusable items that are returned to the
Providing Party in a clean, damage-free condition. Reusable supplies that are returned to
the Providing Party with damage must be treated as expendable supplies for purposes of
cost reimbursement.

Payment Period — The Providing Party must provide an itemized bill to the Requesting
Party for all expenses incurred by the Providing Party while providing assistance under
this Agreement. The Providing Party must send the itemized bill not later than ninety
(90) days following the end of the Period of Assistance. The Providing Party may request
additional periods of time within which to submit the itemized bill, and the Requesting
Party shall not unreasonably withhold consent to such request. The Requesting Party
must pay the bill in full on or before the sixtieth (60%") day following the billing date. The
Requesting Party may request additional periods of time within which to pay the itemized
bill, and Providing Party shall not unreasonably withhold consent to such request,
provided, however, that all payment shall occur not later than one year after the date a
final itemized bill is submitted to the Requesting Party.

Records — Each Party shall document and maintain records of costs and other matters in
connection with this Agreement in accordance with applicable requirements, including,
without limitation, NIMS. Each Providing Party and their duly authorized representatives
shall have access to a Requesting Party’s books, documents, notes, reports, papers, and
records that are directly pertinent to this Agreement for the purposes of reviewing the
accuracy of a cost bill or making a financial, maintenance, or regulatory audit. Each
Requesting Party and their duly authorized representatives shall have access to the
Providing Party’s books, documents, notes, reports, papers, and records that are directly
pertinent to this Agreement for the purposes of reviewing the accuracy of a cost bill or
making a financial, maintenance, or regulatory audit. Such records shall be maintained
for at least five (5) years or longer where required by law.



VI.

VII.

VIIL.

INSURANCE

Except as otherwise provided in subsection IXA or subsection IXB below, each Party shall bear the
risk of its own actions, as it does with its day-to-day operations, and determine for itself what
kinds of insurance and in what amounts it should carry. Nothing herein shall act or be construed
as a waiver of any sovereign immunity or other exemption or limitation on liability that a Party
may enjoy.

INTERLOCAL COOPERATION ACT PROVISIONS

This Agreement does not create any separate legal or administrative entity. To the extent this
Agreement requires administration other than as set forth herein, it shall be administered by the
Authorized Representatives of the Parties, acting as a joint board.

This Agreement does not authorize the levying or collecting of any tax. Each Party shall be
responsible for establishing and maintaining its own budget, for financing its own duties, and for
acquiring, holding and disposing of its own property, except as specifically provided by this
Agreement.

No real or personal property shall be acquired jointly by the Parties to perform the conditions of
this Agreement unless such acquisition is specifically agreed to in writing by all Parties, which
writing shall specify the method for disposing of such joint property upon partial or complete
termination. To the extent that a Party acquires, holds, or disposes of any real or personal
property for use in the joint or cooperative undertaking contemplated by this Agreement, it shall
do so in the same manner that it deals with other property of such Party.

LAWFUL RESPONSIBILITY

This Agreement shall not relieve any Party of any obligation or responsibility imposed upon it by
law or other agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS

A. The Requesting Party shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Providing Party and
the officers, employees, and representatives of the Providing Party, if they are acting
within the course and scope of their duties, from all claims, suits, actions, damages, and
costs of every kind, including but not limited to, reasonable attorney’s fees and court
costs, arising or resulting from the performance or provision of services and materials by
the Providing Party under this Agreement except to the extent the same are proximately
caused by the negligence of the Providing Party or the officers, employees, or
representatives of the Providing Party. This Agreement shall not be construed to be a
waiver of any rights or protections provided to any Party.

B. Subject to the Nebraska Political Subdivisions Tort Claims Act, including liability limitations
thereunder, the Providing Party shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the
Requesting Party and the officers, employees, and representatives of the Requesting
Party , if they are acting within the course and scope of their duties, from all claims, suits,
actions, damages, and costs of every kind, including but not limited to, reasonable
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attorney’s fees and court costs, proximately caused by the negligence of the Providing
Party or the officers, employees, or representatives of the Providing Party in the
performance or provision of services and materials under this Agreement, except to the
extent the same are proximately caused by the negligence of the Requesting Party or the
officers, employees, or representatives of the Requesting Party. This Agreement shall not
be construed to be a waiver of any rights or protections provided to any Party.

C. Subject to the foregoing, nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as an agreement
by a Party to indemnify, defend, or hold harmless, or in any way assume liability, if there
is a determination that any personal injury, death, or property loss or damage was caused
by the negligence of any other Party or person.

D. Subject to subsection IXA and subsection IXB above, nothing herein shall be construed to
waive any of the privileges and immunities associated with the provision of materials,
equipment, or emergency or other services of any of the Parties. No Party waives any
defenses or immunity available, nor does any Party waive any limits of liability.

E. Subject to subsection IXA and subsection IXB above, each Party shall be solely responsible
for providing workers’ compensation, insurance, and benefits for its own personnel who
provide Assistance under this Agreement unless the Parties otherwise agree. Each Party
shall provide insurance or shall self-insure to cover the negligent acts and omissions of its
own personnel rendering services under this Agreement.

TERM

This Agreement shall have an initial term of thirty (30) years commencing upon the effective date
of this Agreement.

TERMINATION

Any Party may terminate its obligations under and participation in this Agreement, with or
without cause, by giving at least thirty (30) days prior written notice of the intent to terminate.
The termination of this Agreement by any Party shall not affect the validity of this Agreement as
to the remaining Parties. Withdrawal from this Agreement shall in no way affect a Requesting
Party’s duty to reimburse the Providing Party for costs incurred during a Period of Assistance that
occurred during the term of this Agreement, which duty shall survive such withdrawal.

WHOLE AGREEMENT, AMENDMENTS

This Agreement constitutes the whole agreement of the Parties, written or oral, relating to the
subject matter of this Agreement. This Agreement may not be amended without the prior written
approval of all Parties. Whenever used in this Agreement the term "include", "included",
"including" or words of similar import shall be construed as if followed by the phrase "without
limitation". This Agreement shall not supersede any preexisting agreement of any Party for
mutual aid.

DISPUTES



XIV.

XV.

XVI.

XVII.

XVIIL.

XIX.

XX.

XXI.

If any controversy or claim arises out of, or relates to, the execution of the Agreement, including,
but not limited to, alleged breach of the Agreement, the disputing Parties may first attempt to
resolve the dispute by negotiation, followed by mediation. Each Party involved in such a
controversy or claim shall bear its own costs for dispute resolution.

SEVERABILITY

If any provisions of this Agreement are held to be invalid or unenforceable by a court of proper
jurisdiction, the remaining provisions shall remain in full force and effect.

NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES

This Agreement is not intended to benefit any party or person not named as a Party specifically
herein.

EFFECTIVE DATE

This Agreement shall be effective as to a particular Party executing this Agreement upon the date
of execution of this Agreement by that Party.

AUTHORIZATION

The individuals signing this Agreement on behalf of their respective Parties confirm that they are
a duly Authorized Representative of the Party and are lawfully enabled to sign this Agreement on
behalf of the Party.

COUNTERPARTS

This Agreement and any amendments to it may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original.

GOVERNING LAW

This Agreement shall be governed by, construed, and carried out in accordance with all applicable
requirements, including without limitation the applicable laws, rules, and regulations of the
United States and the State of Nebraska, NIMS, and LEOP, as adopted or amended from time to
time.

FILING OF AGREEMENT

An executed counterpart of this Agreement shall be filed with the keeper of records of each Party.
In witness whereof, each Party hereto has executed this Agreement on the respective signature
page of that Party as of the date specified by its signature block.

PERSONNEL NOT AGENTS

The employees of the Parties providing services pursuant to or consistent with the terms of this
Agreement are solely the officers, agents, or employees of the Party that hired them. Each Party
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XXIII.

XXIV.

shall assume any and all liability for the payment of salaries, wages, or other compensation due
or claimed due, including workers’ compensation claims, and each Party shall hold the other
harmless therefrom. Except as otherwise provided in subsection IXA and subsection IXB above,
the Parties shall not be liable for compensation or indemnity to any other Party’s employee for
any injury or sickness arising out of his or her employment, and the Parties shall not be liable for
compensation or indemnity to any other Party’s employee for injury or sickness arising out of his
or her employment, and each Party hereby agrees to hold the other Party harmless against any
such claim.

ADDITIONAL PARTIES

Any subdivision of the State of Nebraska not specifically named herein (“Prospective Party”) which
shall hereafter sign this Agreement or a copy hereof shall become a Party. Any Prospective Party
that becomes a newly accepted Party is entitled to all the rights and privileges and is subject to
the obligations of any Party as set out herein.

NON-DISCRIMINATION

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, each Party agrees that it and any of
its subcontractors shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment to be
employed in performance of this Agreement with respect to the employee’s or applicant’s hire,
tenure, terms, conditions, or privileges of employment because of race, color, religion, sex,
disability, or national origin.

NEW EMPLOYEE WORK ELIGIBILITY STATUS

Each Party is required and hereby agrees to use a federal immigration verification system to
determine the work eligibility status of new employees physically performing service within the
State of Nebraska. A federal immigration verification system means the electronic verification of
the work authorization program authorized by the lllegal Immigration Reform and Immigrant
Responsibility Act of 1996, 8 U.S.C. 132443, known as the E-Verify Program, or an equivalent federal
program designated by the United States Department of Homeland Security or other federal
agency authorized to verify the work eligibility status of a newly hired employee.

For any contract between a Party and a Contractor in furtherance of this Agreement, if the
Contractor is an individual or sole proprietorship, the following applies: 1. The Contractor must
complete the United States Citizenship Attestation Form, available on the Department of
Administrative Services website at www.das.state.ne.us 2. If the Contractor indicates on such
attestation form that he or she is a qualified alien, the Contractor agrees to provide the US
Citizenship and Immigration Services documentation required to verify the Contractor’s lawful
presence in the United States using the Systematic Alien Verification for Entitlements (SAVE)
Program. 3. The Contractor understands and agrees that lawful presence in the United States is
required and the Contractor may be disqualified or the contract terminated if such lawful
presence cannot be verified as required by Neb. Rev. Stat. §4-108.



http://www.das.state.ne.us/
http://www.das.state.ne.us/

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we, the contracting Parties, by our respective duly authorized agents, hereby enter
into this Agreement, effective on the date of the last signature affixed hereon. Executed on the dates
indicated with the signatures below.

[Signatures on Following Pages]
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CITY OF PAPILLION,
A Municipal Corporation

Date: By:

David P. Black, Mayor

Attest:

Nicole L. Brown, City Clerk

SEAL
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CITY OF LA VISTA,
A Municipal Corporation

Date: By:

Douglas Kindig, Mayor

Attest:

Pamela A. Buethe, City Clerk

SEAL
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CITY OF GRETNA,
A Municipal Corporation

Date: By:

James W. Timmerman, Mayor

Attest:

Tammy L. Tisdall, City Clerk

SEAL
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CITY OF BELLEVUE,
A Municipal Corporation

Date: By:

Rusty Hike, Mayor

Attest:

Susan Kluthe, City Clerk

SEAL
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD,
A Municipal Corporation

Date: By:

Robert Roseland, Mayor

Attest:

Kathleen Gottsch, City Clerk

SEAL
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SARPY COUNTY,
A Body Politic and Corporate

Date: By:

Don Kelly, Chairman of the Sarpy County
Board of Commissioners

Attest:

Deb Houghtaling, County Clerk

SEAL
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ITEM
CITY OF LA VISTA
MAYOR AND CiTY COUNCIL REPORT
APRIL 7, 2020 AGENDA

Subject: Type: Submitted By:

€ RESOLUTION KEVIN POKORNY
COMPUTER EQUIPMENT — ORDINANCE DIRECTOR OF ADMINISTRATIVE
MNJ TECHNOLOGIES RECEIVE/FILE SERVICES
SYNOPSIS

A resolution has been prepared approving the following technology related purchases from MNJ Technologies

e Nine (9) IPad Pro 12.9” tablets ($8,550) — Mayor & Council
e Eight (8) MS Surface Pro 12.3” tablets ($7,736) — Staff
e Four (4) MS Surface Go 10" tablets at a cost of ($2,032) — Staff

FISCAL IMPACT

The FY 20 budget contains funding for the M&C iPad replacements and the balance will be funded through budget
savings in other areas. The COVID-19 situation and resulting needs to work remotely have accelerated these
acquisitions and as such, a funding reimbursement request will be made through FEMA.

RECOMMENDATION

Approval.

BACKGROUND

Apple no longer provides technical support for several of the iPads in the City’s inventory, which
includes those utilized by the Mayor & City Council and several that are utilized by leadership team
members and support staff. In addition, some of the functions have become inoperable. The lack of
support makes these devices more vulnerable to cyber-attack and thus, a security risk to our network.
The IT Team researched potential replacement options, which included obtaining user feedback. The
resulting recommendations were based on how the devices are used.

While it is anticipated that some planned purchases will be delayed until the impact of COVID-19 is
better understood, it is this very issue that increases the need to move forward with the recommended
purchases at this time. It is essential that City devices are cyber secure in order to provide video
conferencing for public meetings and city business.

Subsequent to the President’s March 13, 2020 Nationwide Emergency Declaration for Coronavirus Disease 2019
(COVID-19), the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) is addressing procurements made during
periods of exigent or emergency circumstances in State, local governments. As such, the City will submit this




purchase and future purchases deemed necessary for the continuity of government operations and emergency
operations for reimbursement.

K:\APPS\City Hal\CNCLRPT (Blue Letters)\20file\20 IT Computer Equipment Purchase 04.07.2020.Docx



RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LA VISTA,
NEBRASKA, AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF NINE (9) IPAD PRO TABLETS, EIGHT (8)
MS SURFACE PRO SCREEN TABLETS, AND FOUR (4) MS SURFACE GO FROM MNJ
TECHNOLOGIES IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $18,318.00.

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of La Vista has determined that the purchase of nine
(9) iPad Pro tablets, eight (8) MS Surface Pro screen tablets, and four (4) MS
Surface Go is necessary; and

WHEREAS, the FY19/20 Biennial Budget provides funding for the purchase; and

WHEREAS, Subsection (C) (9) of Section 31.23 of the La Vista Municipal Code requires that
the city administrator secure Council approval prior to authorizing any purchase
over $5,000.00;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council of La Vista, Nebraska,
do hereby authorize the purchase of nine (9) iPad Pro tablets, eight (8) MS Surface
Pro screen tablets and four (4) MS Surface Go from MNJ Technologies in an
amount not to exceed $18,318.00.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 7TH DAY OF APRIL, 2020.

CITY OF LA VISTA

Douglas Kindig, Mayor
ATTEST:

Pamela A. Buethe, CMC
City Clerk

K:\APPS\City Hall\20 FINAL RESOLUTIONS\20. Authorize Computer
Equipment Purchase - Tablets 04.07.2020.docx



MNJ Technologies Direct, Inc.
1025 Busch Pkwy
Buffalo Grove, IL 60089-4504

(847) 634-0700 QUOTE

Dear KEVIN L POKORNY,

Thank you for contacting MNJ Technologies and allowing us the opportunity to provide a best -in-class solution based on your
technology needs. Please feel free to reach out with any questions you may have.

03/26/2020 0001255384 KEVIN L POKORNY Mar 26, 202012:59 pm $8,550.00
BILL TO: (5008361) SHIP TO: (SARP) ATTENTION TO:
CITY OF LAVISTA SARPY COUNTY NAME:
8116 PARK VIEW BLVD 1210 GOLDEN GATE DR, SUITE 1130
KEVIN POKORMY Papillion, NE 68046 PHONE:
La Vista, NE 68128 EMAIL:
CONFIRM TO:
ATTN:

ACCOUNT MANAGER: Jimmy Lochner

EMAIL: jlochner@mnjtech.com
PHONE: (847) 876-8841 EXT: 8341
1 MNJ14622550 Apple, Inc - IPAD PRO 12.9 WLS 128GB SPACE GRY 9 950.00 8,550.00
us
MFG PART NO: MY2H2LL/A
SHIP VIA: FEDEX GROUND PLEASE REMIT TO: NET ORDER: $8,550.00
MNJ Technologies Direct,
TERMS:  Net 30 Days INC ESTIMATED SALES TAX: $0.00
Department #10444 SHIPPING CHARGES: $0.00
PO Box : 87618
TOTAL: 8,550.00
Chicago, IL 60680-0618 ¢
RO ORDER BALANCE: $8,550.00

Thanks for the opportunity. We appreciate all your business.

Page 1 of 1



MNJ Technologies Direct, Inc.
1025 Busch Pkwy

Buffalo Grove, IL 60089-4504
(847) 634-0700

Dear KEVIN L POKORNY,

Thank you for contacting MNJ Technologies and allowing us the opportunity to provide a best -in-class solution based on your
technology needs. Please feel free to reach out with any questions you may have.

03/04/2020

BILL TO: (5008361)

CITY OF LAVISTA
8116 PARK VIEW BLVD
KEVIN POKORMY
La Vista, NE 68128

CONFIRM TO:
ATTN:

ACCOUNT MANAGER:

EMAIL:
PHONE:

1 MNJ14358023

2 MNJ12826827

3 MNJ 13505506

4 MNJ13505575

0001249819 KEVIN L POKORNY

SHIP TO: (SARP)

SARPY COUNTY
1210 GOLDEN GATE DR, SUITE 1130
Papillion, NE 68046

Jimmy Lochner
jlochner@mnjtech.com
(847) 876-8841 EXT: 8341

Microsoft Surface Pro 7 Tablet - 12.3" - 8 GB RAM - 128
GB SSD - Platinum - Intel Core i5 - microSDXC
Supported - 5 Megapixel Front Camera - 8 Megapixel
Rear Camera

MFG PART NO: PVQ-00001

Microsoft Type Cover Keyboard/Cover Case Tablet - Black
- Bump Resistant, Scratch Resistant - 0.2" Height x
11.6" Width x 8.5" Depth

MFG PART NO: FMN-00001

Microsoft Surface Go Tablet - 10" - 4 GB RAM - 64 GB
Storage - Windows 10 Pro - Silver - Intel Pentium 4415Y
Dual-core (2 Core) 1.60 GHz - microSDXC Supported - 5
Megapixel Front Camera - 8 Megapixel Rear Camera

MFG PART NO: JST-00001

Microsoft Signature Type Cover Keyboard/Cover Case
Tablet - Black - MicroFiber - 6.9" Height x 9.7" Width x
0.3" Depth

MFG PART NO: KCN-00001

Page 1 of 2

QUOTE

Apr 2, 202012:54 pm $9,768.00
ATTENTION TO:
NAME: KEVIN L POKORNY
PHONE: 4023314343
EMAIL: kpokorny@cityoflavista.org

8 869.00 6,952.00

8 98.00 784.00

4 433.00 1,732.00

4 75.00 300.00



SHIP VIA:
TERMS:

FEDEX GROUND PLEASE REMIT TO: NET ORDER:

MNJ Technologies Direct,

Net 30 Days ING. ESTIMATED SALES TAX:
Department #10444 SHIPPING CHARGES:

cmc:gff: 6322(1:0618 TOTAL:

FEIN: 01-0560518 ORDER BALANCE:

Thanks for the opportunity. We appreciate all your business.

Page 2 of 2

$9,768.00
$0.00
$0.00
$9,768.00

$9,768.00



ITEM
CITY OF LA VISTA
MAYOR AND CiTY COUNCIL REPORT
APRIL 7, 2020 AGENDA
Subject: Type: Submitted By:
RESOLUTION
DISCUSSION — SALUTE TO SUMMER ORDINANCE MITCH BEAUMONT
FESTIVAL € RECEIVE/FILE COMMUNITY RELATIONS COORDINATOR
SYNOPSIS

A discussion has been scheduled regarding this year’s Salute to Summer Festival.

FISCAL IMPACT

N/A

RECOMMENDATION

Discussion only.

BACKGROUND

The 2020 Salute to Summer Festival is scheduled to take place May 22 and 23, only weeks after the current
COVID-19 restrictions are set to expire. Given the uncertainty of what conditions will be at that time, staff is
recommending that this year’s festival be cancelled. It is possible the City could still host some kind of
community celebration later in the summer or in the early fall, but until restrictions are lifted and conditions
improve, it is not prudent to schedule a new event at this time.

K:\APPS\City Hal\CNCLRPT (Blue Letters)\20file\20 ADM Salute To Summer Discussion 04.07.2020.Doc
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